
Gold production increases by 5 per cent to 7.2 million ounces and operating profit rises
by 6 per cent to R3.3 billion.

Headline earnings decline by 11 per cent to R1.77 billion, mainly as a result of a focus on growing
the business and the consequent increase in net interest paid.

Integration of AngloGold Australasia (formerly Acacia Resources) into AngloGold, providing

a sound foothold in this key gold-producing region, together with the inclusion of AngloGold in
the All Ordinaries Index on the Australian Stock Exchange in January 2000. The AngloGold share

is now tradeable around the world for 24 hours a day.

Approval for construction of the Yatela mine in Mali in February 2000 at a capital cost of

some $76 million. Production will begin in June 2001.

Acquisition in July 2000 of 25 per cent of OroAfrica, the largest manufacturer of gold jewellery

in South Africa, for $8 million (R55 million).

Acquisition in July 2000 of a 40 per cent interest in the Morila mine in Mali for $132 million,

with a project finance provision of $36 million. AngloGold manages this operation.

Purchase of a 50 per cent stake in the Geita mine in Tanzania for $205 million, with

a project finance provision of $67 million. The mine was officially opened on 3 August 2000. AngloGold

has entered into a further strategic alliance with Ashanti Goldfields Limited to seek

opportunities for working together in Africa.

Sale of Deelkraal and Elandsrand mines negotiated for R1 billion ($132 million),

in line with AngloGold’s strategy of concentrating on higher margin, longer-life operations.

Launch of GoldAvenue, an e-commerce gold business.

Key features 2000
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Cover: This beautifully crafted golden rhino, 
found at Mapungubwe, South Africa, 
dates from between AD1220 and AD1270.



with some 107 million ordinary
shares in issue.

AngloGold’s primary objective
is the enhancement of shareholder
value. The company prides itself
on consistently producing high rates
of return on shareholders’ equity and
capital employed, good profits and
strong cash flows and has an excellent
track record in paying dividends.

Through its international
gold marketing initiatives –

AngloGold is the world’s
largest gold producer,
with the most extensive
reserves and resources.

AngloGold believes in gold and
its future, both as a sought-
after product and the ultimate
store of value.

As at 31 December 2000,
AngloGold’s annual production
amounted to some 7 million
ounces of gold, while the company
holds ore reserves of 88 million
ounces and resources of 398 million
ounces.

Directed from its headquarters
in Johannesburg, AngloGold is a
truly global gold company. Its
production base spans four
continents, with a combination
of underground, open-pit and
surface reclamation operations
in Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Mali,
Namibia, South Africa, Tanzania
and the United States of America.
AngloGold is actively exploring in
12 countries on four continents.

Formed in June 1998 through
the merger of the gold interests
of Anglo American and its associated
companies, the company is listed on
the Johannesburg (ANG), London
(79LK), New York (AU) and Australian
(AGG) stock exchanges and the
Brussels (ANG BB) and Paris
(VA FP) bourses. 

As at 31 December 2000,
AngloGold’s market capitalisation
was R23.7 billion ($3.1 billion),

2

Corporate profile

AngloGold is determined to sustain and 
grow the market for gold

in gold
we believe

on its own and in collaboration
with organisations such as the
World Gold Council – AngloGold is
determined to sustain and grow
the market for its product. 
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Certain forward-looking statements
Certain statements contained in this document, including without limitation, those concerning the economic outlook for the gold mining industry, expectations
regarding gold prices and production, the completion and commencement of commercial operations of certain of AngloGold’s exploration and production projects,
and its liquidity and capital resources and expenditure, contain certain forward-looking statements regarding AngloGold’s operations, economic performance and
financial condition. 

Although AngloGold believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, no assurance can be given that such expectations will
prove to have been correct. 

Accordingly, results could differ materially from those set out in the forward-looking statements as a result of, among other factors, changes in economic and market
conditions, success of business and operating initiatives, changes in the regulatory environment and other government actions, fluctuations in gold prices and
exchange rates, and business and operational risk management.

Throughout this document, $ refers to US dollars, unless otherwise stated.



operations in Mali, South America
and Australia, ensured that the
effects of the problems in South
Africa were limited. 

Gold production for 2000
increased by 5 per cent to 7.2 million
ounces and operating profit increased
by 6 per cent to R3.3 billion, although
in dollar terms it reduced by 8 per
cent to $469 million, due to the
rand’s devaluation. Headline
earnings were down 11 per cent
to R1.77 billion mainly as a result
of our focus on growing the
business and the resultant
increase in net interest paid.

We declared a final dividend for
2000 of R6.50 per share, giving an

annual dividend of R14.00 per share
and a yield of 6.4 per cent at the
prevailing share price at that time
of R220. While this dividend is lower
than it was in 1999, it represents
a continuation of our policy of
paying a high dividend as well as
offering investors long-term value.

During the year, we continued
to pursue all of our strategic
objectives with vigour and success.
AngloGold acquired substantial
interests in Morila in Mali and
Geita in Tanzania and mining at
the new Yatela operation, also in
Mali, began in December. This year
production from the Africa region
will grow from 366,000 to
809,000 attributable ounces at
a cash cost of $147 per ounce.
In Australia the expansion of the
Sunrise Dam pit is well under way
and will increase production at
this low cost operation by some
100,000 ounces per year. Together,
these acquisitions and projects will
contribute about 20 million ounces
of gold at a cash cost of $175 per
ounce over the next 15 years.

However, simply increasing gold
production, even at competitive
costs, is not AngloGold’s primary
objective. Our focus remains on
securing short- and long-term
returns for our shareholders. There
are a number of challenges facing
us in achieving this goal.

The first challenge is to ensure
that our existing operations

AngloGold has been operating
in its present form as an
independently managed,
listed company for three

years. After two years of significant
organisational reform, rapid growth
and international diversification,
2000 was a year in which we
continued to achieve our strategic
diversification and market
development goals. However,
operating problems on some key
South African mines had an impact
on AngloGold’s overall performance
during the year.

In April 2000 management set out
its plans to rectify these problems
and undertook to close the operations
or find buyers for them if our
financial and operating standards
could not be met. By the end of the
year, the performance of the two
most significant of these – Great
Noligwa and TauTona, which together
produce 42 per cent of the company’s
operating profit – had returned to
the performance levels expected of
them, with total costs of $144 and
$172 per ounce respectively – well
below many open-pit operations.
Elandsrand persistently failed to
deliver and was sold, together with
Deelkraal. It is our firm conviction

that immediate solutions to the
problems which continue to plague
Bambanani and Joel will be found.
If they cannot be returned to
profitability, they will be sold
or closed. 

Looking at the full year across
the group, excellent performances by

diversification
strategic
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Letter from the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman

continuation of a
high dividend policy

For many countries and millions of people
around the world, gold remains the ultimate
store of value.
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Letter from the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman
(continued)

perform to the full capacity of their
underlying orebodies. This requires
extracting the full value of the
capital invested in them and the
diligent management of operating
and overhead costs. We have already
committed ourselves to reducing
overheads by 10 per cent and, in
South Africa, to holding operating
costs steady in rand terms during
2001. We will continue to act
decisively where operations cannot
meet these requirements over any
significant period.

The gold price over the year was
much the same as it was in 1999,
although it has dipped during the first
two months of 2001. While we remain
confident in the future of the metal
and its price, we take a realistically
cautious view of the short-term price
for business planning purposes. We
are well aware that investor interest
remains the primary determinant of the
gold price, but it is also clear that
a solid and growing physical market
for the metal is a necessary foundation
for the price in order for it to move
upward when opportunities arise. 

Our second challenge is therefore
to increase the physical demand
for our product and, simultaneously,
to take full advantage of the
opportunities that the gold market
offers to extract value from the entire
length of the jewellery production
and sale chain and to pursue new
industrial applications for the metal. 

As the third challenge, we must
actively pursue the simultaneous
goals of finding new, low-cost
production ounces and diversifying
and lowering the company’s risk
profile. We have continued to
diversify both geographically and
by orebody type. A full 45 per cent

of our earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation in
the fourth quarter of 2000 came
from predominantly open-pit mines
outside of South Africa.

In addition to these challenges,
there are two additional concerns
which we will continue to address
during 2001. The first is the HIV/AIDS
pandemic which is causing huge
suffering throughout the southern
and central African regions. On our
operations we are confident that we
have programmes in place to respond
effectively to both the needs of
individuals and the operational
imperatives of the organisation.

The second concern relates to
the South African draft Mineral
Development Bill. The government
has published for comment a draft
Bill which aims to fundamentally
revise mining law in South Africa.
We support the restructuring of the
regulation of mining to free the
industry of its apartheid legacy and
the right and duty of government
to regulate the mining industry in
the public interest. We strongly
believe, however, that the proposed
legal framework should not

prejudice existing owners of mineral
rights; with the receptive approach
of the Minister of Minerals and
Energy we are confident that an
enabling legislative environment
can be achieved.

As previously advised, Nicky
Oppenheimer, who served as chairman
of our board with energy and
diligence since the company’s
inception, resigned from the post
in December. We are grateful to him
for his contribution to the company
during its early years and we are
pleased that he has agreed to
continue to serve on the board
as a non-executive member.

Bobby Godsell
Chairman and chief executive officer

Russell Edey
Deputy chairman 

20 February 2001

focus remains on securing short- and long-term
returns for shareholders



the dollar, the rand weakened by
almost 22 per cent to an all time
low of R7.83 to the dollar in late
November. Notwithstanding a
weaker dollar late in 2000 and into
the new year, the rand has shown
little capacity to recover and, early
in 2001, suffered from hedge fund
speculation which saw the currency
fall to a new all time low of just
over R8.00 against the dollar. This

local currency movement in 2000
translated into a real improvement
in the South African spot price
of gold which averaged R62,130 per
kilogram for the year, almost 14 per
cent better than the average
local spot price of R54,711 per
kilogram in 1999.

The year was unusual in the gold
market in that, for the first time
in a number of years, gold sales
by the official sector caused no
evident dislocation or depression
of the gold price. The Washington
Agreement of September 1999 has
had the salutary effect of removing

After sharp movements in
the gold price in 1999,
during the year under
review the spot price

traded for most of the year within
a range of $20 per ounce. At
$279 per ounce, the average spot
price for 2000 was effectively
unchanged from the average price
for the previous year. However, the
overall trend for the year was an
easing of the gold price down
towards a tight range around
$270 per ounce. This is reflected
in the closing price for the year
of $272 per ounce, compared with
the opening price of $288. 

During the year the currency
markets saw considerably more

action than the gold market. Much
of this activity was driven by the
strength of the dollar. The effect of
the dollar’s strength and consequent
weaker rand was exaggerated in
South Africa by regional
considerations which, from time to
time, generated negative concerns
amongst investors and speculators
about the South African currency.
From an opening value of R6.13 to

The market
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strength of dollar was 

exaggerated in S Africa

in stable state
gold market
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from the gold market the negative
speculation about official gold
sales that dogged the market
throughout the 1990s. In addition
to the 400 tonnes of gold sold as
planned by the signatories of and
subscribers to the Washington
Agreement, some 120 to 150 tonnes
are likely to have been sold by non-
signatory countries, an amount of
metal which the market appears to
have absorbed without difficulty.

In contrast to the price
consolidation around $270, there
were two brief rallies in the price
during the year. The first occurred
around speculation about
announcements of revised gold
price hedging policies of a number

of companies in February 2000,
made against the background of
the firmer gold price in the early
part of the year. The other rally
in June and July was triggered
by intervention in the currency
markets on behalf of the euro,
which saw short-lived buying
by speculators in gold.

The physical markets for gold
once again provided important
support at times of price weakness,
and steady offtake at other times.
While final figures for the year are
not yet available, it is likely that
global offtake of the metal will
be a little below the record high
levels of recent years, with a fall
off particularly in investment
demand for gold. Within that global

figure there have been significant
regional shifts in offtake. Gold
demand in the Middle East increased
materially over that of 1999, with
offtake in Turkey almost doubling
year-on-year. Demand in India for
the first three quarters of 2000
was slightly below the figure for
the previous year due to a
combination of circumstances,
including a weaker rupee and higher
oil prices during the year. US gold
offtake was also down, due entirely
to the decline in gold coin sales
compared with the unusual demand
for gold coins in 1999. Excluding
the coin market, offtake of gold
in jewellery in the United States
continued to rise by a modest
amount. While physical demand
for gold in fabrication markets
worldwide does not drive the gold
price on the upside, we believe
that it plays an important role
in underpinning the price on the
downside. Firm physical demand
is thus important for the long-term
health of the gold price.

Looking to 2001, most
commentators see the gold
price in a stable state, with
small likelihood now of radical
weakening. Evolving circumstances
in the currency and interest rate
markets are likely to support
the metal, but the absence of
investment interest in gold
remains an important factor
in the current price trend for
the metal. 

With solid physical support
underlying the market, there should
be opportunities for the price to
rally in response to favourable
news from other markets from
time to time.

solid physical demand will provide
opportunities in the year ahead

for the price to rally

The market (continued)

Eternally popular gold jewellery is now being
styled as a trendy and essential fashion accessory.
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exhibitions of gold jewellery
collections, showcasing gold in
international fashion events such
as the New York Fashion Week,
exhibitions of gold antiquities
from Colombia and southern Africa,
and the announcement of the
development of the Gold of Africa
Museum in Cape Town. Not only do
these competitions and exhibitions
encourage innovative gold jewellery
design, but they also provide design
and technical inspiration and

exposure for goldsmiths around
the globe.

A number of research projects
were conducted in important
markets, including consumer
attitudes towards buying gold
and potential strategies for

repositioning gold, particularly
amongst youth markets, as well
as marketing and selling gold and
gold products via the Internet.
Insights gained as a result will
be incorporated into marketing
initiatives in the future.

AngloGold lobbied to achieve
a deregulated market for gold,
particularly in China, with the aim
of ensuring that gold is allowed
to compete fairly and freely with
other financial assets and
consumer goods. 

In collaboration with other
producers and through the WGC,
dialogue continued with large
holders of gold, specifically
central banks, in an effort to
maintain orderly and mutually
beneficial relationships in the
gold bullion market.

New product development also
received attention during the year
with progress being made in the
refining of a new white gold alloy

AngloGold aims to extract
value from gold wherever
possible throughout its
value chain – from mining

to retailing. The company is
committed to developing the
market for gold and its marketing
programme aims to increase the
desirability of its product, to
sustain and grow demand for gold
and to deregulate the market in
key economies.

During the year:
AngloGold dedicated R82 million

($12 million) towards marketing
initiatives. Of this, R49 million
($7 million) went directly to the
World Gold Council (WGC) as
membership fees. 

AngloGold’s marketing
department was strengthened
by the appointment of staff
with consumer market and brand
experience, supported by
international consultants in key
global markets. The company’s
global gold marketing programme
represents the only significant
effort by a major gold producer
in market development.

A number of high-profile national
and international events were

sponsored, some in collaboration
with the WGC, such as an advertising
campaign in the United States and
a global gold jewellery design
competition, as well as competitions
in India and South Africa. Other
AngloGold-sponsored events included

takes off
marketing
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Gold marketing

the only significant marketing  
by a major gold producer
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and the development of further
industrial uses for gold, as well
as the design and development
of new gold jewellery products.

Technical training at different
levels was undertaken in South
Africa, including a project aimed
at preserving traditional African
goldsmithing designs and
techniques, and incorporating them
into jewellery school curricula.

Some R55 million ($8 million)
was invested in acquiring a 25 per
cent share of OroAfrica, the largest
manufacturer of gold jewellery
in South Africa, which has a
significant export focus on the
United States through a 50:50 joint
venture with a major Italian gold
chain manufacturer. While the
investment was made on solid
commercial grounds, the
shareholding offers important
strategic benefits and will be used
to encourage the creation of new
jewellery products relevant to
modern developed markets and
to promote the branding of gold
jewellery manufacturing in a
meaningful way.

The African Gold Zone, Africa’s
first internationally competitive
gold jewellery manufacturing
facility, was launched at Rand
Refinery Limited, the world’s largest
gold refiner. The zone, which is a
collaborative effort involving
AngloGold, the Rand Refinery and the
South African Department of Trade
and Industry, will house a number
of gold jewellery manufacturing
businesses of different sizes, a
hive for independent craftsmen
and a training facility.

A major thrust of the year
was the investment in the creation

of an e-commerce business in gold,
GoldAvenue. A joint effort between
AngloGold, JP Morgan and PAMP
(Produits Artistiques de Metaux
Precieux), GoldAvenue is an
independent venture that will offer
a comprehensive range of products
and services for businesses,
investors and consumers in the
gold market, primarily through
the Internet.

During the year ahead AngloGold
will dedicate R123 million
($17 million) towards an expanded
worldwide marketing campaign,
both on its own and through its
contribution to the WGC, focusing
on marketing projects that will
have the most direct, tangible and
positive impact on gold demand.

focus on new
product development
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Group operating results
Rand/Metric

2000 1999 1998

Underground operations

Area mined – m2 – 000 3,900 3,880 4,275 

Tonnes milled – 000 – reef 21,126 21,055 22,155

– waste 167 649 241

– total 21,293 21,704 22,396

Yield – g/t – reef 8.02 8.31 8.16 

– waste 0.54 0,81 0.88 

– average 7.96 8.09 8.08 

Gold produced – kg – reef 169,468 174,994 180,831 

– waste 91 527 212 

– total 169,559 175,521 181,043 

Productivity

g/employee – target 209 222 174 

– actual 193 210 184 

m2/employee  – target 4.62 4.62 4.31 

– actual 4.45 4.21 4.07

Surface and dump reclamation

Tonnes treated – 000 50,289 54,354 57,511 

Yield – g/t 0.32 0.30 0.30

Gold produced – kg 15,870 16,165 17,025

Open-pit operations

Tonnes mined – 000 49,121 47,880 7,527 

Stripping ratio – t (mined-treated)/t treated 1.08 2.51 1.63

Tonnes treated – 000 23,601 13,630 2,863

Yield – g/t 1.69 1.72 2.54

Gold produced – kg 39,866 23,480 7,281 

Total

Gold produced – kg 225,295 215,166 205,349

Revenue – R/kg sold 67,158 61,830 58,830 

Total cash costs – R/kg produced 46,404 41,979 39,944

Total production costs – R/kg produced 53,334 47,842 46,060

Financial results

Rand million 

Operating profit 3,273 3,088 2,609

Net profit 1,116 2,654 1,711

Headline earnings 1,773 1,986 1,534

Net capital expenditure 2,008 1,330 556

Financial ratios

Capital employed – Rm 22,060 17,385 12,634

Return – net profit before interest paid – % 8 20 15

Return – headline earnings before interest paid – % 12 15 14

Equity – Rm 15,199 12,761 12,102

Return – net profit – % 8 21 14

Return – headline earnings – % 13 16 13

Debt – Rm 8,762 5,098 1,081

Cash – Rm 1,477 3,031 1,492

Net debt (cash) – Rm 7,285 2,067 (411)

Net debt (cash) to equity – % 48 16 (3)

Debt to equity – % 58 40 9

Interest cover – times 9 12 23

Glossary of terms on page 104.
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Group operating results
Dollar/Imperial

2000 1999 1998

Underground operations
Area mined – ft2 – 000 41,985 41,764 46,026

Tons milled – 000 – reef 23,287 23,209 24,422

– waste 184 715 265

– total 23,471 23,924 24,687

Yield – oz/t – reef 0.234 0.242 0.238

– waste 0.016 0.024 0.026

– average 0.232 0.236 0.236

Gold produced – oz 000 – reef 5,448 5,626 5,814

– waste 3 17 7

– total 5,451 5,643 5,821

Productivity
oz/employee – target 6.71 7.14 5.59

– actual 6.21 6.75 5.92

Surface and dump reclamation
Tons treated – 000 55,436 59,915 63,395

Yield – oz/t 0.009 0.009 0.009

Gold produced – oz 000 510 520 547

Open-pit operations
Tons mined – 000 54,146 52,779 8,297

Stripping ratio – t (mined-treated)/t treated 1.08 2.51 1.63

Tons treated – 000 26,016 15,024 3,156

Yield – oz/t 0.049 0.050 0.074

Gold produced – oz 000 1,282 755 234

Total
Gold produced – oz 000 7,243 6,918 6,602

Revenue – $/oz sold 308 315 333

Total cash costs – $/oz produced 213 213 225

Total production costs – $/oz produced 245 244 259

Rand/US Dollar average exchange rate 6.78 6.11 5.53

Financial results

Dollar million 

Operating profit 468 505 469

Net profit 166 434 318

Headline earnings 254 325 277

Net capital expenditure 296 216 101

Financial ratios

Capital employed – $m 2,912 2,825 2,148

Return – net profit before interest paid – % 8 20 15

Return – headline earnings before interest paid  – % 12 15 14

Equity – $m 2,006 2,073 2,058

Return – net profit – % 8 21 14

Return – headline earnings – % 13 16 13

Debt – $m 1,156 828 814

Cash – $m 195 493 254

Net debt (cash) – $m 961 335 (70)

Net debt (cash) to equity – % 48 16 (3)

Debt to equity – % 58 40 9

Interest cover – times 9 12 23

Glossary of terms on page 104.



cent on 1999) at an average cash
cost of $124 per ounce (17 per cent
lower than last year). 

During the year:
Sadiola had an excellent year,

with record gold production up
13 per cent to 611,000 ounces
(232,000 attributable ounces). Total
cash costs decreased to a record low
of $114 per ounce. The life-of-mine
currently extends to 2007, with a
resource base of 10 million ounces
after which there should be a
further two years of production
from currently inferred resources
and marginal dump treatment.

In February, the AngloGold
board approved $76 million for
the construction and development
of the Yatela mine, which AngloGold
will manage. Located some
25 kilometres north of Sadiola,

this mine will produce
230,000 ounces of gold per
annum with a current life-of-mine
of six years. The project is on
schedule and within budget, with
mining having begun in December.
The heap leach pad and general
infrastructure is at an advanced
stage. The first gold pour is
scheduled for June 2001.

On 15 December 2000 AngloGold
acquired a 50 per cent interest
in the Geita mine in northern
Tanzania for $205 million and
additional project finance of
$67 million. Geita has published
reserves of 7.8 million ounces and
resources of 14.6 million ounces,
including 2 million ounces from
the Nyamulilima Hill property.

The first gold was poured on
8 June 2000 with 177,000 ounces
of gold produced during the year.

Despite a languishing
gold price, AngloGold
has continued to pursue
its diversification and

consolidation goals with a focus on
realising value rather than volume.
In South Africa this involved
negotiating the sale of two mines
as well as an increasing focus on
enhancing productivity through both
labour practices and new technology.
This is in line with AngloGold’s
strategy of concentrating on higher
margin, long-life operations through
asset optimisation.

The year also saw the integration
into AngloGold of the newly acquired
Australian operations. Significant
progress was made with the
development of the African portfolio
with three new operations being
added. The Africa region continued
to perform beyond expectations
and is now the second largest
contributor to AngloGold’s earnings.
The North and South American
operations performed well during
the year.

Africa

The Africa region comprises
joint ventures Sadiola mine
(38 per cent interest),
Yatela mine (40 per cent

interest), Morila mine (40 per cent
interest) in Mali and Geita mine
(50 per cent interest) in Tanzania, as
well as the wholly-owned Navachab
mine in Namibia. Geita will be
accounted for with effect from 2001.
These operations (excluding Geita)
treated 3.5 million attributable
tonnes, at an average grade of
3.2 grams per tonne, producing
366,000 ounces of gold (up 40 per

diversity
global
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Review of operations

laying new foundations 
in Africa

Holding her 24-carat gold coated torch, the
statue of liberty is a global icon of freedom
and a better life.
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The project is being managed
jointly by AngloGold and Ashanti.

In addition to contributing the
Nyamulilima Hill prospect to the
Geita resource base, AngloGold
has entered into a broad strategic
alliance with Ashanti to seek
opportunities to work together
throughout Africa.

The purchase of a 40 per cent
interest in the Morila mine in Mali
from Randgold Resources for
$132 million and project finance of
$36 million was announced in July.
AngloGold is the operator of the
mine. The first gold was poured
on schedule in October 2000. By
the end of December the mine
had exceeded expectations and
recovered 142,000 ounces
(57,000 attributable ounces)
at a remarkable total cash cost
of $88 per ounce. The mine’s
average annual production rate
will be 500,000 ounces at a total
cash cost of $127 per ounce
over its ten-year life.

Navachab mine in Namibia
had an excellent year, with annual
production of 77,000 ounces, the
highest since the mine’s inception
in 1989. The mine was declared
a continuous operation by the
Namibian Minister of Labour and
agreements were finalised with
the representative union on Sunday
and public holiday payments.

Australasia

AngloGold’s Australian
assets comprise the
wholly-owned Sunrise Dam
mine in Western Australia

and operations at the Pine Creek
mine (made up of Union Reefs and

Brocks Creek mines) in the Northern
Territory, as well as interests in the
joint ventures at the Boddington
mine (33.33 per cent interest) in
Western Australia and the Tanami
mine (40 per cent interest) in the
Northern Territory. 

These operations treated
(attributable to AngloGold)
9.3 million tonnes, at an average
grade of 1.75 grams per tonne,
producing 524,000 ounces of gold
at an average total cash cost of
A$390 ($226) per ounce. 

During the year:
Cyclonic rains in the northern

and western areas of the continent
reduced production in the first half
of the year. The Tanami and Pine
Creek operations were the worst
affected. A strong recovery in
production was achieved during

the second half of the year,
reaching record levels.

Operations at Brocks Creek
mine ceased during the year and
rehabilitation of the site is well
advanced.

A continued strong performance
at Sunrise Dam has resulted in
increased production and cash costs
at A$298 ($172) per ounce. In April
2000, the board approved capital
expenditure of $63 million for
the further development of the
operation, involving a major
expansion of the open-pit, coupled
with an increase in the plant
capacity to 2.5 million tonnes per
annum. This will extend the life
of the open-pit through to
around 2007, during which time
about 2.3 million ounces of gold
will be produced. The project will
be financed by internally generated

bedding down the 
Australian operations

Review of operations (continued)
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funds. Drilling is continuing to
define more clearly the significant
underground potential that has
already been identified and is likely
to further extend the life of the
operation. 

The oxide mining operation at
Boddington which began in 1987
is now in the final phase of
its life. The feasibility study for
the Boddington expansion project,
which is based on the 19.7 million
ounce basement ore resource and
has the potential to add a further
19 years to the mine’s life, has been
completed and is under review by
the joint venture partners. 

A restructuring of the
corporate office activities and the
move of the office from Melbourne
to Perth during the first quarter of
2001 will result in cost savings and
improved delivery of services to
the operating units. In addition,
a refocusing of exploration will
see a reduction in field
exploration personnel.

North America

The North American
operations comprise a
70 per cent interest in
the Jerritt Canyon Joint

Venture and the Cripple Creek &
Victor Gold Mining Company, in
which AngloGold has a 67 per cent
interest (with a 100 per cent
interest in gold produced) subject
to contractual obligations by the
joint venture partners. 

These operations treated
(attributable to AngloGold)
0.5 million underground tonnes
and 10.3 million open-pit tonnes
at an average grade of 13.93 grams
per underground tonne and
0.75 grams per open-pit tonne,
producing 496,000 ounces of
gold at an average cash cost
of $207 per ounce.

During the year:
Both the Jerritt Canyon and

Cripple Creek mines were affected

by adverse weather conditions and
mechanical difficulties in the first
half of the year which resulted in
reduced production. A strong
performance in the second half
returned both operations to
budgeted production levels at 
year-end.

During the third quarter, Jerritt
Canyon entered into an agreement
to purchase 66,000 attributable
ore tonnes from Cortez Gold Mines
and to process this ore at the Jerritt
Canyon facilities to produce 32,000
attributable ounces. The agreement
further provides for the purchase of
276,500 attributable ore tonnes
in 2001 and 2002 to produce
103,000 attributable ounces
during this period. 

Development at the East Cresson
mine at Cripple Creek continued
during the year with approval for
environmental permit Amendment
No. 8, which allows for expanded
operations through to 2013,
received in August.

Phase 3 of the leach pad
extension at Cripple Creek was
completed during the third quarter,
with the project coming in under
budget and ahead of schedule.

Relocation of Highway 67
at Cripple Creek was begun in
the fourth quarter. This will
allow for continued expansion
of the leach pad.

South Africa

AngloGold’s wholly-owned
South African operations
comprised 13 underground
mines located in three

geographic areas as well as Ergo,
a surface metallurgical operation.

production steady
in North America
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These are:
the TauTona, Deelkraal,

Elandsrand, Mponeng and
Savuka mines near Carletonville,
straddling the North West and
Gauteng provinces. (In December
2000, agreement was reached to sell
the Elandsrand and Deelkraal mines); 

the Great Noligwa, Kopanang,
Tau Lekoa and Moab Khotsong mines
near Orkney, in North West
Province;

the Tshepong, Matjhabeng,
Bambanani and Joel mines around
Welkom in the Free State; and

a metallurgical treatment
operation, Ergo, near Johannesburg
in Gauteng Province.

These operations treated
19.5 million underground tonnes,
at an average grade of 7.82 grams
per tonne and 50.3 million surface
tonnes at an average grade of
0.32 grams per tonne. Most of
the surface tonnes were treated
at Ergo at an average grade of
0.24 grams per tonne. In total
this produced 5,418,000 ounces
of gold at an average cash cost
of $217 per ounce. 

During the year:
At the end of the first quarter,

five South African mines – Great
Noligwa, TauTona, Elandsrand,
Bambanani and Joel – were
identified as performing below
expectations. Of these, Great
Noligwa and TauTona had recovered
by year-end. Elandsrand (with
Deelkraal) is being sold, while
Joel and Bambanani continued
to underperform and will receive
further attention in 2001. 

Modest increases in
productivity were achieved,
despite a reduction in production.
Great Noligwa, Tau Lekoa,
Matjhabeng, Tshepong and Savuka
performed very well, improving on
both area mined per employee and
grams produced per employee
indices as a result of team-based
training and other productivity
enhancing initiatives. 

Rand per kilogram cash costs
were 8 per cent higher year-on-year
mostly as a result of the 6 per cent
lower gold production. Dollar
denominated unit costs decreased
as a result of the devaluation of
the rand. The Great Noligwa,
TauTona and Kopanang mines,
which contribute some 80 per
cent of South African earnings,
performed well during the year. 

Despite a poor performance in
the first quarter as a result of the
intersection with the Jersey fault,
the Great Noligwa mine showed
continuing improvement,
maintaining its role as the largest
revenue generator in the group.

TauTona mine performed slightly
below expectations during the year
owing to infrastructure problems.
These have been addressed in a
R36 million project which is 50 per
cent complete and the mine is now
operating at expected levels with
fewer problems.

Kopanang mine achieved its
production targets, although
not quite meeting the record
production levels set in the
previous exceptional year.

The Savuka, Tau Lekoa and
Tshepong mines continued their
steady performance. 

Matjhabeng’s performance
improved, albeit off the previous
year’s low base. Matjhabeng’s Kudu
shaft was closed during the second
quarter and operations at that
mine’s Nyala and Sable shafts have

Review of operations (continued)

consolidation continues with a

focus on value rather than

volume at SA operations 
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been scaled back in anticipation of
closure in 2001.

Agreement in principle was
reached with Harmony Gold Mining
Company on the sale of Elandsrand
and Deelkraal mines for R1 billion
($132 million) cash. As a result, gold
production from the South African
operations will decline by some
500,000 ounces and cash costs
will reduce by about $9 per ounce.
The sale will also reduce AngloGold’s
capital commitments in South
Africa by R792 million over the
next six years.

Gold production declined at
Mponeng as a result of reduced
throughput and as a number of key
high-grade areas were affected
by seismicity. The withdrawal of
permission to blast more than
once per shift following the 1999
methane explosion also affected
development and reduced flexibility.
This permission was restored in
August and development rates
have returned to normal.

Both Bambanani and Joel
continued to produce unsatisfactory
results throughout 2000. An
unexpected drop in the average
grade of the Joel orebody, plus the
loss of ore reserves owing to the
Klippan washout, reduced mining
flexibility. An increased volume was
not sufficient to counter the lower
grades. If the performance of these
two mines cannot be corrected,
decisive action will be taken to
close or sell them.

Exceptionally high rainfalls and
numerous power failures restricted
gold output at Ergo.

Work continued on four major
projects. The Moab Khotsong project
will lead to the establishment of

a new mine, while the Mponeng,
Elandsrand and Joel projects will
extend the lives of existing mines by
providing access to deeper reserves.
Annual expenditure amounted to
R951 million ($110.7 million)
with a forecast expenditure of
R638 million ($81.8 million) in 2001.

Following a recovery and strong
performance by most operations in
the final quarter, the South African
operations are well positioned for
delivery in the year ahead. 

South America

The South American
operations comprise the
wholly-owned Morro Velho
mine and a 50 per cent

interest in the Serra Grande mines
in Brazil, as well as a 46.25 per cent
interest in Cerro Vanguardia mine
in southern Argentina.

These operations treated
(attributable to AngloGold)
1.7 million tonnes, at an average
grade of 8.05 grams per tonne,
producing 439,000 ounces of
gold at an average cash cost
of $144 per ounce.

During the year:
Attributable production

increased by 3.3 per cent during
the year as a result of increased
volumes at Morro Velho and better
grades at both Morro Velho and
Serra Grande.

Cerro Vanguardia was affected
by bad weather conditions in the
second quarter, but managed to
make up for lost production by
year-end. Work is in progress to
replace the intake portion of the
plant at Cerro Vanguardia before
the start of the next rainy season
in April, which should eliminate
similar problems during periods
of bad weather.

Morro Velho’s Espírito Santo
mine was mined out and production
was replaced with ore from
Santa Cruz.

Production at Morro Velho’s
Cuiabá mine improved owing
to better mining conditions,
the introduction of new blasting
techniques and improved
maintenance of the trackless fleet.
Work has progressed well with the
installation of an hydraulic backfill
system to replace the mechanical
system currently in use and a
communication system is being
installed which will further
improve production.

Serra Grande succeeded in
increasing throughput by 18 per cent
for the year and gold production
by 23 per cent with no additional
investment. This level of production
is expected to continue.

A gravity circuit has been
installed in the Serra Grande plant
which should improve overall
recoveries in 2001. 

continuing improvement
in South America
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Review of operations (continued)

Average
Tonnes grade Gold Cash

treated recovered production costs

(million) (g/t) (kg) (000 oz) (R/kg) ($/oz)

Operation

Africa

Geita – – – – – – 

Morila 0.2 8.81 1,762 57 21,627 88 

Navachab 1.3 1.82 2,399 77 42,249 189 

Sadiola 2.0 3.56 7,227 232 25,393 114 

Yatela – – – – – – 

Australasia

Boddington 2.9 0.82 2,394 77 48,122 216 

Brocks Creek 1.2 1.26 1,463 47 43,799 201 

Sunrise Dam 1.8 3.87 7,011 225 38,466 172 

Tanami 0.6 2.59 1,493 48 63,931 286

Union Reefs 2.8 1.40 3,939 127 61,363 274 

North America

Cripple Creek & Victor 10.3 0.75 7,702 248 42,454 190 

Jerritt Canyon 0.6 13.93 7,724 248 48,730 215 

South Africa

Vaal River 

Great Noligwa 2.5 12.32 30,204 971 31,966 144 

Kopanang 2.1 7.04 14,973 481 48,027 215 

Tau Lekoa 2.0 4.98 9,783 315 48,166 216 

Moab Khotsong*

West Wits 

Deelkraal 0.8 7.17 5,434 175 65,200 294 

Elandsrand 1.7 6.37 11,008 355 62,597 281 

Mponeng 1.6 8.05 12,489 402 53,000 238 

Savuka 1.0 8.39 8,468 272 54,927 247 

TauTona 1.6 11.30 18,643 599 38,288 172

Free State 

Bambanani 1.9 7.15 13,717 441 60,558 272 

Joel 1.4 4.61 6,529 210 64,085 288 

Matjhabeng 1.6 7.19 11,444 368 63,754 287 

Tshepong 1.4 7.36 9,962 320 52,607 236 

Ergo 42.2 0.24 9,969 321 53,818 242 

South America

Cerro Vanguardia 0.4 11.22 4,101 132 32,742 146

Morro Velho 1.0 6.79 6,558 211 30,169 134 

Serra Grande 0.4 8.15 2,999 96 25,043 112 

* Moab Khotsong is a new mine in its development phase. The mine is expected to commence production in 2003 and attain full production of 1.6 million tonnes of
ore treated per annum by 2006. Life-of-mine cash costs are expected to be $130 per ounce.

Admired for its beauty and craftmanship, this
Balian bride’s golden treasures provide security
and status in her new role.
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South North South

Africa Africa America America Australia Total

Rand/Metric

Underground and surface operations

Area mined – m2 – 000 3,241 – – – – 3,241

Tonnes milled – 000 69,296 – 984 1,216 – 71,496

Yield – g/t (underground) 7.97 – 10.03 7.24 – 8.31

Production – kg 146,911 – 9,874 8,804 – 165,589

Open-pit and underground operations

Tonnes milled/treated – 000 – 7,305 11,494 484 8,763 28,046

Yield – g/t – 3,44 0,71 9,23 1,96 1,96

Production – kg – 25,162 8,112 4,467 17,193 54,934

Total

Production – kg 146,911 25,162 17,986 13,271 17,193 220,523

Total cash costs – R/kg produced 49,275 36,924 49,657 35,541 55,402 47,548

Net capital expenditure– R million 891 354 520 225 433 2,423

Productivity index

Grams per employee  208 1,388 2,445 576 2,123 289

Dollar/Imperial

Underground and surface operations

Area mined – ft2 – 000 34,886 – – – – 34,886

Tons milled – 000 76,386 – 1,085 1,340 – 78,811

Yield – oz/t (underground) 0.23 – 0.29 0.21 – 0.24

Production – oz – 000 4,723 – 317 283 – 5,323

Open-pit and underground operations

Tons milled/treated – 000 – 8,052 12,670 533 9,660 30,915

Yield – oz/t – 0.10 0.02 0.27 0.06 0.06

Production – oz – 000 – 809 261 143 553 1,766

Total

Production – oz – 000 4,723 809 578 426 553 7,089

Total cash costs – $/oz produced 196 147 198 142 221 190

Net capital expenditure– $ million 114 45 67 29 56 311

Productivity index

Ounces per employee 6.68 44.62 78.62 18.53 68.24 9.31

One-year forecast 2001



An upward revision of the South
African surface resources following
a study carried out during the year,
adding some 7.5 million ounces.

An increase in resources due to
the acquisitions of Morila and Geita,
adding another 7.8 million ounces.

Ongoing exploration programmes
adding some 2 million ounces of
resources.

Ore reserves
Ore reserves, estimated using a gold
price of $300 per ounce, show a
year-on-year decrease of some
18.9 million ounces to 87.6 million
ounces.

The reduction in reserves
relates principally to the 
following:

Depletions account for
11.0 million ounces. However, it
must be noted that this arose over
a period longer than one year, as
the South African reserves reported
in 1999 were as at 30 April 1999,
while all other ore reserves were
as at 31 December 1999.

Changes in geological and
evaluation interpretative models
and abandonment of pillars and
workings, primarily in South Africa,
resulted in a net decrease
of 4.5 million ounces.

As at 31 December 2000,
AngloGold had ore reserves
of 87.6 million ounces
and mineral resources

of 397.8 million ounces,
estimated at a gold price of
$300 per ounce. The reserve is
relatively price insensitive; using
a $270 per ounce price assumption
indicates a reduction of some 3 per
cent in the overall reserve.

Mineral resources and ore
reserves are reported in
accordance with the Australasian
Code for Reporting of Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves
(the JORC Code).

During the year:
AngloGold has been aggressively
following a risk reduction strategy,
which is evident in the change in
distribution of reserves, both in
relation to the orebody type and
geographical location. Some 16 per
cent of the 1999 ore reserves were
surface or available for open-pit
mining; this has increased to 26 per
cent as at 31 December 2000. In
1999 South African ore reserves
constituted 85 per cent of the
total; this has reduced to 72 per
cent in 2000. 

Mineral resources
Mineral resources have increased
by 33.1 million ounces to
397.8 million ounces at the end
of 2000. Components of this net
change include:

Revaluations stemming from the
application of a uniform resource
classification system and improved
modelling techniques in South
Africa, resulting in an additional
15.6 million ounces.

deposits
quality

Resources and reserves
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Resources and reserves (continued)

Revisions to life-of-mine
plans, taking into account economic
assumptions such as gold price
and production costs, have
resulted in a reduction in ore
reserves of 11.4 million ounces.
These factors have had a negative
impact on most of the South
African mines, particularly
Bambanani, Joel, Matjhabeng,
Savuka and Mponeng.

These depletions were offset
by an increase in reserves of
5.9 million ounces associated
with the acquisitions of Morila
and Geita, and 3.4 million ounces
resulting from the new Yatela
project and the completion of
the Boddington expansion
feasibility study.

Competent persons
Competent persons, designated
in terms of the JORC Code and
taking corporate responsibility for
the reporting of AngloGold’s mineral
resources, are:

V A Chamberlain*, MSc (Mining
Engineering), BSc (Hons) (Geology),
MAusIMM, 15 years’ experience.

M F O’Brien, BSc (Hons)
(Geology), Pr.Sci.Nat., MAusIMM,
21 years’ experience.

Designated competent persons
taking corporate responsibility for
the reporting of ore reserves are:

B W Guenther**, BSc
(Mining Engineering), 20 years’
experience.

D L Worrall, ACSM, MAusIMM,
20 years’ experience.

* Pr.Sci.Nat. application being processed

** AusIMM application being processed

Notes
A detailed breakdown of the mineral
resources and ore reserves, together
with plans of the South African
operations, is provided in

a supplementary statistics
document, obtainable from the
AngloGold offices at the addresses
given on the inside back cover of
the report. This information is also
provided in the annual report
section of the AngloGold website
(www.anglogold.com) and may be
downloaded as .pdf files using
Adobe Acrobat Reader.

Rounding of figures in this
report and in the supplementary
statistics document may result in
minor computational discrepancies.

Figures quoted are inclusive
of Elandsrand and Deelkraal
(7.4 million ounces of reserves and
24.3 million ounces of resources).
Agreement was reached in December
2000 to sell these mines.
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Mineral resources*

Metric Imperial

Contained Contained 
Tonnes Grade gold Tons Grade gold
million g/t tonnes million oz/t million oz

Africa** Measured 35.5 3.02 106.9 39.1 0.088 3.4 
Indicated 115.6 2.50 288.5 127.4 0.073 9.3 

Inferred 127.5 1.65 209.7 140.5 0.048 6.7 

Total 278.5 2.17 605.2 307.0 0.063 19.5 

Australasia** Measured 65.7 1.09 71.6 72.4 0.032 2.3 
Indicated 154.8 1.25 193.7 170.6 0.036 6.2 

Inferred 99.5 1.24 123.3 109.7 0.036 4.0 

Total 320.0 1.21 388.6 352.7 0.035 12.5 

North America** Measured 158.2 1.11 176.2 174.4 0.032 5.7 
Indicated 116.9 1.24 144.6 128.9 0.036 4.6 

Inferred 84.5 1.17 98.9 93.1 0.034 3.2 

Total 359.6 1.17 419.8 396.4 0.034 13.5 

South Africa Measured 410.3 2.20 901.3 452.3 0.064 29.0 
Indicated 1,148.6 4.64 5,329.0 1,266.1 0.135 171.3 

Inferred 873.5 4.88 4,264.4 962.9 0.142 137.1 

Total 2,432.4 4.31 10,494.7 2,681.3 0.126 337.4 

South America** Measured 16.9 5.51 93.0 18.6 0.161 3.0 
Indicated 28.5 6.16 175.5 31.4 0.180 5.6 

Inferred 32.6 6.01 196.0 35.9 0.175 6.3 

Total 78.0 5.96 464.5 86.0 0.174 14.9 

Totals** Measured 686.6 1.96 1,349.0 756.8 0.057 43.4 
Indicated 1,564.4 3.92 6,131.4 1,724.5 0.114 197.1 

Inferred 1,217.6 4.02 4,892.4 1,342.2 0.117 157.3 

Total 3,468.5 3.57 12,372.8 3,823.4 0.104 397.8 

* Includes proved and probable ore reserves
** Resources attributable to AngloGold

Ore reserves

Metric Imperial

Contained Contained 
Tonnes Grade gold Tons Grade gold
million g/t tonnes million oz/t million oz

Africa** Proved 23.7 3.54 83.9 26.1 0.103 2.7 
Probable 42.5 3.95 168.0 46.8 0.115 5.4 

Total 66.2 3.80 251.8 73.0 0.111 8.1 

Australasia** Proved 49.3 1.11 54.8 54.3 0.032 1.8 
Probable 104.4 1.30 135.8 115.1 0.038 4.4 

Total 153.8 1.24 190.6 169.5 0.036 6.1 

North America** Proved 93.7 1.28 120.2 103.3 0.037 3.9 
Probable 66.7 1.04 69.3 73.5 0.030 2.2 

Total 160.4 1.18 189.5 176.8 0.034 6.1 

South Africa Proved 172.1 2.16 371.0 189.7 0.063 11.9 
Probable 192.0 8.34 1,600.7 211.6 0.243 51.5 

Total 364.1 5.41 1,971.7 401.4 0.158 63.4 

South America** Proved 6.7 8.19 55.2 7.4 0.239 1.8 
Probable 8.0 8.37 66.9 8.8 0.244 2.2 

Total 14.7 8.29 122.1 16.2 0.242 3.9 

Totals** Proved 345.7 1.98 685.0 381.1 0.058 22.0 
Probable 413.6 4.93 2,040.8 455.9 0.144 65.6 

Total 759.3 3.59 2,725.8 837.0 0.105 87.6 

** Reserves attributable to AngloGold



exploration team and supported by
regional exploration offices in
South America, Africa, USA and
Australia.

A focused drilling programme
was initiated in Peru on select
AngloGold exploration licences
after an intensive target generation,
evaluation and ranking process.

The resources identified at
Nyamulilima Hill in Tanzania
contributed to the successful
bid to acquire 50 per cent in the
Geita operation from Ashanti
Goldfields.

Additional ounces are required

AngloGold’s global
exploration strategy
seeks to extend the life
of existing operations

and to find new, cost-effective
ounces through in-house
exploration, exploration joint
ventures and the acquisition of
late-stage exploration projects. 

The strategy is funded on
the basis that it will generate
additional mineable ore reserves
capable of providing double digit
returns on investment.

Individual exploration
programmes encompass a series
of sequential stages (see diagram),
involving increased expenditure
commensurate with decreasing
project risk. In areas where
AngloGold does not have
operations, a more significant
discovery will be required in
order to provide the returns
than is the case in areas where
AngloGold has existing operations.
Political, geographical and
infrastructural considerations
are influencing factors.

During the year:
Expenditure on exploration was

R441 million ($63 million) of which
R238 million was spent on near and
in-mine resource growth activity.
Exploration expenditure is
expected to be R359 million
($46 million) during 2001. The
reduction in the exploration budget
is due to a strategic decision to
focus on near and in-mine resource
growth under current market
circumstances.

Exploration continued in
12 countries and on four continents,
directed by the Johannesburg-based

new ounces
effective
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Greater focus

for the Amapari resource in Brazil
to meet AngloGold’s financial
targets. Potential sites have
been identified and will be drill-
tested in 2001.

The Coyote project in the Tanami
region of central Australia has been
drilled intensively and promising
results are expected in 2001.
Note: A review of resource
generating exploration activities
in each of the operating regions
appears in the supplementary
statistics document referred to
on page 24.

Wearing her spectacles of gold, crafted through
the lost wax-casting technique, this Adioukrou
woman presides at a Generations Festival in Ivory
Coast, West Africa.
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Developing and retaining skilled
employees remained an area of
focus, with an emphasis placed on
career planning in all the countries
in which the company operates.
An assessment and repositioning
of the company’s executive and
management education and training
programmes is in progress, with the
aim of more accurately addressing

both the company’s requirements
and individual development needs.

21st century workforce
A range of initiatives to

modernise particularly the South
African operations and to effect
improvements in productivity
continued. The aim is to ensure that
the combination of technology and

human resources is the result of
effective work design and that
remuneration systems reward both
individual and team effort in a
meaningful way. The main thrust
for this 21st century workplace
initiative centres on Projek
Katleho, which involves concerted
application of new technologies
at a site at Kopanang mine.

Outside of South Africa, the
focus continues to be on enhancing
productivity, cost reduction and
improving operational efficiencies
and performance.

Employment equity 
Employment equity – in terms

of race, gender and disability –
remained a focus within the
context of the overall human
resources development strategy.

After extensive consultations
with trade unions and associations
in the South Africa region,
AngloGold submitted a five-year

A ngloGold is developing
a motivated, skilled and
experienced workforce
geared to the needs

of a globally competitive company.
Areas of attention include the
recruitment, retention and
development of employees and,
particularly in South Africa, the
development of a workforce with
the necessary skills, motivation
and structure to resource a 21st
century workplace. Of particular
concern in South Africa is the
management of the effect
of HIV/AIDS, as well as the
implementation of employment
equity plans.

During the year:
Recruitment, retention and
development

Attracting, recruiting and
retaining skilled employees in
particular remained one of the
fundamental human resources
challenges during the year, as the
company competes for talented
individuals in the global employee
market. This challenge is

exacerbated by the negative
sentiment towards mining as a
long-term career opportunity.
Various initiatives are under way
to market career opportunities
within AngloGold – in mining,
metallurgy, engineering,
information technology and a range
of other disciplines – as attractive
options to job seekers.

diversity work
making 
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Human resources

towards effective work 
design
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plan in compliance with the newly
promulgated Employment Equity
Act. Aspects of the plan include
the AngloGold Employment Equity
Philosophy, monitoring of the
implementation of the plan and
an analysis of employment policies,
procedures and practices. Monitor-
ing will be done on a quarterly
basis through the Employment
Equity Forum, a consultative body
comprising representatives of
management and trade unions.

Employment equity initiatives
for Sadiola, Yatela and Morila
in Mali and Navachab in Namibia
mainly address the development
of citizens to fill positions held by
expatriate personnel. Localisation
programmes involve identifying
candidates with potential,
development of country-specific
sources of skills and quarterly
reporting on progress. In terms of
recently promulgated affirmative
action legislation in Namibia,

Navachab will be required to submit
a three-year affirmative action plan
to the Department of Labour. 

Dealing with HIV/AIDS
AIDS and tuberculosis (which

is exacerbated in the presence of
HIV/AIDS) remain the major health
care challenges faced by the South
African operations.

AngloGold has developed
a comprehensive response
to HIV/AIDS which includes
preventative management,
sensitively dealing with those
affected, assisting affected families
and communities, while at the same
time continuing to function as a
profitable entity.

Campaigns undertaken during
the year include ongoing
preventative management
education programmes, community-
based programmes, research into
behavioural issues and involvement
in research into an HIV vaccine.

A wellness programme has been
established comprising voluntary
counselling, testing and prevention
clinics, offering HIV-positive
employees affordable and effective
therapies to extend productive
life and well-being. AngloGold has
launched a programme to extend
meaningful medical benefits
to rural-based dependants of
employees, which includes
preventative and curative
health care. 



with the Australian Minerals
Industries Research Association.

The DeepMine project - an
initiative by South African gold
mining companies, tertiary
education institutions, government
and labour organisations – concludes
its formal programme in March 2001.
The project was commissioned to
acquire knowledge and develop
technologies for safe, efficient and
profitable deep-level mining. Spin-
offs being applied include borehole
radar and chilled water insulation
systems. The focus will now be on
knowledge transfer, primarily in
mining engineering, rock engineering
and ventilation.

In June, AngloGold and Mintek
(South Africa’s premier metallurgical
research organisation) launched a
research and development initiative
into the industrial applications for
gold. Project AuTEK will initially
focus on applying gold as a catalyst
in air purification and in the
automotive and chemical industries.

AngloGold, with other sponsors, will
host an international conference on
gold catalysis in South Africa during
April 2001 involving researchers and
commercial users of gold.

Within the context of a strategy
to create a 21st century workplace,
a number of initiatives are being
pursued involving the application
of improved and appropriate
technology, the replacement of
repetitious physical effort, the
organisation of work around a
process defined job structure and
multi-skilled, self-directed work
teams. This initiative is centred
on Projek Katleho, involving the
concerted application of new
technologies at a site at
Kopanang mine. 

Progress has been made with
intelligent operating control
systems for metallurgical processes.
These have been successfully
implemented at Jerritt Canyon and
Sadiola and are being installed at
the Mponeng gold plant.

AngloGold’s technology
and innovation programme
comprises in-house
research and development

capabilities and collaborative
projects. 

During the year:
Expenditure amounted to

R54 million ($8 million) and is
expected to be R33 million
($4 million) in 2001.

Some 27 major programmes were
undertaken ranging from exploration,
mining and metallurgy to developing
new industrial applications for gold.
Technology transfer is a priority,
with workshops held in-house to
capitalise on the depth and spread
of technical expertise.

The testing and application of
new technologies, particularly in
South Africa, has been a focus.
Good progress has been made
with rocksplitting, underground
communication systems, the
introduction of drill rigs, the
use of backfill, stope lighting and
in-stope roof bolts. Areas of
attention include the design of
a mining system to support rock-
splitting, increasing the use of drill
rigs, improved stope communications
and ore-pass development systems
as well as rope testing research.

Research has continued with
gravity concentration and resin
technologies and progress has been
made in developing product-secure
treatment methods.

Work continued on oscillating
disc cutter trials in collaboration

excellence
global 
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Technology and innovation

27 major 
projects

Michael Johnson, world record holder, wears 
24-carat gold-coated running shoes for strength
and ultimate reflectivity to complement his
Olympic medal.
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Morila recorded 53 lost time
injuries during construction and
commissioning. Safety is expected
to improve in 2001 as the construc-
tion contractors, who recorded a
large proportion of these accidents,
will have left site. Of concern is
the exceptionally high incidence
of confirmed malaria cases in
the immediate area and experts
have been appointed to research
the problem.

Australasia
The LTIFR for the Australian

operations continued to improve
from 7.4 in 1999 to 5.93 in 2000.

To improve the safe passage of
employees to remote mining and
exploration locations, a thorough

audit of fly-in/fly-out aviation
charters was conducted. The
corrective actions identified will
assist in the development of air
charter safety guidelines.

North America
Jerritt Canyon had an

exceptionally good year, having
recorded no lost time injuries. The
Murray and MCE mines were recog-
nised by the Nevada Mining
Association for exceptional safety
performance in their respective
size categories.

Cripple Creek’s LTIFR increased
from 1.61 in 1999 to 6.92 in
2000, mainly as a result of
contractor injuries, now included
in reporting statistics.

South Africa
AngloGold management and

employees, as well as representa-
tives of trade unions and
government, have maintained their

The safety and health of
employees are fundamental
to the sustainability
of AngloGold’s business.

Management and employees,
in consultation with
representatives of trade unions
and government, are working
towards improving safety and
health in the workplace.

Considerable resources and
effort are dedicated to identifying
and implementing best practices
across the company.

During the year:

Africa
Navachab mine in Namibia

retained its five-star rating,
following another year of
exceptionally good safety and
health performance. The mine had
only two lost time injuries and
a Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate
per million hours worked (LTIFR)
of 1.34.

Sadiola achieved a National
Occupational Safety Association
(NOSA) five-star rating in December
2000. The mine had an excellent
year with only two lost time
injuries and an LTIFR of
0.81 compared with 3.06 in 1999.

Yatela recorded only five
lost time injuries during the
year. The Yatela team has adopted
Sadiola’s safety systems, including
the zero tolerance approach to
safety.

focus of
attention
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Safety and health

best performance  
on record

With its intrinsic value and enduring qualities,
gold has been used for centuries to adorn places
of worship and in rituals of faith.
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Safety and health (continued)

focus on the improvement of the
safety and health of employees, and
the performance has again been the
best on record.

While considerable resources
have been dedicated to improving
safety and health performance,
49 people lost their lives at
AngloGold’s operations as a result
of work-related accidents. The
significant improvement in the
Fatal Injury Frequency Rate (FIFR)
has been underpinned by a 20 per
cent reduction in the number of
lost time and reportable injuries
recorded. The objective remains
to eliminate fatal accidents.

In January of 2000, the Mine
Health and Safety Council
introduced a number of safety
awards recognising excellence in
safety on South African mines.
TauTona (one of the deepest mines
in the world) won the “Safety
Achievement Flag” in the ultra deep
gold and platinum mine category.

Four AngloGold mines obtained
one million fatality-free shifts
status and Tshepong mine was fatal
accident-free for the year. 

Falls of ground remained the
biggest single cause of serious
accidents. Whilst marginal
improvements have been made
to the number of lost time
injuries due to falls of ground, the
number of serious injuries due to
seismically-induced falls of ground

has been reduced by 25 per cent.
Work is continuing to effect further
improvement.

A follow-up review by an
international safety and health
expert was concluded in December
2000, suggesting further
refinements to AngloGold’s strategy
to ensure consolidation and
improvement and a permanent
change in culture. The review
commended the progress made with
the all-round improvement in
accident rates since 1998, noting
that structures were now in place
to ensure that health and safety is
properly addressed and managed.

Moab Khotsong mine continued
its excellent record with an
LTIFR of 5.44, below the Ontario
benchmark. Great Noligwa, with
an LTIFR of 7.43, has improved
significantly.

Occupational health
Occupational health services

were provided to AngloGold
employees at three fully equipped
occupational health centres, each
staffed by an occupational medical
practitioner, professional nurses,
audiologists and other support
staff.

During 2000, 13,006 initial,
68,215 periodical and 14,007 exit
medical examinations were
performed. 

Although occupational lung
diseases (OLD) and noise induced
hearing loss (NIHL) remain challenges,
2000 saw a heartening reduction in
new cases certified. 1,986 cases of
OLD (2,682 per 100,000 employees)
were certified by the Medical
Bureau for Occupational Diseases
in 2000. This is an improvement on
the 1999 figure of 2,585 new cases
(3,093 per 100,000). Some 1,451
employees (1,960 per 100,000 )
were compensated for NIHL in 2000
which is a significant improvement
on the 1,873 new cases recorded in
1999 (2,603 per 100,000), bearing
testimony to the increasing
effectiveness of the hearing
conservation programme.

Aurum Health Research, a
subsidiary of AngloGold Health
Service, continued to provide
input into refining the prevention,
detection and treatment aspects
of OLD.

A particular highlight has been
the implementation of a process
which will ensure the fair and

South African safety statistics

Type of injury Lost time Reportable Fatal

2000 1999 % change 2000 1999 % change 2000 1999 % change

Number of injuries 2,482 3,088 -20 1,429 1,787 -20 49 74 -35

Frequency rate per million 

hours worked 11.98 14.35 -16 6.90 8.31 -16 0.23 0.34 -29

improvement and permanent 
change in culture
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effective management of employees
unable to continue in their current
occupations as a consequence
of ill health. Some 1,115 cases were
considered in terms of the process
with 348 employees being
transferred into other substantive
occupations within AngloGold.
Retraining of the remainder will
assist in their finding employment
outside of the mining industry.

South America
Cerro Vanguardia mine achieved

a four-star rating by NOSA during
the last quarter of the year. The
mine’s laboratory activities
received an ISO 9002 rating. The
LTIFR for Cerro Vanguardia Mine
improved dramatically year-on-year
from 17.88 to 5.35.

At both Serra Grande and Morro
Velho mines progress has been made
in the implementation of the NOSA

safety system and a target of
a four-star grading has been set
for the end of 2001.

The previous negative trend at
Serra Grande for LTIFR was reversed
as the mine reduced its rate from
5.64 to 4.34, an improvement of
23 per cent, and well below the
Ontario benchmark.

The LTIFR rate at Morro Velho
mine deteriorated to 9.61 mainly
due to the inclusion of contractor
injuries not previously included
in reports. In December the mine
experienced its first fatal
accident in four years. Safety
performance is expected to
improve during the year ahead.

performance expected to improve 
in year ahead
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Environment

Australasia
Following the acquisition

of Acacia Resources in January,
AngloGold has continued its
commitment to the Australian
Minerals Industry Code for
Environmental Management. 

A thorough audit of cyanide
management in the Australian
operations was conducted and
further improvements have been
made to the  management systems.

North America
Permits for expanded mining at

the Cripple Creek operation, which
will double the leach pad capacity,
were granted in August with the

unanimous approval of the Colorado
Mined Land Reclamation Board.

Success was achieved – in
consultation with business and
community leaders – in opposing a
proposed Colorado ballot initiative
that sought to ban surface mining
of gold ore processed using heap
leach technology.

South Africa
Water quality management

remained a particular focus for
the year. The evaluation of various
water treatment techniques was
undertaken in collaboration with
the Council for Scientific and
Industrial Research (CSIR).

AngloGold’s long-term
business success
depends on finding a
balance between mineral

development and the conservation
of the natural and social
environments in which the company
operates. In the planning, design
and operation of its business
the company is mindful of its
commitment to sustainable
development. AngloGold strives
to meet these challenges in all
its operations around the globe.

During the year:
AngloGold appointed

an executive officer for the
environment, reporting directly
to the CEO, reflecting AngloGold’s
commitment to cultivating a
corporate culture of continually
improving environmental
performance, fulfilling the
company’s role as a responsible
corporate citizen and providing
environmental leadership.

Africa
An annual external

environmental audit confirmed
that the Sadiola mine complied
with the commitments made in
the 1994 Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) and its
Environmental Management
System (EMS).

An EIA was completed for the
Yatela project and construction
is taking place in line with strict
environmental criteria.

At AngloGold’s new Morila
project, a site-wide environmental
monitoring programme is being
implemented to comply with the
commitments made in the EIA.

high standards
pursuing 

fulfilling the company’s role as a
responsible corporate citizen
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A desalination pilot plant
was successfully designed and
commissioned. Typical mine water
was treated to potable agricultural
and discharge quality standards
using this pilot plant.

An extensive airborne electro-
magnetic survey was conducted
in the West Wits area, covering
7,000 hectares and producing 
sub-surface conductivity images to
depths of 150 metres. The resultant
information will be used to develop
a monitoring programme and to
generate a three-dimensional
ground water model.

Water licences were issued to
all South African operations under
the National Water Act.

An Excellence in Mining
Environmental Management Award,
sponsored by the Department of
Minerals and Energy, was awarded
to the Free State operations for
the high quality of their long-term
reclamation and closure research.

South America
At Morro Velho, the Santa Cruz

Project, comprising a small surface
mineable orebody, was approved.
Reclamation and revegetation of
the Nova Lima metallurgical process
plant area is nearing completion.

The Serra Grande mine has
relinquished its mining rights to
land occupied by Brazilian informal
miners (garimpeiros). This has
been accepted by the Brazilian
regulatory authorities and frees
AngloGold from any further
obligations associated with
the lands.

A review of the Cerro Vanguardia
tailing facility was conducted to
evaluate the management options
for complying with water storage
requirements. 

A series of environmental
studies was conducted to further
advance the processing of the
initial licence application for
the Amapari Project. 

improving performance through 
sustainable development



operational staff heightened
awareness of community issues.

Financial contributions were
made in areas such as health care,
education and training and the
environment.

North America
AngloGold personnel were

involved in community initiatives
aimed at historic preservation,
encouraging economic diversity
and strengthening local mining
dependent economies to sustain
themselves during economic
downturns.

Contributions were made
to educational and health
organisations.

South Africa
Following the flooding in

southern Africa in early 2000,
employees collected 200 tons of
food and clothing for victims in the
stricken areas. The company also
supplied a helicopter to deliver
vital goods and medical supplies.
Some 8,000 employees are drawn
from these areas.

The AngloGold Fund and
Educational Trust Fund contributed
over R16 million through 287 grants
to mainly educational projects
throughout southern Africa.

70 per cent of projects fall
within the educational sector,
reflecting the Funds’ response to
the development priorities of
South Africa.

The Funds also manage a
programme to build at least 100
classrooms each year in remote
areas. More than R2 million was
committed to the rural schools
scheme during 2000.

Within the health sector, the
Funds gave special focus to HIV/AIDS
projects, particularly in remote
areas, as well as home-based care
outreach programmes, educational
initiatives and palliative nursing
care programmes.

AngloGold offers quality health
care to employees and their families
and has extended its health care
network to rural-based families of
employees. Working with government
and The Employment Bureau of
Africa (TEBA), families are provided
with access to potable water and
effective sanitation. The first rural
health care clinic aimed at bringing
basic medical care to these families
was opened in December in the
Lusikisiki district, Eastern Cape
Province.

South America
A large proportion of community-

directed investments were made in
the sectors of education and health.

The Harry Oppenheimer Environ-
mental Centre – an environmental
education project developed by
Morro Velho employees – was opened
in Nova Lima where AngloGold also
funded 20 scholarships at the
SEBRAE Management Formation
School for young entrepreneurs.

AngloGold’s corporate
sustainability philosophy
incorporates social
responsibility into its core

business strategy. Its social invest-
ment initiatives aim to deliver
significant and lasting benefits to
employees, communities and other
stakeholders in partnership with
governments, international agencies,
labour, health and non-governmental
organisations.

During the year:

Africa
A development programme at

Sadiola supports small-scale mining
and a revolving micro-credit scheme
to develop entrepreneurship.

Following the successful
relocation of the Niamboulama
village, Yatela constructed and
furnished a new school and provided
secure water to the village. 

Morila partnered the local
community in upgrading a clinic and
malaria prevention programmes.

Geita expanded the transport and
communications infrastructure by
constructing a road providing a
reliable route to Dar es Salaam.
Potable water and a new ward were
provided to the hospital and new
schooling facilities were constructed.

Navachab contributed to
educational and other projects.

Australasia
Cross-cultural training for

corporate citizen 
good 

38

Social investment



Elisabeth Bradley, BSc, MSc

Mrs Bradley (62) was appointed a
director of AngloGold in April 1998.
She is executive chairman of Wesco
Investments Limited, vice chairman
of Toyota SA Limited and a director
of a number of other companies.
Mrs Bradley is also deputy chairman
of the South African Institute of
International Affairs.

Colin Brayshaw, CA(SA), FCA

Mr Brayshaw (65) was appointed
to the board in January 1997. He
is a retired managing partner and
chairman of Deloitte & Touche, and
is a director of a number of other
companies.

James Campbell, PhD (Geophysics),
BSc (Mathematical Physics), BSc
(Management Engineering)

Dr Campbell (51) was appointed a
director of AngloGold in April 1998.
He is an executive director of Anglo
American with responsibility for
coal and base metals, and is a
director of a number of other
companies.

Victor Fung, PhD (Business
Economics), MSc (Electrical
Engineering)

Dr Fung (55) was appointed to
the AngloGold board in April 1998.
Based in Hong Kong, he is chairman
of Prudential Asia Investments
(which he joined in 1986), of Li &
Fung Limited, Hong Kong, and of
the Hong Kong Airport Authority.

Mike King, CA(SA), FCA

Mr King (63) was appointed a
director of AngloGold in April 1998.
He is an executive vice-chairman
of Anglo American.

James Motlatsi

Mr Motlatsi (49) was appointed
to the board of AngloGold in April
1998. He has been associated with
the South African mining industry
since 1970, and is the immediate
past president of the National
Union of Mineworkers (NUM).
He is chief executive officer
of TEBA Limited.

Donald Ncube, BA (Economics,
Political Science), MSc (Manpower
Studies)

Mr Ncube (53) was appointed to the
board of AngloGold in April 1998.
Mr Ncube is executive chairman
of Real Africa Holdings, an
investment holding company.

Julian Ogilvie Thompson, BA
(Politics, Philosophy and Economics)

Mr Ogilvie Thompson (67) was
appointed a director of AngloGold
in April 1998. Mr Ogilvie Thompson
is chairman of Anglo American
and deputy chairman of De Beers
Consolidated Mines. He is also a
director of a number of other
companies.

Executive directors
Chairman and chief executive
officer
Bobby Godsell, BA, MA

Mr Godsell (48) was appointed
chief executive officer of AngloGold
in April 1998 and chairman in
December 2000. Mr Godsell has
27 years of service with companies
associated with the mining
industry, and serves as a non-
executive director of Anglo
American.

Jonathan Best, ACIS, ACIMA, MBA

Mr Best (52) was appointed finance
director in April 1998. Mr Best has
had 32 years of service with
companies associated with the
mining industry.

Kelvin Williams, BA

Mr Williams (52) was appointed
marketing director in April 1998.
He is chairman of Rand Refinery and
a director of the World Gold Council.

Non-executive directors
Deputy chairman
Russell Edey, FCA

Mr Edey (58) was appointed a
director of AngloGold in April 1998
and deputy chairman in December
2000. Based in the United Kingdom,
Mr Edey is deputy chairman of
NM Rothschild Corporate Finance
and a director of a number of
other companies.

Frank Arisman, MSc (Finance)

Mr Arisman (56) was appointed to
the AngloGold board in April 1998.
He lives in New York and is
Managing Director of JP Morgan,
a company which he joined in 1972.

Board and executive
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Non-executive directors
(continued)
Nicky Oppenheimer, BA (Politics,
Philosophy and Economics)

Mr Oppenheimer (55) was appointed
to the board in April 1998. He is a
former non-executive chairman of
AngloGold. Mr Oppenheimer is
chairman of De Beers Consolidated
Mines, a non-executive deputy
chairman of Anglo American, and
a director of a number of other
companies.

Tony Trahar, BCom, CA(SA)

Mr Trahar (51) was appointed to the
AngloGold board in October 2000.
He joined the Anglo American group
in 1974 and was appointed chief
executive officer of Anglo American
in July 2000.

Alternate directors
Bob Garnett, CA(SA)

Mr Garnett (52) was appointed to
the AngloGold board in April 1998.
He is executive vice president:
finance of Anglo Operations. He
is also a director of a number
of other companies.

Bill Nairn BSc Engineering (Mining)

Mr Nairn (56) was appointed to the
AngloGold board in January 2000.
He resigned as a director in October
2000 to become alternate director
to Mr Trahar. He serves as a member
of the Anglo American Base Metals
Executive. 

Members of the executive
committee
Executive directors
Bobby Godsell (48) BA, MA
Chairman and chief executive officer

Jonathan Best (52) ACIS, ACIMA, MBA
Finance director

Kelvin Williams (52) BA
Marketing director

Executive officers

Richard Duffy (37) BCom

Business planning

Richard joined the executive in

the capacity of managing secretary

of the company in 1998 and was

appointed to his current position

in November 2000.

Dick Fisher (59)

Health and safety 

Dick has been associated with the

South African mining industry since

1959. He has held his current

position since 1998.

Dave Hodgson (53) BSc (Mining

Engineering), BSc (Civil Engineering),

BCom

South Africa region

Dave has more than 30 years’ mining

experience. He was appointed to

the executive in 1998 and assumed

executive responsibility for the

South Africa region in 2000.

Jim Komadina (44) BSc

(Metallurgical Engineering), MBA

North America region

Jim has 23 years of diverse mining

experience and was appointed

president and CEO of AngloGold

North America in 1999. He became

a member of the executive in 2000. 

Steve Lenahan (45) BSoc Sc, MSc

Corporate affairs

Steve was appointed investor

relations executive in 1998 and

assumed responsibility for

corporate affairs in 2001.

Bob Micsak (46) BS, MLA, JD

Environment

Bob has an outstanding track record

in developing environmental

strategies and was appointed to his

current position in August 2000.

John Myburgh (55) BA LLB

Africa region

John previously served as a judge of

the Supreme Court, Judge President

of the Labour Appeal Court and the

Labour Court. He was appointed to

the executive in January 1999.

Roberto Carvalho Silva (49) BAcc,

BCorp Admin

South America region

Roberto joined the Anglo American

group in Brazil in 1973 and was

appointed president and CEO of

AngloGold in South America in

January 1999. He became a

member of the executive in 2000.

Alan Smith (45) BSc (Mining

Engineering)

Exploration and technology

Alan has had 26 years’ mining

experience and was appointed to

the executive in 1998. He assumed

his current position in 2000.

Nigel Unwin (48) BA

Australasia region and human

resources

Nigel has had many years of

experience in the field of human

resources. He joined the executive

in 1999, assumed responsibility for

the Australasia region in November

1999 and for human resources in

January 2001.

Managing secretary

Yedwa Simelane (35) BA LLB,

FILPA, MAP

Yedwa joined AngloGold in

November 2000 from the

Mineworkers Provident Fund

where she was the senior manager

of the Fund.

Board and executive (continued)
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Directors’ approval

The annual financial statements and group annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2000 were approved by the board of

directors on 20 February 2001 and are signed on its behalf by:

Directors:

R M Godsell R P Edey J G Best C B Brayshaw

Chairman and chief executive officer Deputy chairman Finance director Chairman, Audit Committee

Managing secretary: Ms Y Z Simelane

Secretary’s certificate

In terms of the Companies Act, 1973, I certify that the company has lodged, with the Registrar of Companies, all such returns as are required of a

public company in terms of the Act, and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Ms Y Z Simelane Johannesburg

Managing secretary 20 February 2001

Report of the independent auditors on the annual
financial statements

We have audited the annual financial statements and group annual financial statements of AngloGold Limited set out on pages 43 to 99 for the

year ended 31 December 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s directors. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with statements of South African Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

– examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;

– assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and 

– evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion the annual financial statements and group annual financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial

position of the company and the group at 31 December 2000, and the results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, International Accounting Standards, and in the manner required by the

Companies Act in South Africa.

Ernst & Young

Registered Accountants and Auditors Johannesburg

Chartered Accountants (SA) 20 February 2001
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Corporate governance

The company is committed to high standards of corporate governance throughout the group and is required to comply with the Code of Corporate
Practice and Conduct, as set out in the King Report on Corporate Governance.

With effect from 1 January 2000, the company implemented the Turnbull Report on Internal Control: Guidance for Directors on the “Combined
Code” . The Combined Code published in the United Kingdom in June 1998, and containing Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Code of
Best Practice, consolidated the guidelines and codes developed over the last few years by the Cadbury, Greenbury and Hempel Committees in the
United Kingdom.

The board is accountable to the company’s shareholders for good governance and the information and statements below describe how the
principles identified in the King and Turnbull Reports are applied by the company.

Statement of compliance
The board believes, based on the information below, that, other than as indicated, the company has complied, throughout the accounting period,
with the principles of the abovementioned reports.

The principal corporate governance procedures are summarised as follows:

Board and committee structure
The company has a unitary board structure comprising 12 non-executive directors, five of whom are directors of AngloGold’s ultimate holding
company, Anglo American plc, namely Dr J W Campbell and Messrs M W King, N F Oppenheimer, J Ogilvie Thompson and A J Trahar; the seven
remaining, being Mrs E le R Bradley, Dr V K Fung and Messrs F B Arisman, C B Brayshaw, R P Edey, T J Motlatsi and D M J Ncube, are all independent
of management and free from any business or relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.
Non-executive directors derive no benefits from the company for their services as directors other than their fee. The non-executive directors are
of a high calibre and sufficient number for their independent views to carry significant weight in the board’s deliberations and decisions.

The three executive directors are Mr J G Best, finance, Mr K H Williams, marketing, and the chief executive officer, Mr R M Godsell, who was
appointed chairman of the board on 11 December 2000, in succession to Mr N F Oppenheimer who resigned owing to his numerous other corporate
responsibilities. Any governance concerns arising out of the combined role of chairman and chief executive officer are sufficiently mitigated by a
strong and independent element on the board, and the presence on the board of an independent deputy chairman, Mr R P Edey, who was appointed
on 11 December 2000. The board will, however, keep the position of the combined role under review. No executive directors hold service contracts.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at least once every three years in accordance with the
company’s Articles of Association. In addition, all directors are subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting
following their appointment. The appointment of new directors is approved by the board as a whole.

The board retains full and effective control over the group, meeting five times a year with additional meetings being arranged when necessary,
to review strategy, planning, operational and financial performance, acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, stakeholder
communications and other material matters reserved for its decision. The board is also responsible for monitoring the activities of executive
management within the group. Board meetings are held on four occasions during the year in Johannesburg and once in London. Where a director
is not able to attend a board meeting personally, telephonic or video conference facilities are made available to include them in relevant
proceedings and permit participation in decisions and conclusions reached.

The directors have access to the advice and services of a managing secretary, as well as a company secretary, who are both responsible to the
board for ensuring compliance with procedures and regulations of a statutory nature. Directors are entitled to seek independent professional
advice concerning the affairs of the group at the group’s expense, should they believe that course of action would be in the best interest of
the group.

The board has established a number of standing committees in which, with the exception of the Executive Committee, the non-executive directors
play an active role, particularly in the capacity as chairman of the committee concerned. All standing committees operate within written terms
of references established by the board. Minutes of the meetings of all standing committees are circulated to members of the board. Remuneration
of non-executive directors for their services on the various committees has been determined by the board.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee of the board comprises the three executive directors, namely the chief executive officer as chairman of the committee,
the marketing director and the finance director, as well as ten executive officers. The committee meets regularly to review current operations
in detail, develop strategy and policy proposals for consideration by the board and to implement its directives.

The names of the members of the committee appear on page 40.

Audit Committee
C B Brayshaw (Chairman) R P Edey
Mrs E le R Bradley R P Garnett

To assist the board in discharging its responsibilities to maintain financial controls, the Audit Committee meets five times a year with the external
audit partner, the group’s internal audit manager and the finance director to review the audit plans of the internal and external auditors, to
ascertain the extent to which the scope of the audit can be relied upon to detect weaknesses in internal controls and to review the half-yearly
results, the audited preliminary announcement of the annual results and the annual financial statements prior to approval by the board.
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Corporate governance (continued)

The committee comprises four non-executive directors. The group’s internal audit manager and the external audit partner have unrestricted access
to the chairman of the committee and, where necessary, to the chairman of the board and chief executive officer. All important findings arising
from audit procedures are brought to the attention of the committee and, if necessary, to the board.

Employment Equity Committee
T J Motlatsi (Chairman) R M Godsell
F B Arisman W A Nairn

The company is committed to promoting an organisational culture which provides all employees with opportunities to progress to their optimal
levels of career development. To ensure that the company achieves its employment equity objectives and the proper implementation of its
strategies, the Employment Equity Committee, comprising the chief executive officer and three non-executive directors, meets four times a year.

Investment Committee
R P Edey (Chairman) Dr J W Campbell
J G Best M W King
Mrs E le R Bradley K H Williams

The board has established an Investment Committee for the purpose of assessing capital projects and ensuring that investments, disinvestments
and financing proposals are in accordance with the company’s primary objective of creating wealth for its shareholders on a sustainable long-term
basis. This committee, which meets as and when required, is composed of the finance and marketing directors and four non-executive directors.

Market Development Committee
Dr V K Fung (Chairman) R M Godsell
F B Arisman T J Motlatsi
Mrs E le R Bradley K H Williams

The primary objective of the Market Development Committee is to extend the influence of the company, as the world’s largest gold company,
in the development of a broader gold business both nationally and internationally. This committee, which meets three times a year, is composed
of the chief executive officer, the marketing director and four non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee
R P Edey (Chairman) J Ogilvie Thompson
D M J Ncube N F Oppenheimer

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for approving the remuneration policies of the company and the terms and conditions
of employment of executive directors and officers, including the determination of salaries, performance-linked bonuses and the administration
of the company’s share incentive scheme. The committee, consisting of four non-executive directors, meets on an annual basis.

Safety, Health and Environment Committee
D M J Ncube (Chairman) T J Motlatsi
R M Godsell W A Nairn

The company attaches great importance to the safety and health of its employees and to the environment at large. One of the prime objectives of
this committee is the elimination of all accidents of a mining nature. The committee conducts on-site inspections in regard to matters of
serious concern.

Through a comprehensive environmental policy, the committee assesses the impact that the company’s operations might have on the environment.

The committee, which meets on a quarterly basis, comprises the chief executive officer and three non-executive directors.

Annual financial statements
The directors are required by the South African Companies Act, 1973, to maintain adequate accounting records and to prepare annual financial
statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the company and the AngloGold group at the end of the financial year, and the results of
operations and cash flows for the year, in conformity with generally accepted accounting practice.

In preparing the annual financial statements reflected in both South African rands and United States dollars on pages 43 to 99, the group has
complied with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and International Accounting Standards and has used
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. The directors are of the opinion that these
financial statements fairly present the financial position of the company and the group at 31 December 2000, and the results of their operations
and cash flow information for the year then ended.

The directors have reviewed the group’s budget and cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2001. On the basis of this review, and in the
light of the current financial position and existing borrowing facilities, the directors are satisfied that AngloGold is a going concern and have
continued to adopt the going-concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The external auditors, Ernst & Young, are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the financial statements in conformity with
South African Auditing Standards. Their unqualified report on these financial statements appears on page 42.

As part of its listing on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), the company is registered with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). To comply with requirements for reporting by non-US companies registered with the SEC, the company is preparing a set of
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financial statements in accordance with US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles which will be available from The Bank of New York to holders
of the company’s securities listed in the form of American Depositary Shares on the NYSE. Copies of these particular financial statements will also be
available to stakeholders and other interested parties upon request to the company’s corporate office and its office in New York.

Risk management and internal control
The board is responsible for the total risk management process within the group. Management is accountable to the board and has established
a groupwide system of internal control to manage significant group risks. This system supports the board in discharging its responsibility for
ensuring that the wide range of risks, associated with the group’s international operations, are effectively managed in support of the creation
and preservation of shareholder wealth.

The management of risk encompasses all significant business risks, including operational risk, which could undermine the achievement of business
objectives. The board has approved the level of acceptable risk and required that operations manage and report in terms thereof. Issues and
circumstances, which could give rise to material adverse reputational considerations, are also considered to be unacceptable risk.

There is clear accountability for risk management. The requisite risk and control capability is assured through board control and appropriate
management selection and skills development. Managers are supported in giving effect to their risk responsibilities through sound policies and
guidelines on control management. Continual monitoring of risk and control processes, across significant risk areas, provides the basis for regular
and exception reporting to the audit and executive committees.

For key risk areas, group risk owners have been appointed and board policies issued. The risk assessment and reporting criteria are designed
to provide the board with a consistent, groupwide perspective of the key risks. The system of internal control, which is embedded in all key
operations, provides reasonable assurance rather than absolute assurance that the group’s business objectives will be achieved within the risk
tolerance levels defined by the board.

Regular management reports, which provide a balanced assessment of key risks, is an important component of board assurance. Additional sources
include assertions by divisional heads as well as board committees established to focus on specific risks such as safety, health and environment
and capital investment. The board also receives assurance from the Audit Committee which derives its information, in part, from regular internal
and external audit reports throughout the group on risk and internal control.

The company seeks to have a sound system of internal control, based on the group’s policies and guidelines, in all material associates and joint
ventures. Where this is not possible the directors, who are represented on the boards of these entities, seek assurance that significant risks are
being managed.

In conducting its annual review of the effectiveness of risk management, the board considers the key findings from the ongoing monitoring and
reporting process, management assertions and independent assurance reports. The board also takes account of material changes and trends in the
risk profile and considers whether the control system, including reporting, adequately supports the board in achieving its risk management
objectives.

During the course of the year the board considered the group’s responsiveness to changes within its business environment and material
inadequacies in systems of control. Remedial steps have been effected and the board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process, which has been
operational since 1 January 2000, for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the group.

Relations with stakeholders
The company subscribes to a policy of open communication with its stakeholders worldwide. Shareholders and members of investment
communities around the world may direct their comments and questions on issues concerning the company to the investor relations officials
detailed in all reports published by the company. The company also encourages shareholders to attend its annual general meetings, which provide
opportunities for shareholders to ask questions of the board, including the chairmen of the various committees of the board.

International media and investor briefings are held when the company’s results are announced at quarterly intervals. The company also has
a website containing up-to-date information.

Equally high value is placed on the process of internal communication to all employees at corporate office and operating units.

Worker participation
The company employs a variety of strategies and structures, which are designed to promote worker participation. These strategies and structures
are further developed and adapted from time to time to meet variations in operational requirements and to accommodate changing
circumstances. Management and worker representatives meet in formal and informal forums at company and operational levels to share
information and to address matters of mutual interest.

Code of ethics
In view of the growth of the company’s international operations, the Code of Ethics previously adopted is being revised.

All directors and employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring that the group’s business practices are conducted
in a manner which, in all reasonable circumstances, is above reproach.

In addition, the company operates a ’closed period’ prior to the publication of its quarterly and year-end financial results during which period
directors and officers of the company may not deal in the shares of the company. The closed period extends from the end of the quarter up to
and including the day the results are released. Where appropriate, this is also extended to include other ’sensitive’ periods.
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Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2000

Nature of business
AngloGold Limited is the world’s largest gold producer with mining operations being conducted in four countries in Africa, as well as on the
continents of North and South America and Australia, and gold exploration interests being pursued worldwide. Fuller details regarding the
company’s activities during the year under review appear elsewhere in the annual report.

Events subsequent to the balance sheet
On 27 November 2000 the company published a notice advising shareholders to exercise caution when dealing in its ordinary shares.

On 19 December 2000 it was announced that agreement had been reached in principle in terms of which Harmony Gold Mining Company Limited
would acquire the company’s Deelkraal and Elandsrand mines with effect from 1 February 2001 for a consideration of R1 billion. On
1 February 2001 it was announced that the formal sale and purchase agreement between AngloGold and Harmony had been concluded and that
Harmony had provided an underwritten commitment from its bankers to finance the transaction. The transaction is still subject to the fulfilment
of other conditions precedent, including the approval of Harmony’s shareholders. On 19 December 2000, as well as in the December 2000 quarterly
report posted on 1 February 2001, further cautionary notices were issued by the company advising shareholders to continue exercising caution in
their dealings in the company’s ordinary shares in the light of the ongoing discussions with various parties with regard to certain of its assets in
the Free State.

Share capital
There was no change to the authorised share capital of the company during 2000.

The following are the movements in the issued and unissued ordinary share capitals from the beginning of the accounting period to 12 February 2001:

Issued

Number of shares Rand

At 1 January 2000 106,614,678 53,307,339
Issues during year
Acquisition of wholly-owned subsidiary (outstanding shares in Acacia Resources) 351,009 175,505
Exercise of share options and conversion of debentures by participants in the share incentive scheme 55,400 27,700

At 31 December 2000 107,021,087 53,510,544

Issues subsequent to year-end
There have been no issues of shares since the financial year-end.

All the issued A and B redeemable preference shares are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Unissued

Number of shares

At 1 January 2000 93,385,322
Issues during year 406,409

At 31 December 2000 92,978,913

Maximum number of shares that were available for allocation for purposes of the share incentive 
scheme at 31 December 2000 was 2,943,080 (1999: 2,931,904)

Further details of the authorised, issued and unissued shares, as well as the share premium, are given in note 24 to the group’s financial
statements.

At the annual general meeting to be held on 25 April 2001, members will be asked to consider an ordinary resolution placing the number of
unissued ordinary shares, exclusive of the number of shares reserved for purposes of the share incentive scheme as at that date, under the control
of the directors until the next annual general meeting.

In terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa (JSE), shareholders may, subject to certain conditions, authorise
the directors to issue the unissued shares held under their control for cash other than by means of a rights offer to members. In order that the
directors of the company may be placed in a position to take advantage of favourable circumstances which may arise for the issue of such shares
for cash without restriction for the benefit of the company, members will be asked to consider an ordinary resolution to this effect at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

As AngloGold is not incorporated in Australia, the acquisition of its shares by another company or person is not subject to the takeovers and
substantial holding provisions of Chapter 6 of the Australian Corporations Law. However, AngloGold would need to comply with those provisions
if it were to make a bid for an Australian company.

The JSE has scheduled 3 September 2001 as the date for the company to be officially transferred to the new STRATE (Share Transactions Totally
Electronic) system of electronic settlement. The primary objective of STRATE is to eliminate the many risks inherent in the present method of
settling transactions executed on the JSE to the benefit of all users on the JSE, including the company and investors in its traded ordinary shares.
A separate brochure advising shareholders of the principal effects of STRATE and recommending what steps should be taken to prepare for it will
be mailed with the March 2001 quarterly report of the company on 30 April 2001.

American Depositary Shares
At 31 December 2000, the company had in issue through The Bank of New York as Depositary, and listed on the NYSE, 32,600,630 (1999: 26,432,475)
American Depositary Shares (ADSs). Each ADS represents one-half of one ordinary share.

At 12 February 2001, there were 35,031,148 ADSs in issue and listed on the NYSE (8 March 2000: 28,078,510).
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Share incentive scheme and employee option plan
At the general meeting held on 4 June 1998, shareholders approved the introduction of the AngloGold Limited Share Incentive Scheme for the
purpose of providing an incentive to executive directors and senior employees of the company and its subsidiaries to identify themselves more
closely with the fortunes of the group and its continued growth, and also to promote the retention of such employees by giving them an
opportunity to acquire shares in the company. Employees participate in the scheme to the extent that they are granted options or offered
automatically convertible unsecured debentures and accept them.

At 31 December 2000 and at the date of this report, the maximum number of ordinary shares that may be allocated for the purposes of the scheme
is 2,943,080 (31 December 1999: 2,931,904), equivalent to 2.75 per cent of the total number of ordinary shares in issue at that date. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be acquired by any one participant in the scheme is 150,000.

The options granted may be exercised and the debentures accepted may be converted as follows:

Percentage Period after date of grant of options/issue of debentures

20 2 years
40 3 years
60 4 years
100 5 years

The equity component of the automatically convertible debentures is not sufficiently material to warrant reporting a portion of the issued
debentures as equity and the balance as debt. The interest on these debentures is payable annually at the official interest rate per the seventh
schedule of the Income Tax Act which approximates market rates.

All options which have not been exercised within ten years from the date on which they were granted automatically lapse. Debentures which have
not been converted within a similar period of acceptance will be ceded to the AngloGold Limited Employees’ Share and Debenture Trust
established by the company for purposes of the scheme.

The following are summaries of particulars required to be disclosed in terms of the scheme and stock exchange regulations:

Options Debentures

Ordinary Exercise Acceptance
shares price price per
issued Number per share Number debenture

At 1 January 2000 115,900 698,500 487,500
Prior year adjustments* (7,000) 3,600
Movements during year:
Options – granted 377,000 Varying between

R192.20 and 
R305.00; average 
price of R267.81

– lapsed (resignations) (32,900)
– exercised† 41,800 (41,800)

Debentures – issued 40,000 Varying between
R266.00 and 

R360.00; average 
price of R310.53

– repurchased (resignations) (22,600)
– converted 13,600 (13,600)

At 31 December 2000 171,300 993,800 494,900

* Terminations during previous financial year recorded in current year; debentures recommended for issue in previous financial year, approved in current year
† Includes 200 options exercised by executive directors at R208.00 per share

Since 31 December 2000, no further options have been granted or exercised or have lapsed and no further debentures have been issued, converted
or repurchased.

Details of options and debentures held by executive directors, executive officers and senior managers are set out on page 51.

Analysis of options and debentures in issue at 12 February 2001:

Options Debentures

Holding Holders Number Value – R000 Holders Number Value – R000

1 – 100 – – – – – –
101 – 500 – – – 7 3,500 908
501 – 1,000 – – – 5 5,000 1,254

1,001 – 5,000 146 339,000 84,563 180 409,400 99,449
5,001 – 10,000 21 171,500 41,736 6 50,000 12,201

10,001 – 100,000 23 483,300 107,100 2 27,000 5,832
Over 100,000 – – – – – –

Total 190 993,800 233,399 200 494,900 119,644

The company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, AngloGold Australasia Limited (formerly Acacia Resources Limited) operates the Acacia Employee Option
Plan for certain of its employees. In terms of this plan, at 31 December 2000 3,660,000 (1999: 4,500,000) options were in issue which will
effectively entitle the holders to a total of 128,100 (1999: 157,500) AngloGold shares. No further options will be granted under this plan which
will terminate on 28 April 2004, being the date on which the last option may be exercised or will expire.
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Directors’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000

Financial results
The financial statements on pages 52 to 99 set out fully the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the group and
the company. 

Dividends
Details of dividends declared and paid on ordinary shares during the year under review are given in note 13 to the group financial statements.
A final dividend (No. 89) of 650 South African cents per ordinary share was declared on 30 January 2001, payable on 30 March 2001 to members
registered at the close of business on 23 February 2001. The company follows a full-payout dividend policy after investing for long-term growth.
This policy is reviewed by the board from time to time in the light of the group’s cash requirements and financial position.

Details of dividends paid/payable since 1 January 2000 to holders of ADSs are as follows:

Final Interim  Final
dividend dividend dividend

No. 87 No. 88 No. 89

Declaration date 9 February 2000 26 July 2000 30 January 2001
Amount per ADS 83.43US cents 51.06US cents 41.28US cents*
Record date 25 February 2000 11 August 2000 23 February 2001
Payment date 10 April 2000 22 September 2000 9 April 2001**

* Figure used for illustrative purposes and based on a rate of exchange of R/$7.87 on 29 January 2001. The actual amount will be determined at the R/$ currency
conversion rate ruling on approximately 30 March 2001

** Approximate date 

Borrowing powers
The company’s borrowing powers are unlimited. At 31 December 2000 the group’s borrowings totalled R8,642 million (1999: R4,983 million).

Fixed assets
A schedule giving details of the group’s mining rights and property is available for inspection at the company’s corporate office.

Investments
Particulars of the group’s principal subsidiaries and joint venture interests are reflected on page 99.

Details of special resolutions passed by subsidiaries of the company during the year under review, requiring disclosure in terms of the Listings
Requirements of the JSE, are as follows:

Special resolution

Subsidiary Nature Effective date

South Africa
AngloGold Ventures (Proprietary) Change of name from Corpinvest 74 (Proprietary) Limited 18 August 2000
Limited

Change of main business and main object to establish a gold site on the Internet to
sell gold products and provide services and information relating to gold products 18 August 2000

Goldfield Ornamental Fish Change of name from Pindar Investment Holdings (Proprietary) limited 15 May 2000
(Proprietary) Limited 

Change of main business and main object to permit the company to operate an 
ornamental fish farm growing koi and goldfish for local and export markets 15 May 2000

Masakhisane Investment Limited Change of name from IMINESolutions (Proprietary) Limited and status to a public company 5 April 2000

Change of main business and main object to permit the company to invest in small 
and medium size businesses 5 April 2000

Special resolutions – change of names of subsidiaries

To From Effective date

Africa
AngloGold Mali S.A. AngloGold Services Mali S.A. 18 December 2000

Kenieba Exploration Company Limited Yatela Exploration Company Limited 11 May 2000

Morila Limited Randgold Resources (Morila) Limited 20 July 2000

Australasia
Acacia Resources Pty Ltd Acacia Oil Shale Pty Ltd 25 February 2000

AngloGold Australasia Limited Acacia Resources Limited 25 February 2000

AngloGold Australia (Brocks Creek) Pty Ltd Acacia Resources (Brocks Creek) Pty Ltd 25 February 2000

AngloGold Australia Magnesite Pty Ltd Acacia Magnesite Pty Ltd 25 February 2000

AngloGold Australia Metals Pty Ltd Acacia Metals Pty Ltd 25 February 2000

AngloGold Australia (Sunrise Dam) Pty Ltd Acacia Resources (Sunrise Dam) Pty Ltd 25 February 2000

AngloGold Australia (Union Reefs) Pty Ltd Acacia Resources (Union Reefs) Pty Ltd 25 February 2000

South America
AngloGold Argentina S.A. Minorco Argentina S.A. 10 March 2000

Mineraç~ao Serra da Canga Ltda Empresa de Mineraç~ao Amapari Ltda 21 August 2000
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Annual general meeting
The 57th annual general meeting will be held at The Johannesburg Country Club, Napier Road, Auckland Park, Johannesburg, at 13:00 on Wednesday,
25 April 2001. Notice of the meeting is enclosed as a separate document, additional copies of which may be obtained from the company’s
corporate contacts and the share registrars.

In addition to the ordinary business to be conducted at the meeting – the adoption of this annual report, the re-election of directors and the
renewal of authority to the directors to issue the unissued shares of the company under certain circumstances – members will be requested to
consider the passing of ordinary and special resolutions, under the heading of special business, relating to the undermentioned proposals:

– an increase in directors’ remuneration

– amendments to the company’s share incentive scheme

– amendments to the company’s Articles of Association.

Directorate and secretary
Mr W A Nairn, who was appointed to the board with effect from the date of the resignation of Mr T C A Wadeson on 1 January 2000, was re-elected
a director of the company at the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2000.

Mr A J Trahar was appointed a director on 24 October 2000, in place of Mr Nairn who resigned to become Mr Trahar’s alternate on the board with
effect from that date.

On 11 December 2000, Mr N F Oppenheimer relinquished the office of chairman of the board of directors and Mr R M Godsell was appointed in his
stead. Mr Oppenheimer, however, remains a director of the company. Mr R P Edey was appointed deputy chairman of the board on 11 December 2000.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr Trahar retires from the board at the forthcoming annual general meeting and offers himself for
re-election. Dr V K Fung, Mr M W King, Mr T J Motlatsi, Mr D M J Ncube, Mr J Ogilvie Thompson and Mr N F Oppenheimer retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The names of the directors and alternate directors of the company in office at the date of this report are listed on page 103. Biographies of the
board of directors appear on pages 39 and 40.

Ms Y Z Simelane was appointed managing secretary, in place of Mr R N Duffy, with effect from 1 November 2000.

There has been no change in the office of company secretary. The names of the managing secretary and company secretary and their business and
postal addresses are set out on page 103.

Directors’ interests in shares
The beneficial interests of the directors in the ordinary share capital of the company at 31 December 2000 were as follows:

31 December 2000 31 December 1999

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Executive directors
J G Best – – – –
R M Godsell 230 – 230 –
K H Williams – 460 – 460

230 460 230 460

Non-executive directors
F B Arisman 10,000 – 10,000 –
Mrs E le R Bradley 2,600 – 2,600 –
C B Brayshaw – – – –
Dr J W Campbell 161 – 161 –
R P Edey 500 – 500 –
Dr V K Fung – – – –
M W King 2,023 – 2,023 –
T J Motlatsi – – – –
D M J Ncube 115 – 115 –
J Ogilvie Thompson – – – –
N F Oppenheimer – 95,927 – 492,430
A J Trahar – – – –
T C A Wadeson (resigned 1 January 2000) – – – –

15,399 95,927 15,399 492,430

Alternate directors
R P Garnett – – – –
W A Nairn – – – –

– – – –

Total 15,629 96,387 15,629 492,890

Non-beneficial interest holdings at 31 December 2000 – nil (1999: nil)

There have been no changes in the above interests since 31 December 2000.

A register detailing directors’ and officers’ interests in contracts is available for inspection at the company’s registered and corporate office.
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Directors’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000

Directors’ emoluments

The following table records the emoluments paid to each director during the year:

Bonuses

Board and per- Pension

com- formance scheme

Board mittee related contri- Other Total Total

All figures in R 000 fees fees Salary payments butions benefits 2000 1999

Executive directors

R M Godsell (Chairman and 

chief executive officer) – – 2,158 716 348 59 3,281 3,411

J G Best – – 1,440 494 231 240 2,405 1,860

K H Williams – – 1,577 558 254 160 2,549 2,177

2000 – – 5,175 1,768 833 459 8,235 –

1999 – – 4,042 1,662 678 1,066 – 7,448

Non-executive directors

R P Edey (Deputy chairman) 50 110 – – – – 160 160

F B Arisman 50 60 – – – – 110 110

Mrs E le R Bradley 50 90 – – – – 140 140

C B Brayshaw 50 40 – – – – 90 90

Dr J W Campbell 50 33 – – – – 83 110

Dr V K Fung 50 40 – – – – 90 90

M W King 50 30 – – – – 80 80

T J Motlatsi 50 100 – – – – 150 150

D M J Ncube 50 40 – – – – 90 90

J Ogilvie Thompson 50 30 – – – – 80 80

N F Oppenheimer 80 30 – – – – 110 110

A J Trahar 9 – – – – – 9 –

T C A Wadeson (resigned 1 January 2000) – – – – – – – 110

2000 589 603 – – – – 1,192 –

1999 630 690 – – – – – 1,320

Alternate directors

R P Garnett – 30 – – – – 30 30

W A Nairn (director until 23 October 2000) 41 60 – – – – 101 –

2000 41 90 – – – – 131 –

1999 – 30 – – – – – 30

Totals

2000 630 693 – – – – 1,323 –

1999 630 720 – – – – – 1,350

Aggregate emoluments of directors who served during the year 9,558 8,798
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Executive directors Executive Senior
R M Godsell J G Best K H Williams officers managers Total

Options

Options to subscribe for ordinary shares of 50 cents each in the company granted to, and exercised by, executive directors, executive officers

and senior managers during the year to 31 December 2000 are included in the table below. Since 31 December 2000, no further options have

been granted or exercised or have lapsed.

Granted as at 1 January 2000

Number 64,150 25,400 39,000 113,200 449,750 691,500

Average exercise price per share – R 208.00 208.00 208.00 211.93 216.37 214.09

Granted during year

Number 10,000 10,000 – 33,000 324,000 377,000

Average exercise price per share – R 268.00 268.00 – 271.36 267.43 267.80

Exercised during year

Number – – 200 4,200 37,400 41,800

Average exercise price per share – R – – 208.00 208.00 208.00 208.00

Average market price per share at date of exercise – R – – 354.80 357.00 329.11 332.03

Pre–tax gain at date of exercise – R value – – 29,360 625,800 4,529,327 5,184,487

– R per share – – 146.80 149.00 121.11 124.03

Lapsed during year

Number – – – – 32,900 32,900

Held as at 31 December 2000

Number 74,150 35,400 38,800 142,000 703,450 993,800

Average exercise price per share – R 216.09 224.95 208.00 225.86 240.63 234.86

Latest expiry date 16 Oct 2010 16 Oct 2010 16 Feb 2008 16 Oct 2010 4 Dec 2010 4 Dec 2010

Debentures

Debentures convertible into ordinary shares of 50 cents each in the company issued to, converted or repurchased by, executive directors,

executive officers and senior managers during the year to 31 December 2000 are included in the table below. Since 31 December 2000,

no further debentures have been issued, converted or repurchased.

In issue as at 1 January 2000

Number 15,000 12,000 10,000 50,000 404,100 491,100

Average conversion price per share– R 216.00 216.00 216.00 237.06 237.20 235.59

Issued during year

Number – – – – 40,000 40,000

Average conversion price per share – R – – – – 310.53 310.53

Converted during year

Number – – – – 13,600 13,600

Average conversion price per share – R – – – – 216.00 216.00

Average market price per share at date of conversion – R – – – – 306.78 306.78

Pre-tax gain at date of conversion – R value – – – – 1,234,593 1,234,593

– R per share – – – – 90.78 90.78

Repurchased during year

Number – – – – 22,600 22,600

In issue as at 31 December 2000

Number 15,000 12,000 10,000 50,000 407,900 494,900

Average conversion price per share – R 216.00 216.00 216.00 237.06 244.67 241.75

Latest conversion date 31 Aug 2008 31 Aug 2008 31 Aug 2008 1 Sep 2009 5 Jun 2010 5 Jun 2010



2,324 2,299 Revenue 3 15,972 14,197

2,205 2,208 Gold sales 3 15,338 13,473

(1,700) (1,740) Cost of sales 4 (12,065) (10,385)

505 468 Operating profit 3,273 3,088

(29) (25) Corporate administration and other expenses (175) (179)

(15) (12) Market development costs (82) (91)

(7) (8) Research and development costs (54) (43)

(47) (44) Exploration costs 5 (309) (287)

407 379 Profit from operations 2,653 2,488

4 10 Other net income 6 73 25

84 45 Investment income 7 302 511

(53) (69) Finance costs 8 (481) (321)

442 365 Profit before exceptional items 9 2,547 2,703

89 – Profit on sale of associate – 543

– (93) Impairment of mining assets 14 (708) –

(55) (20) Amortisation of goodwill 15 (135) (335)

– (1) Termination of retirement benefit plans (10) –

476 251 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,694 2,911

(37) (73) Taxation 11 (491) (228)

439 178 Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 1,203 2,683

(5) (12) Minority interest (87) (29)

434 166 Net profit 1,116 2,654

325 254 Headline earnings 12 1,773 1,986

Earnings per ordinary share (cents) 12 

328 237 Headline 1,658 2,018

441 155 Basic 1,043 2,695

402 153 Diluted 1,027 2,458

328 196 Dividends declared per ordinary share (cents) 13 1,400 2,000

1.2 1.2 Dividend cover based on headline earnings 1.2 1.2

1999 2000 Notes 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Group income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million
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Group balance sheet
at 31 December 2000

Figures in million

ASSETS

Non-current assets

2,901 2,661 Mining assets 14 20,159 17,857 

222 403 Goodwill 15 3,056 1,365 

13 20 Investment in associates 16 148 80 

7 7 Other investments 17 55 46 

45 47 AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust 19 358 274 

56 50 Long-term loans 20 378 344 

3,244 3,188 24,154 19,966 

Current assets

190 192 Inventories 21 1,453 1,169 

223 229 Trade and other receivables 22 1,737 1,372 

21 21 Current portion of long-term loans 20 161 131 

493 195 Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,477 3,031 

927 637 4,828 5,703 

4,171 3,825 Total assets 28,982 25,669 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

1,276 1,050 Share capital and premium 24 7,951 7,852 

30 63 Non-distributable reserves 474 182 

559 340 Retained earnings 2,579 3,443 

1,865 1,453 Shareholders’ equity 11,004 11,477 

27 28 Minority interests 213 163 

1,892 1,481 11,217 11,640 

Non-current liabilities

679 710 Borrowings 25 5,381 4,181 

19 16 Debentures 26 120 115 

334 283 Provisions 27 2,148 2,059 

711 553 Deferred taxation 28 4,187 4,375 

1,743 1,562 11,836 10,730 

Current liabilities

343 315 Trade and other payables 29 2,389 2,111 

130 430 Current portion of borrowings 25 3,261 802 

63 37 Taxation 279 386 

536 782 5,929 3,299 

4,171 3,825 Total equity and liabilities 28,982 25,669 

1999 2000 Notes 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Group cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

Cash flows from operating activities

2,184 2,247 Cash receipts from customers 15,490 13,337 

(1,596) (1,690) Cash paid to suppliers and employees (11,593) (9,750) 

588 557 Cash generated from operations 31 3,897 3,587 

72 37 Interest receivable 250 437 

(5) (9) Contributions to AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust 19 (59) (29) 

5 – Dividends received from listed associate – 33 

– 2 Dividends received from unlisted associate 16 12 – 

1 – Dividends received from other investments – 5 

(53) (69) Finance costs (481) (321) 

(101) (95) Mining and normal taxation paid (640) (616) 

(279) (310) Dividends paid 13 (1,981) (1,664) 

228 113 Net cash inflow from operating activities 998 1,432 

Cash flows from investing activities

(218) (304) Capital expenditure 14 (2,063) (1,345) 

(88) (145) – to maintain operations (986) (544) 

(130) (159) – to expand operations (1,077) (801) 

2 8 Proceeds from sale of mining assets 55 15 

– (7) Associate acquired 16 (55) –

(2) (1) Other investments acquired 17 (11) (13) 

221 5 Proceeds from sale of investments 31 1,347 

(468) (345) Through acquisition of subsidiaries 32 (2,528) (2,883) 

(8) (8) Loans advanced (52) (50) 

23 19 Repayment of loans advanced 130 143 

(450) (633) Net cash outflow from investing activities (4,493) (2,786) 

Cash flows from financing activities

4 2 Proceeds from issue of share capital 12 21 

(7) (3) Share issue expenses 24 (18) (42) 

518 373 Proceeds from borrowings 2,530 3,164 

(43) (112) Repayment of borrowings (759) (261) 

472 260 Net cash inflow from financing activities 1,765 2,882 

250 (260) Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,730) 1,528 

(11) (38) Translation adjustments 176 11

254 493 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,031 1,492 

493 195 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 23 1,477 3,031 

1999 2000 Notes 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Group statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
for the year ended 31 December 2000

Figures in million

Non- Foreign 

Ordinary Share distributable currency Retained

share capital premium reserves* translation earnings Total 

SA Rands

Balance at 31 December 1998 as previously reported 49 5,244 141 32 1,541 7,007

Effect of change in treatment of dividends paid 783 783

Restated balance at 31 December 1998 49 5,244 141 32 2,324 7,790

Net profit 2,654 2,654

Dividends (note 13) (1,664) (1,664)

Ordinary shares issued 4 2,597 2,601

Share issue expenses written off (42) (42)

Transfer to non-distributable reserves 9 (9) –

Translation adjustment 138 138

Balance at 31 December 1999 53 7,799 150 32 3,443 11,477

Net profit 1,116 1,116

Dividends (note 13) (1,981) (1,981)

Ordinary shares issued 1 116 117

Share issue expenses written off (18) (18)

Transfer (from)to non-distributable reserves (1) 1 –

Translation adjustment 293 293

Balance at 31 December 2000 54 7,897 149 325 2,579 11,004

Notes 24 24 

US Dollars

Balance at 31 December 1998 as previously reported 8 892 24 5 262 1,191

Effect of change in treatment of dividends paid 133 133

Restated balance as at 31 December 1998 8 892 24 5 395 1,324

Net profit 434 434

Dividends (note 13) (279) (279)

Ordinary shares issued 1 425 426

Share issue expenses written off (7) (7)

Transfer to non-distributable reserves 1 (1) –

Translation adjustment (43) 10 (33)

Balance at 31 December 1999 9 1,267 25 5 559 1,865

Net profit 166 166

Dividends (note 13) (310) (310)

Ordinary shares issued 17 17

Share issue expenses written off (3) (3)

Translation adjustment (2) (238) (5) 38 (75) (282)

Balance at 31 December 2000 7 1,043 20 43 340 1,453

Notes 24 24 

* Non-distributable reserves comprises a surplus on disposal of company shares (R141 million, $19 million) and a foreign equity reserve (R8 million, $1 million). 
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Notes to the group financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

1 Accounting policies 
The financial statements are prepared according to the historical cost accounting convention. The group’s accounting policies set out below
are consistent in all material respects with those applied in the previous years, except for the changes disclosed in note 37. These accounting
policies conform with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and International Accounting Standards.

The following South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice have been adopted ahead of their effective dates:
AC 105 (revised) – Leases;
AC 107 (revised) – Events after the balance sheet date; 
AC 116 (revised) – Employee benefits.

Basis of consolidation
The group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company, its subsidiaries and its proportionate interest in
joint ventures. 

The financial statements of subsidiaries and joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting period as the holding company, using the
same accounting policies. 

Where an investment in a subsidiary or a joint venture is acquired or disposed of during the financial year, its results are included from, or
to the date control became, or ceased to be effective.

All inter-group transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. Unearned profits that arise between group entities are eliminated. 

Acquisition and goodwill arising thereon
Where an investment in a subsidiary, joint venture or an associate is made, any excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the
attributable reserves and net assets is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill which represents resources is amortised on a systematic basis which
recognises the depletion of resources over the lesser of the life of the mine or 20 years.

The unamortised balance is reviewed on a regular basis and, if impairment in the value has occurred, it is written off in the period in which
the circumstances are identified.

Goodwill in respect of subsidiaries and proportionately consolidated joint ventures is disclosed as goodwill. Goodwill relating to associates is
included within the carrying value of the investment in associates. 

Joint ventures
A joint venture is an entity in which the group holds a long-term interest and which is jointly controlled by the group and one or more other
venturers under a contractual arrangement. The group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for by proportionate
consolidation.

Associates
The equity method of accounting is used for an investment over which the group exercises significant influence and normally owns between
20 per cent and 50 per cent of the voting equity. Associates are equity accounted from the effective dates of acquisition, to the effective
dates of disposal.

Results of associates are equity accounted from their most recent audited annual financial statements or unaudited interim financial
statements. Any losses of associates are brought to account in the consolidated financial statements until the investment in such associates
is written down to a nominal amount. Thereafter, losses are accounted for only insofar as the group is committed to providing financial
support to such associates. 

The carrying values of the investments in associates represent the cost of each investment, including unamortised goodwill, the share of
post-acquisition retained earnings and any other movements in reserves. The carrying value of associates is reviewed on a regular basis and
if any impairment in value has occurred, it is written off in the period in which these circumstances are identified.

Other investments
Investments, other than investments in associates, are included at cost less provisions for any impairment in value. 

Mining assets
Mining assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairments. Cost includes pre-production expenditure incurred during
the development of the mine and the net present value of future decommissioning costs. Cost also includes finance charges capitalised
during the construction period where such costs are financed by borrowings. 

Mine development costs
Capitalised mine development costs include expenditure incurred to develop new ore bodies, to define further mineralisation in existing ore
bodies and to expand the capacity of a mine. Where funds have been borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount of interest
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred.

Mine development costs are amortised using the units-of-production method based on estimated proved and probable mineral reserves.
Amortisation is first charged on new mining ventures from the date on which production reaches commercial quantities. 

Proved and probable mineral reserves reflect estimated economically recoverable quantities which can be recovered in future from known
mineral deposits. 
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase to remove additional waste ore are deferred and charged to operating costs on the basis

of the average life of mine stripping ratio. 

Once commercial production has started, the cost of the “excess stripping” is capitalised as mine development costs when the actual

stripping ratio exceeds the average life of mine stripping ratio. When the actual stripping ratio is below the average life of the mine ratio

sufficient previously capitalised costs are expensed to increase the cost up to the average. Thus under this method the cost of stripping in

any period will be reflective of the average stripping rates for the orebody as a whole.

The average stripping ratio is calculated as a proportion of waste material removed to ore mined. The average life of the mine ratio is

recalculated annually in light of additional knowledge and changes in estimates.

Mine infrastructure

Plant, equipment and buildings are amortised using the lesser of their useful life or units-of-production method based on estimated proved

and probable mineral reserves. 

Land 

Land is not depreciated. 

Mineral rights, dumps and ore reserves

Mineral rights are amortised using the units-of-production method based on estimated proved and probable mineral reserves. 

Dumps are amortised over the period of treatment. 

Ore reserves are measured mining resources which, when proved and probable, are transferred to mine development costs and amortised from

the date on which commercial production begins.

If the recoverable amount of any of the above assets is less than the carrying value, a provision is made for the impairment in value.

Borrowing costs

Interest on borrowings relating to the financing of major capital projects under construction is capitalised during the construction phase as

part of the cost of the project. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Leased assets

Assets subject to finance leases are capitalised at cost with the related lease obligation recognised at the same amount. Capitalised leased

assets are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term. Finance lease payments are allocated, using the

effective interest rate method, between the lease finance cost, which is included in interest paid, and the capital repayment, which reduces

the liability to the lessor. 

Operating lease rentals are charged against operating profits in a systematic manner related to the period of use of the assets concerned. 

Research and exploration expenditure

Research and exploration expenditure is expensed in the year in which it is incurred. When a decision is taken that a mining property is

capable of commercial production, all further pre-production expenditure is capitalised. Capitalisation of pre-production expenditure ceases

when the mining property is capable of commercial production.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after appropriate provisions for redundant and slow moving items. Cost is

determined on the following bases:

• gold in process is valued at the average production cost at the relevant stage of production; 

• gold on hand, uranium oxide and sulphuric acid are valued on an average production cost method; and

• consumable stores are valued at average cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to

known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Cash on hand and in banks and short-term deposits which are held to maturity are carried at cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for which it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation. 
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan and post retirement medical aid benefit plans, and a number of defined contribution
pension plans.

Defined benefit plans
The cost of providing benefits to the group’s defined benefit plans are determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method. Actuarial gains and losses arising in the defined benefit plans are recognised as income or expense when the cumulative
unrecognised gains or losses for each individual plan exceed 10% of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
These gains or losses are recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans.

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans in respect of services during a current year are recognised as an expense in that year. 

Environmental expenditure
Long-term environmental obligations comprising decommissioning and restoration are based on the group’s environmental management plans,
in compliance with the current environmental and regulatory requirements. 

Decommissioning costs
The provision for decommissioning represents the cost that will arise from rectifying damage caused before production commenced.

Decommissioning costs are provided for at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation, using estimated cash
flows based on current prices. When this provision gives access to future economic benefits, an asset is recognised and included within
mining infrastructure. The unwinding of the decommissioning obligation is included in the income statement. The estimated future cost of
decommissioning obligations are regularly reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances or changes in law or technology. The
estimates are discounted at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. 

Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account when determining the provision.

Restoration costs
The provision for restoration represents the cost for restoration of site damage arising, after the commencement of production, from
rectifying work whose cost was reported through the income statement.

Gross restoration costs are estimated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation, using estimated cashflows
based on current prices. The estimates are discounted at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money.

Restoration costs are accrued and expensed over the operating life of each mine using the units-of-production method based on estimated
proved and probable mineral reserves. Expenditure on ongoing restoration costs is brought to account when incurred.

Environmental Rehabilitation Trust
Annual contributions are made to the AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust, created in accordance with South African statutory
requirements, to fund the estimated cost of rehabilitation during and at the end of the life of a mine. The funds that have been paid into the
trust fund plus the growth in the trust fund is shown as an asset on the balance sheet.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following criteria must also be present: 
• the sale of mining products is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the products are transferred to the buyer;
• foreign currency derivative financial instruments are translated at contract rates. Gains and losses on these contracts are recognised in

income as a component of the related sale of mining products;
• dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established; and
• interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period to

maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the group.

Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at current tax rates. 
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Hedging transactions
The group enters into financial transactions to ensure a degree of price certainty and to guarantee a minimum revenue on a portion of the
future planned gold production of its mines. Financial instruments entered into in pursuit of this objective are specifically designated as
hedges at the inception of the future planned production of the mines. 

Gains and losses on gold hedging instruments that effectively establish prices for future production, are recognised in income at the earlier
of any cash flow or delivery of the related hedged production. Hedged positions below current cost of production are recognised in the
period in which the loss arises. 

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar
maturity profiles. 

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate ruling on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities designated
in foreign currencies are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the year end and any gains and losses arising are included in earnings. 

Assets and liabilities (both monetary and non-monetary) of foreign entities are translated at the closing rate. Income statement items are
translated at a weighted average rate of exchange for the period. Exchange differences are taken directly to a foreign currency translation reserve. 

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and are translated at the closing rate. 

Translation into US Dollars
To assist international investors, a translation of convenience into the currency of the United States of America is provided. These
translations are based on average rates of exchange for income statement items and at those ruling at the year end for the balance sheet.
The cash flow statement has been translated at average rates to give effect to transaction based conversion. 

2 Segmental information
Based on risks and returns the directors consider that the primary reporting format is by business segment. The directors consider that there
is only one business segment being mining, extraction and production of gold. Therefore the disclosures for the primary segment have already
been given in these financial statements.

The secondary reporting format is by geographical analysis by origin and destination.

Geographical analysis by origin is as follows:

Gold Operating Net operating Average number
sales profit assets of employees

2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 

SA Rands 
South Africa 11,021 11,055 2,089 2,344 11,235 11,221 79,124 82,645 
Africa 767 492 333 179 3,274 605 849 643 
North America 1,147 927 136 173 2,167 1,931 718 735 
South America 1,205 999 480 392 2,476 2,108 2,388 2,097 
Australia 1,198 – 235 – 1,697 2,301 957 –

Group 15,338 13,473 3,273 3,088 20,849 18,166 84,036 86,120 

US Dollars
South Africa 1,587 1,809 298 384 1,483 1,822 
Africa 111 81 48 29 432 98 
North America 165 152 19 28 286 314 
South America 173 163 69 64 327 343 
Australia 172 – 34 – 224 374 

Group 2,208 2,205 468 505 2,752 2,951 

Gold production Gold production 
(kilograms) (imperial ounces 000) 

2000 1999 2000 1999 

South Africa 168,524 178,704 5,418 5,746 
Africa 11,388 8,146 366 262 
North America 15,426 15,097 496 485 
South America 13,657 13,219 439 425 
Australia 16,300 – 524 –

Group 225,295 215,166 7,243 6,918 



1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

2 Segmental information (continued)
Capital expenditure

176 159 South Africa 1,083 1,015
1 51 Africa 343 5

39 37 North America 249 235
2 22 South America 148 90
– 35 Australia 240 –

218 304 Group 2,063 1,345

Total assets 
2,720 1,824 South Africa 13,823 16,741  

205 741 Africa 5,611 1,261  
369 320 North America 2,426 2,268 
454 461 South America 3,494 2,795  
423 479 Australia 3,628 2,604

4,171 3,825 Group 28,982 25,669 

Gold sales 
Geographical analysis by destination is as follows: 

110 110 South Africa 766 674
662 552 North America 3,835 4,042

– 221 Australia 1,534 –
66 177 Europe 1,227 404

1,367 1,148 United Kingdom 7,976 8,353

2,205 2,208 Group 15,338 13,473

3 Revenue 
Revenues consists of the following principal categories: 

2,205 2,208 Sale of gold 15,338 13,473 
46 54 Sale of uranium, silver and sulphuric acid 384 282 
72 37 Interest receivable (note 7) 250 437 
1 – Dividends received from other investments (note 7) – 5 

2,324 2,299 15,972 14,197 

4 Cost of sales 
1,478 1,502 Cash operating costs 10,421 9,027 

9 19 Other cash costs 131 58 

1,487 1,521 Total cash costs 10,552 9,085 
10 17 Retrenchment costs (note 10) 118 58 

9 2 Rehabilitation and other non-cash costs 9 54 

1,506 1,540 Production costs 10,679 9,197 
196 217 Amortisation of mining assets (note 14) 1,508 1,199 

1,702 1,757 Total production costs 12,187 10,396 
(2) (17) Inventory change (122) (11) 

1,700 1,740 12,065 10,385 
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5 Exploration costs 
57 63 Expenditure incurred during the year 441 348 

(10) (19) Expenditure transferred to mining assets (132) (61) 

47 44 309 287 

6 Other net income 
Other net income consists of the following principal categories:

3 3 Exchange gain on transactions other than sales 24 17 
4 7 Profit on sale of assets 51 26 

7 10 75 43 
(3) – Unwinding of decommissioning obligation (note 27) (2) (18) 

4 10 73 25 

7 Investment income 
Investment income consists of the following principal 
categories: 

72 37 Interest receivable (note 3) 250 437 
7 4 Income from associates before taxation 27 43 
4 4 Growth in AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust (note 19) 25 26 
1 – Dividends received from other investments (note 3) – 5 

84 45 302 511 

8 Finance costs 
50 74 Interest paid on bank loans and overdrafts 507 304 

3 2 Interest paid on debentures 16 17

53 76 Total interest   523 321 
– (7) Less: amounts capitalised (42) –

53 69 481 321 

9 Profit before exceptional items is arrived at after 
taking account of:

1 1 Auditors’ remuneration 8 6 

1 1 Audit fees 7 6 
– – Underprovision prior year 1 – 
– – Other services – –

196 217 Amortisation of mining assets (note 14) 1,508 1,199 

194 215 Owned assets 1,495 1,188 
2 2 Leased assets 13 11 

(3) – Charge for post-retirement medical aid obligation (note 27) 4 (16) 
1 2 Grants for educational and community development 14 5 
1 1 Operating lease charges 9 8 

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

10 Employee benefits 
The average monthly number of employees, including contractors, 
during the year was made up as follows: 84,036 86,120 

Surface 19,688 19,445 
Underground 64,348 66,675 

855 910 Employee costs including executive directors 5,575 5,219 

769 825 Salaries, wages and other benefits 5,038 4,699 
63 55 Defined contribution pension plans expense 338 385 

9 6 Post-retirement medical costs 36 53
Defined benefit expense

7 5 – current service cost 32 45
13 13 – interest cost 82 79

(32) (5) – expected return on plan assets (33) (196)
18 (7) – actuarial (gain) loss (45) 108
(7) 1 – curtailment, settlement (gain) loss 9 (42)
5 – – past service costs – 30

10 17 Retrenchment costs (note 4) 118 58

Actual return on plan assets
32 5 – defined benefit pension plan 29 194

Refer to directors’ report for details of directors’ emoluments

11 Taxation 
106 78 Current taxation 534 650 

11 16 Mining taxation 111 69 
87 55 Non-mining taxation 373 531 
(2) – Under (over) provision prior years 1 (12) 
8 7 Secondary tax on companies 48 50 
2 – Share of associates’ taxation 1 12 

(69) (5) Deferred taxation (43) (422) 

6 21 Current (note 28) 153 38 
– (26) Impairment (notes 12 and 28) (196) – 

(69) – Rate change (note 12 and 28) – (423) 
(6) – Share of associates’ taxation – rate change (note 12) – (37) 

37 73 491 228 

There is unredeemed capital expenditure estimated at R3,161 million, 
$417 million (1999: R2,995 million, $487 million) which is available for set-off 
against future taxable income from the mining operations of Joel mine. 

The unutilised tax losses of the North American operations which are available 
for offset against future profits earned in USA, amounts to R1,667 million, 
$220 million (1999: R2,431 million, $395 million).

The unutilised tax losses of the South American operations which are available 
for offset against future profits earned in these countries, amounts to R534 million, 
$71 million (1999: R414 million, $67 million).

Tax reconciliation 
A reconciliation of the marginal tax rate compared with that charged 
in the income statement is set out in the following table: % %

Marginal tax rate 46 46
Disallowable expenditure 3 5
Impairment 8 –
Goodwill written off 2 5
Taxable non mining income (2) (1)
Write back of amortisation and inventory change 18 18
Mining capital appropriations (23) (21)
Mining tax formula adjustment (3) (5)
Dividends received (1) (1)
Foreign income tax allowances (8) (6)
Change in tax rate – (16)
Other (11) (16)

Effective tax rate 29 8

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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12 Earnings per ordinary share 
Headline 
Headline earnings removes items of an exceptional nature from the 
calculation of earnings per share. 

The headline earnings per ordinary share have been based on the same 
number of weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue as the 
basic earnings per ordinary share calculation. 

The net profit has been adjusted by the following to arrive at 
headline earnings: 

434 166 Net profit 1,116 2,654 
(89) – Less: Profit on sale of associate – (543) 

– 93 Add: Impairment of mining assets (note 14) 708 – 
– (26) Less: Deferred taxation on impairment of mining assets (note 11) (196) – 

55 20 Add: Amortisation of goodwill (note 15) 135 335 
– 1 Add: Termination of retirement benefit plans 10 – 

(75) – Less: Deferred taxation rate change (note 11) – (460) 

325 254 Headline earnings 1,773 1,986 

Basic 
The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share is based on net profit 
of R1,116 million, $166 million (1999: R2,654 million, $434 million) and 
106,962,987 (1999: 98,461,191) shares being the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year. 

Diluted
The calculation of diluted earnings per ordinary share is based on net 
profit of R1,116 million, $166 million (1999: R2,654 million, 
$434 million) and 108,579,787 (1999: 107,954,778) shares being the 
diluted number of ordinary shares.

The weighted average number of shares has been adjusted by the 
following to arrive at the diluted number of ordinary shares:

Weighted average number of shares 106,962,987 98,461,191 
Share options granted 993,800 691,500
Debentures issued 494,900 491,100
Share options granted – Acacia Employee Option Plan 128,100 157,500
Balance of ordinary shares issued for acquisition of Acacia – 8,153,487

Diluted number of ordinary shares 108,579,787 107,954,778

13 Dividends 
Ordinary shares 
No. 87 of 1,100 SA cents (167 US cents) per ordinary share declared 

133 192 on 9 February 2000 and paid on 31 March 2000. 1,178 783 

No. 88 of 750 SA cents (102 US cents) per ordinary share declared 
146 118 on 26 July 2000 and paid on 22 September 2000. 803 881 

279 310 1,981 1,664 

Dividend No. 89 of 650 SA cents (82 US cents) per ordinary share was
declared on 30 January 2001.

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

Mineral
Mine Mine rights,

development infra- dumps and
costs structure ore reserves Land Total

14. Mining assets 
SA Rands 
Cost 
Balance at beginning of year 16,914 8,565 1,533 97 27,109 
Additions 1,620 443 – – 2,063
Fair value adjustment (note 33) – – (823) – (823)
Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (note 32) – 1,093 1,195 – 2,288
Transfers and disposals (287) (56) 59 2 (282)
Translation adjustments 690 952 151 11 1,804

Balance at end of year 18,937 10,997 2,115 110 32,159

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at beginning of year 5,251 3,938 63 – 9,252 
Amortisation charge for the year (note 4 and 9) 828 670 10 – 1,508
Impairments 691 – 17 – 708
Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (note 32) – 34 – – 34
Transfers and disposals (59) (3) – – (62)
Translation adjustments 208 349 3 – 560

Balance at end of year 6,919 4,988 93 – 12,000

Net book value at 31 December 1999 11,663 4,627 1,470 97 17,857 
Net book value at 31 December 2000 12,018 6,009 2,022 110 20,159

US Dollars 
Cost 
Balance at beginning of year 2,748 1,392 249 16 4,405 
Additions 239 65 – – 304
Fair value adjustment (note 33) (134) (134)
Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (note 32) – 151 165 – 316
Transfers and disposals (38) (7) 7 – (38)
Translation adjustments (449) (150) (8) (1) (608)

Balance at end of year 2,500 1,451 279 15 4,245

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at beginning of year 854 640 10 – 1,504 
Amortisation charge for the year (note 4 and 9) 130 86 1 – 217
Impairments 91 – 2 – 93
Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (note 32) – 5 – – 5
Transfers and disposals (6) – 1 – (5)
Translation adjustments (156) (71) (3) – (230)

Balance at end of year 913 660 11 – 1,584

Net book value at 31 December 1999 1,894 752 239 16 2,901 
Net book value at 31 December 2000 1,587 791 268 15 2,661 

Included in the amounts above for mine infrastructure are assets held under finance leases with a net book value of R26 million, $3 million
(1999: R33 million, $5 million). Depreciation charged on these assets during the year totalled R13 million, $2 million (1999: R11 million, $2 million).

Mining assets with a carrying value of R1,698 million, $224 million is encumbered by project finance (note 25).
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14. Mining assets (continued)
The impairment loss in respect of the cash generating units arose from the declining values of the remaining ore reserves and the view that
the bullion price was unlikely to recover substantially from its low levels in the medium term. The impairment is made up as follows:

2000 2000

SA Rands US Dollars

Australia
The abandonment of exploration in certain areas. 24 3
North America
Jerritt Canyon based on the value in use and at the relevant discount rate. 214 28
South Africa
Ergo and Matjhabeng based on the value in use and at the relevant discount rate. 173 23
Freddies Four Shaft being a discontinued project at the full remaining book value of the mining assets 23 3
Elandsrand and Deelkraal operations based on the net selling price per the agreement with Harmony 
Gold Mining Company Limited dated 31 January 2001. 274 36

708 93

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands

15 Goodwill 
Cost

– 276 Balance at beginning of year 1,700 –
276 143 Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (note 32) 1,080 1,700

– 100 Fair value adjustment (note 33) 611 –
– (44) Translation adjustment 209 –

276 475 Balance at end of year 3,600 1,700

Accumulated amortisation
– 54 Balance at beginning of year 335 –

55 20 Amortisation 135 335
(1) (2) Translation adjustment 74 –

54 72 Balance at end of the year 544 335

222 403 Net book value 3,056 1,365

16 Investment in associates 
The group has the following associated undertakings: 

– A 42.73% (1999: 42.73%) interest in Rand Refinery Limited, which is 
involved in the refining of bullion and by-products which are sourced 
inter alia from South Africa and foreign gold producing mining 
companies. The year end of Rand Refinery Limited is 30 September.

– A 25% (1999: Nil) interest in Oro Group (Proprietary) Limited which 
is involved in the manufacture and wholesale of jewellery. The year end 
of Oro Group (Proprietary) Limited is March. Equity accounting is based 
on the results for the six months ended 30 September 2000.  

Carrying value of associates consists of: 
1 1 Unlisted shares at cost 9 9

12 9 Share of retained earnings 71 71
– 4 Profit after taxation 26 –
– 7 Acquisitions 55 –
– (2) Dividends (12) –
– – Disposals (1) –
– 1 Translation adjustment – –

13 20 Carrying value 148 80

13 20 Directors’ valuation of unlisted associates 148 80
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

16 Investment in associates (continued)
The group’s effective share of certain balance sheet items of its 
associates are as follows: 

11 11 Non-current assets 79 65
10 12 Current assets 94 62

21 23 Total assets 173 127

1 4 Non-current liabilities 34 6
7 5 Current liabilities 37 41

8 9 Total equity and liabilities 71 47

13 14 Net assets 102 80

Reconciliation of the carrying value of investments 
in associates with net assets: 

13 14 Net assets 102 80
– 6 Goodwill 46 –

13 20 Carrying value of investments in associates 148 80

17 Other investments 
Listed investments

– – Balance at beginning of year 3 –
– – Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (note 32) – 3

– – Balance at end of year 3 3

1 – Market value of listed investments 2 6

Unlisted investments 
3 7 Balance at beginning of year 43 18
4 – Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (note 32) – 24
2 1 Additions 11 13

(2) (1) Disposals (5) (12)
– – Translation adjustment 3 –

7 7 Balance at end of year 52 43

7 7 Directors’ valuation of unlisted investments 52 43

7 7 Total other investments 55 46

8 7 Total valuation 54 49

18 Interest in joint ventures 
The group’s effective share of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash 
flows of joint ventures, which are included in the consolidated financial 
statements, are as follows: 

Income statement
108 133 Gold sales 902 661
70 80 Cost of sales 544 428

38 53 Operating profit 358 233
5 (1) Other net income (7) 32
2 3 Investment income 21 12

(14) (16) Finance costs (106) (87)

31 39 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 266 190

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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18 Interest in joint ventures (continued)
Balance sheet

65 573 Non-current assets 4,344 403
55 110 Current assets 836 338

120 683 Total assets 5,180 741

3 425 Shareholders’ equity 3,223 22
3 3 Minority interests 23 21

Non-current liabilities 
74 172 Interest-bearing borrowings 1,304 453
1 2 Provisions 18 7

Current liabilities 
28 47 Interest-bearing borrowings 354 171
11 34 Other 258 67

120 683 Total equity and liabilities 5,180 741

Cash flow statement
42 172 Cash flows from operating activities 1,167 256
(3) (150) Cash flows from investing activities (1,017) (18)

(29) (33) Cash flows from financing activities (224) (177)

10 (11) Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (74) 61

19 AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust 
37 45 Balance at beginning of year 274 219

5 9 Contributions 59 29
4 4 Growth in AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust (note 7) 25 26

(1) (11) Translation adjustment

45 47 Balance at end of year  358 274

Market value of investments held in the AngloGold Environmental 
46 50 Rehabilitation Trust 379 285

20 Long-term loans 
Unsecured

44 45 Loans to joint venture partners 341 273
19 16 Loan to AngloGold Limited Employees’ Share and Debenture Trust 120 115

Interest is payable annually at the official interest rate per the seventh 
schedule of the South African Income Tax Act (note 26) 

14 10 Other 78 87

77 71 539 475
21 21 Less: Current portion of long-term loans included in current assets 161 131

56 50 Total long-term loans 378 344

21 Inventories 
At cost 

101 100 Gold in process 755 620
8 7 Gold on hand 56 50

16 24 By-products 184 101

125 131 Total metal inventories 995 771
65 61 Consumable stores at average cost 458 398

190 192 1,453 1,169

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

22 Trade and other receivables 
82 97 Trade debtors 737 505
12 16 Prepayments and accrued income 121 72
20 15 South African Revenue Services – Value added taxation 111 121

109 101 Other debtors 768 674

223 229 1,737 1,372

23 Cash and cash equivalents 
205 168 Cash and deposits on call 1,276 1,258
288 27 Money market instruments 201 1,773

493 195 1,477 3,031

24 Share capital and premium 

Share capital 

Authorised 

30 30 200,000,000 ordinary shares of 50 cents each 100 100

– – 2,000,000 A redeemable preference shares of 50 cents each 1 1

– – 5,000,000 B redeemable preference shares of 1 cent each – – 

30 30 101 101

Issued

107,021,087 (1999: 106,614,678) ordinary shares of 50 cents each 

8 9 Balance at beginning of year 53 49

1 – Issue of shares 1 4

– (2) Translation adjustment 

9 7 Balance at end of year 54 53

– – 2,000,000 A redeemable preference shares of 50 cents each 1 1

– – 778,896 B redeemable preference shares of 1 cent each – –

– – 1 1

– – Less: Held within the group (1) (1)

– – Balance at end of year – – 

Share premium 

945 1,320 Balance at beginning of year 8,111 5,556

425 17 Movement arising from issue of shares 116 2,597

(7) (3) Share issue expenses written off (18) (42)

(43) (238) Translation adjustment 

1,320 1,096 Balance at end of year 8,209 8,111

(53) (53) Less: Held within the group (312) (312)

1,267 1,043 Balance at end of year 7,897 7,799

1,276 1,050 Share capital and premium 7,951 7,852

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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25 Borrowings 

Unsecured

357 361 Syndicated loan facility 2,734 2,195

Interest charged at libor plus 0.9% per annum. Loan is repayable 

in February 2002.

150 150 Dresdner Gold Loan 1,136 923

The loan has been swapped into dollars. Interest charged at libor 

plus 1% per annum. Loan is repayable in March 2001.

– 120 Credit Agricole 910 –

Interest charged at libor plus 0.75% per annum. Loan is repayable 

by July 2002.

– 110 Dresdner Bank Luxembourg SA 837 –

Interest charged at libor plus 0.6% per annum. Loan is repayable 

in November 2001.

71 43 Loans from Anmercosa Finance Limited 325 440
Interest charged at libor plus 2% per annum. Loan is repayable in 
half-yearly instalments terminating in May 2002.

26 22 Syndicated loan facility 169 162
Interest charged at Bank Bill Swap Offer Rate plus 0.45% per annum. Loan
is repayable by September 2002.

20 22 Loans from Anmercosa Finance Limited 164 124
Interest charged at libor plus 1% per annum. Loan is repayable 
by May 2002.

23 8 J.P. Morgan Gold Loan 57 142
Interest charged at 4.72% per annum. Loan is repayable in May 2001.

– 11 Citibank NA 83 –
Interest charged at libor plus 1.1% per annum. Loan is repayable in 
October and November 2002.

– 10 Bank Boston 78 –
Interest charged at libor plus 1.475% per annum. Loan is repayable 
in instalments commencing May 2002 and terminating in July 2002.

32 8 Unibanco 58 201
Interest charged at libor plus 3.15% per annum. Loan is repayable 
by August 2001.

– 6 Rolls Royce 48 – 
Interest is index linked. Loan is repayable in monthly instalments 
terminating in December 2010. 

– 5 HSBC Bamerindus 38 –
Interest charged at libor plus 1.3% per annum. Loan is repayable in May 2003.

6 4 Senstar Capital Corporation 33 37
Interest charged at an average rate of 8,29% per annum. Loans are repayable 
in monthly instalments terminating in June 2006. 

– 3 Government of Mali 23 –
Interest charged at libor plus 2% per annum. Loan is repayable in 
half-yearly instalments terminating in March 2006.

– 3 Dresdner Bank Luxembourg SA 23 –
Interest charged at libor plus 1.5% per annum. Loan is 
repayable in June and July 2002. 

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

25 Borrowings (continued)
Unsecured (continued)

– 2 Banco do Brasil 15 – 
Interest charged at libor plus 1.15% per annum. Loan is 
repayable in September 2002. 

2 1 Economic Development Corporation 9 11 
Interest charged at libor plus 0.6% per annum. Loan is 
repayable in half-yearly instalments terminating in December 2002. 

8 – Sudamaris Gold Loan – 51 

5 69 Local money market short-term borrowings 514 27 

700 958 Total unsecured borrowings 7,254 4,313

Secured
– 67 Geita – Project finance 511 –

Dresdner Bank Luxembourg SA
Interest charged at libor plus 1.2% per annum. Loan is repayable 
half-yearly until 2007.

78 63 Cerro Vanguardia – Project finance 479 479
Chase Manhattan Syndication Group
Interest charged at libor plus 3.75% per annum. Loan is repayable 
in half-yearly instalments terminating in December 2004.

– 34 Morila – Project finance 259 –
NM Rothschild Syndication Group
Interest charged at libor plus 2.75% per annum. Loan is repayable 
in half-yearly instalments terminating in December 2005.

31 18 Sadiola – Project finance 139 191
Semos Senior Lenders
Interest charged at libor plus 3.5% per annum. Loan is repayable 
in half-yearly instalments terminating in May 2002.

809 1,140 Total borrowings 8,642 4,983
130 430 Less: Current portion of borrowings included in current liabilities 3,261 802

679 710 Total long-term borrowings 5,381 4,181

Amounts falling due 
130 430 Within one year 3,261 802
203 605 Between one and two years 4,587 1,252
476 105 Between two and five years 794 2,929

809 1,140 8,642 4,983

Undrawn borrowing facilities as at 31 December 2000 amount 
to R1,554 million, $205 million (1999: R540 million, $89 million).

Morila and Geita Project Finance
Secured by a fixed and floating charge over the project assets (note 14), 
the hedging contracts and major project contracts and a pledge over 
the shares in the project company.

Sadiola and Cerro Vanguardia Project Finance
Secured by a fixed and floating charge over the project assets (note 14), 
the major project contracts and a pledge over the shares in the project 
company.

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands



71

26 Debentures 
16 19 Balance at beginning of year 115 92

6 2 Allocations during the year 13 34
(2) – Exercised during the year (3) (11)
– (1) Lapsed during the year (5) –

(1) (4) Translation adjustment 

19 16 Balance at end of year (note 20) 120 115

494,900 (1999: 487,500) unsecured variable rate compulsory convertible 
debentures issued in terms of the AngloGold Share Incentive Scheme. 

Interest on these debentures is payable annually at the official interest 
rate per the seventh schedule of the South African Income Tax Act. 

The terms and conditions of the debentures are detailed in the 
directors’ report. 

27 Provisions 
Post-retirement medical funding 

170 140 Balance at beginning of year 862 999
6 – Through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) – 36

(3) – Charge to income statement (note 9) 4 (16)
(27) – Less: Utilised during the year (1) (167)
(6) (22) Translation adjustment 27 10

140 118 Balance at end of year 892 862

The provision for post-retirement medical funding represents the 
provision for health care benefits for employees and retired employees 
and their registered dependants. 

The post-retirement benefit costs are assessed in accordance with the 
advice of independent professionally qualified actuaries. The actuarial 
method used is the projected unit credit funding method. 

The main assumptions used in calculating the costs were an annual 
discount rate of 13.5 per cent, health care inflation of 10.5 per cent, 
normal retirement age of 63 years, and fully eligible age of 55 years. 

The last valuation was performed as at 31 December 2000. 

Environmental rehabilitation obligations 
Provision for decommissioning

36 62 Balance at beginning of year 383 211
25 – Through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) – 154
3 – Unwinding of decommissioning obligation (refer note 6) 2 18
– 1 Prior year adjustment 4 –

(2) (10) Translation adjustment 12 –

62 53 Balance at end of year 401 383

Provision for restoration 
67 132 Balance at beginning of year 814 396
54 1 Through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 4 331
14 – Charge to income statement  – 87
(3) (21) Translation adjustment 37 –

132 112 Balance at end of year 855 814

334 283 Total provisions 2,148 2,059

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

28 Deferred taxation 

Deferred taxation relating to temporary differences is made up 

as follows: 

Deferred taxation liabilities 

810 610 Mining assets 4,621 4,987

14 17 Inventories 131 87

5 8 Other 63 30

829 635 4,815 5,104

Deferred taxation assets 

118 82 Provisions 628 729

711 553 Net deferred taxation 4,187 4,375

The movement on the deferred tax balance is as follows: 

733 711 Balance at beginning of year 4,375 4,311

73 – Through acquisition of subsidiary (note 32) – 449

– (28) Fair value adjustment (note 33) (173) –

6 21 Income statement charge (note 11) 153 38

– (26) Taxation on impairment (note 11) (196) –

(69) – Taxation rate change (note 11) – (423)

(32) (125) Translation adjustment 28 –

711 553 Balance at end of year based on the liability method 4,187 4,375

If partial provision had been made for deferred taxation the 

615 505 taxation liability would have decreased by 3,823 3,787

Balance at 31 December 2000 based on the partial provision 

96 48 for deferred taxation 364 588

29 Trade and other payables 

111 165 Trade creditors 1,251 684

138 69 Accruals 524 847

94 81 Other creditors 614 580

343 315 2,389 2,111

30 Retirement benefits 

Defined benefit pension fund – South African Region

105 91 Fair value of fund assets 687 647

95 88 Present value of fund obligation 669 587

10 3 Funded benefit plan asset 18 60

105  91 Market value of plan assets 687 647

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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30 Retirement benefits (continued)

The assumptions used in calculating the above amounts as at 31 December are: % %

Discount rate 12 12 

Rate of compensation increase 9 9 

Pension increase 8 8 

Rate of return on assets 12 12 

The group has made provision for pension and provident schemes covering substantially all employees. Eligible employees are members of

either AngloGold’s defined benefit fund or one of the industry-based defined contribution funds.

There is one defined benefit scheme and three defined contribution schemes. The assets of these schemes are held in administered trust

funds separated from the group’s assets. Scheme assets primarily consist of listed shares, property trust units and fixed income securities.

South African operations

At the last statutory valuation of the fund as at 31 December 1999, the Pension Fund was certified by the reporting actuaries as being in a

sound financial position, subject to the continuation of the current contribution rates. In arriving at their conclusions, the actuaries took into

account reasonable long-term estimates of inflation, increases in wages, salaries and pension as well as returns on investments. The interim

valuation of the fund as at 31 December 2000 is reflected above.

Any deficits in the defined benefit scheme advised by the actuaries are funded either immediately or through increased contributions to ensure

the ongoing soundness of the scheme. Contributions to the various defined contribution retirement schemes are fully expensed during the year

in which they are funded and the cost of providing retirement benefits for the year amounted to R303 million, $45 million (1999: R353 million,

$58 million).

All funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act of 1956. 

North American operations 

The AngloGold North America Inc. Retirement Plan and the AngloGold North America Inc. Retiree Medical Plan were incorporated during 1999

with the purchase of the Minorco assets.

Retirement Plan – Substantially all AngloGold North America employees at 31 December 1999 were covered by the AngloGold North America Inc.

Retirement Plan (the “Plan”), a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan. Benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s average

monthly compensation. AngloGold North America’s funding policy is to contribute annually an amount equal to or exceeding the minimum funding

requirements under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, but not more than the maximum tax deductible contribution. 

Effective 31 December 1999 the benefits of the Plan participants were frozen. The Plan was terminated during 2000. Curtailment accounting

was applied to the Plan at 31 December 1999 and the liability has been extinguished at 31 December 2000 with the termination of the Plan

and related distribution of Plan assets to participants. 

2000 1999
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

30 Retirement benefits (continued)

North American operations (continued)

Post-retirement benefits – AngloGold North America provides health care and life insurance benefits for certain retired employees under the

AngloGold North America Retiree Medical Plan (the “Retiree Medical Plan”). Participants with ten to fifteen years of service generally become

eligible after reaching retirement age, and AngloGold North America pays a fixed monthly amount that varies on years of service. Post-

retirement benefits are not funded. 

Effective 31 December 1999, no additional employees were eligible to receive post-retirement benefits under the Retiree Medical Plan.

Curtailment accounting was applied at 31 December 1999. 

The Retirement Plan was last evaluated by independent actuaries upon termination of the plan in 2000. The 1999 evaluation of the Retirement

Plan reflected a fair value of the Plan assets of the scheme at R97 million, $16 million and Plan liabilities of R104 million, $17 million at

31 December 1999. At 31 December 2000, all of the Retirement Plan assets were distributed and accrued liabilities related to final dissolution of

the plan are R1 million, $0.1 million.

The Retiree Medical Plan was last evaluated by independent actuaries in December 2000 who took into account reasonable long-term

estimates of increases in health care costs and mortality rates in determining the obligations of AngloGold North America under the Retiree

Medical Plan. The evaluation of the Retiree Medical Plan reflected liabilities of R19 million, $3 million (1999: R12 million, $3 million). The

Retiree Medical Plan is an unfunded plan. The Retiree Medical Plan is evaluated on an annual basis using the projected benefit method.

The cost of providing benefits under the Retirement Plan and the Retiree Medical Plan for the year amounted to R nil million, $ nil million

(1999: R14 million, $2 million) and R nil million, $ nil million (1999: R6 million, $1 million) respectively.

Defined Contribution Plan – AngloGold North America sponsors a 401(k) savings plan whereby employees may contribute up to 16% of their

salary, of which up to 5% is matched at a rate of 150% by AngloGold North America. AngloGold North America’s contributions were

R15 million, $2 million (1999: R10 million, $2 million) during the year. 

Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan – Certain former employees of Minorco (USA) Inc. were covered under the Minorco (USA) Inc.

Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (the “SERP”), a non-contributory defined benefit plan. The SERP was last evaluated by independent

actuaries in 1999 who took into account reasonable long-term estimates of inflation, and mortality rates in determining the obligations of

AngloGold North America under the SERP. This evaluation of the SERP reflected Plan liabilities of R6 million, $1 million (1999: R5 million,

$1 million). The SERP is an unfunded plan. The SERP is evaluated on an annual basis using the projected benefit method. The cost of providing

benefits under the SERP for the year were nominal (1999: R3 million, $0.4 million). 

South American operations 

The South American operations operate a number of defined contribution arrangements for their employees. These arrangements are funded

by the operations (basic plan) and operations/employees (supplementary plan) and are embodied in a pension plan entity, Fundambrás

Sociedade de Previdência Privada, which is responsible for administering the funds and making arrangements to pay the benefits. In

accordance with the annual valuation of the pension fund, performed by independent qualified actuaries, there is no material deficit to be

covered by the operation. 

Australian operations 

The operation contributes to the Australian Retirement Fund for the provision of benefits to employees and their dependants on retirement,

disability, death, resignation or retrenchment. The fund is a multi-industry national fund with defined contribution arrangements. Contribution

rates by the operation on behalf of employees varies, with minimum contributions meeting compliance requirements under the Superannuation

Guarantee legislation. Members also have the option of contributing to approved personal superannuation funds. The operations contributions are

legally enforceable to the extent required by the Superannuation Guarantee legislation and relevant employment agreements. 
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31 Cash generated from operations 

476 251 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,694 2,911

Adjusted for: 

196 217 Amortisation of mining assets (note 14) 1,508 1,199

(4) (7) Profit on sale of assets (note 6) (51) (26)

10 2 Non-cash movements 16 55

(72) (37) Interest receivable (note 7) (250) (437)

(7) (4) Income from associates before taxation (27) (43)

(4) (4) Growth in AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust (note 7) (25) (26)

(1) – Dividends received from other investments (note 7) – (5)

3 – Unwinding of decommissioning obligation (note 6) 2 18

53 69 Finance costs (note 8) 481 321

(89) – Profit on sale of associate – (543)

– 93 Impairment of mining assets (note 14) 708 –

55 20 Amortisation of goodwill (note 15) 135 335

(28) (43) Movements in working capital (294) (172)

588 557 3,897 3,587

Movements in working capital: 

4 (35) (Increase) decrease in inventories (241) 25

(4) (43) Increase in trade and other receivables (292) (27)

(28) 35 Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 239 (170)

(28) (43) (294) (172)

32 Through acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures 

982 311 Mining assets (note 14) 2,254 6,045

4 – Investments (note 17) – 27

– – Long-term loans – 2

78 6 Inventories 43 480

80 5 Trade and other receivables 36 491

49 3 Cash and cash equivalents 22 298

(29) – Minority interests – (176)

(182) (101) Borrowings (742) (1,122)

(85) (1) Provisions (note 27) (4) (521)

(73) – Deferred taxation (note 28) – (449)

(140) (18) Trade and other payables (139) (863)

(1) – Taxation – (8)

683 205 Carrying value 1,470 4,204

276 143 Goodwill (note 15) 1,080 1,700

959 348 Purchase consideration 2,550 5,904

49 3 Less: Cash and cash equivalents 22 298

419 – Less: Paid by issue of ordinary shares – 2,580

23 – Less: Still to be paid by the issue of ordinary shares – 143

468 345 Cash flow on acquisition 2,528 2,883

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

33 Subsequent changes in value of identifiable assets and liabilities

There was a subsequent change to the fair value of assets acquired in 

Acacia Resources Limited at 31 December 1999. Subsequent to 

acquisition, additional evidence became available to assist with the 

estimation of amounts assigned to the assets of Acacia Resources 

Limited, and has resulted in fair value adjustments made as follows: 

–  (134) Mining assets (note 14) (823) –  

–  100 Goodwill (note 15) 611 –  

–  6 Trade and other receivables 39 –  

–  28 Deferred taxation (note 28) 173 –  

–   – – –  

34 Related parties

Related party transactions are concluded on an arm’s length basis. Details of material transactions with those related parties not dealt with

elsewhere in the financial statements are summarised below: 

2000 1999

Purchases Amounts owed Purchases Amounts owed

from related to related from related to related

parties parties parties parties

SA Rands 

With fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Anglo 

American plc group

Boart Longyear Limited – mining services 55 9 67 1

Haggie Limited – mining equipment 32 3 35 2

Mondi Limited – timber 153 – 138 –

Scaw Metals Limited – steel and engineering 56 – 50 –

Shaft Sinkers (Pty) Ltd – mining services 93 – 112 –

With associates

Rand Refinery Limited – gold refinery 27 – 25 –

US Dollars 

With fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the 

Anglo American plc group

Boart Longyear Limited – mining services 7 1 11 –

Haggie Limited – mining equipment 4 – 6 –

Mondi Limited – timber 20 – 18 –

Scaw Metals Limited – steel and engineering 7 – 7 –

Shaft Sinkers (Pty) Ltd – mining services 12 – 18 –

With associates

Rand Refinery Limited – gold refinery 4 – 4 –

Directors

Details relating to directors’ emoluments and shareholdings in the company are disclosed in the directors’ report.

Shareholders

The principal shareholders of the company are detailed on page 101. 

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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35 Commitments and contingencies 

Mining assets 

62 59 Contracted for 447 382

906 656 Not contracted for 4,969 5,576

968 715 Authorised by the directors 5,416 5,958

Allocated for:

Expansion of capacity 

309 55 – within one year 413 1,901

628 546 – thereafter 4,134 3,864

937 601 4,547 5,765

Maintenance of capacity

5 4 – within one year 34 31

26 110 – thereafter 835 162 

31 114 869 193

This expenditure will be financed from existing cash resources and future borrowings. 

The group has given collateral security to certain banks in respect of mortgage loans advanced to employees under its home ownership scheme

amounting to: R3 million, $0.4 million (1999: R8 million, $1 million). 

The group has also given collateral to certain bankers for satisfactory contract performance in relation to exploration and development

tenements and mining operations in Australia amounting to R61 million, $8 million, (1999: R40 million, $6 million).

The hedge book of Cerro Vanguardia S.A. has been guaranteed by AngloGold Limited. The marked-to-market loss amounts to R37 million,

$5 million at 31 December 2000. At 31 December 1999 the marked-to-market loss amounted to R246 million, $40 million.

AngloGold has provided a completion guarantee on the Geita Project Finance. This contingent liability amounts to R68 million, $9 million.

AngloGold USA Incorporated has posted reclamation bonds with various Federal, Nevada, and Colorado governmental agencies in amounts

aggregating approximately R438 million, $58 million (1999: R297 million, $48 million). These performance bonds are guaranteed by

AngloGold Limited. 

There is a potential claim against the South African region in respect of contamination of the water supply amounting to R9 million,

$1 million.

36 Risk management activities

In the normal course of its operations, the group is exposed to gold price, currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risks. In order to

manage these risks, the group may enter into transactions which make use of both on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments. The group

does not acquire, hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes. The group has developed a comprehensive risk management

process to facilitate, control and to monitor these risks. The board has approved and monitors this risk management process, inclusive of

documented treasury policies, counterpart limits, controlling and reporting structures. 

Controlling risk in the group

The executive committee and the treasury committee are responsible for risk management activities within the group. The treasury

committee, chaired by an independent member of the AngloGold audit committee, comprising executive members and treasury executives,

reviews and recommends to the executive committee all treasury counterparts, limits, instruments and hedge strategies. The treasurer is

responsible for managing investment, gold price, currency and liquidity risk. Within the treasury function, there is an independent risk

function, which monitors adherence to treasury risk management policy, counterpart and dealer limits and provides regular and detailed

management reports. 

1999 2000 2000 1999

US Dollars SA Rands
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

36 Risk management activities (continued)

Gold price and currency risk

Gold price risk arises from the risk of an adverse effect on current or future earnings resulting from fluctuations in the price of gold. The

gold market is predominately priced in US dollars which exposes the group to the risk that fluctuations in the SA rand/US dollar, Brazilian

real/US dollar and Australian dollar/US dollar exchange rate may also have an adverse effect on current or future earnings. 

A number of products, including derivative instruments are used to manage well-defined gold price and foreign exchange risks, that arise out

of the group’s core business activities. Fixed and spot-deferred forward-sales contracts and call and put options are used by the group to

protect itself from downward fluctuations in the gold price. These instruments establish a minimum price for a portion of future production

while maintaining the ability to benefit from increases in the gold price for the majority of future gold production. 

Net delta open hedge position as at 31 December 2000
The group had the following net forward-pricing commitments outstanding against future production. A portion of these sales consists of
US dollar-priced contracts which have been converted to rand prices at average annual forward rand exchange rates/values based on a spot
rand/dollar rate of R7.57 available on 31 December 2000. 

Table A: Summary: Net delta open hedge position as at 31 December 2000

12 Months ending Kilograms Forward price Forward price Ounces
31 December sold R/kg US$/oz sold (000)

2001 169,166 74,574 301 5,439
2002 102,949 81,600 313 3,310
2003 71,979 87,732 317 2,314
2004 51,614 94,099 319 1,659
2005 43,111 109,164 346 1,386

January 2006 – December 2010 115,882 121,742 335 3,726

554,701 91,944 317 17,834

Table B: Summary: All open contracts in the group’s gold hedge position as at 31 December 2000

Year 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006-2010 Total

Dollar/Gold
Forward contracts
Amount (kg) 87,901 41,427 37,263 28,854 23,437 77,970 296,852
US$/oz $308 $317 $324 $324 $335 $350 $326

Put options purchased
Amount (kg) 10,109 3,110 4,977 1,866 20,062
US$/oz $313 $407 $362 $433 $351
*Delta (kg) 5,858 3,020 3,799 1,643 14,320

Call options purchased
Amount (kg) 2,658 741 667 572 4,638
US$/oz $342 $340 $350 $360 $345
*Delta (kg) 139 142 181 186 648

Call options sold
Amount (kg) 24,503 11,885 10,463 3,303 1,704 2,234 54,092
US$/oz $305 $373 $372 $342 $358 $338 $338
*Delta (kg) 8,590 1,432 2,211 1,391 723 1,331 15,678

Rand/Gold
Forward contracts
Amount (kg) 41,382 41,474 16,706 13,311 12,700 18,433 144,006
R/kg R73,962 R78,433 R83,670 R89,500 R115,704 R127,526 R88,350

Put options purchased
Amount (kg) 2,644 2,644
R/kg R71,668 R71,668
*Delta (kg) 1,457 1,457
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36 Risk management activities (continued)
Table B: Summary: All open contracts in the group’s gold hedge position as at 31 December 2000

Year 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006-2010 Total

Call options sold

Amount (kg) 18,214 14,357 4,519 1,875 3,119 1,874 43,958

R/kg R78,116 R87,003 R93,766 R93,603 R125,774 R93,603 R87,330

*Delta (kg) 3,561 3,883 1,567 1,157 1,445 1,602 13,215

AU dollar/Gold

Forward contracts

Amount (kg) 20,660 12,597 10,731 5,443 6,221 31,725 87,377

AU$/oz AU$518 AU$612 AU$554 AU$529 AU$622 AU$568 AU$562

Call options purchased

Amount (kg) 4,121 6,687 778 4,665 31,726 47,977

AU$/oz AU$717 AU$728 AU$703 AU$704 AU$684 AU$695

*Delta (kg) 103 742 117 1,414 15,180 17,556

Rand/Dollar (000) 

Forward contracts 

Amount (US$) 150,172 20,000 170,172

ZAR per US$ R7.32 R6.48 R7.22

Put options purchased 

Amount (US$) 190,000 190,000

ZAR per US$ R7.33 R7.33

*Delta (US$) 41,726 41,726

Put options sold 

Amount (US$) 90,000 90,000

ZAR per US$ R7.25 R7.25

*Delta (US$) 17,341 17,341

Call options purchased 

Amount (US$) 30,470 5,450 35,920

ZAR per US$ R7.30 R6.48 R7.17

*Delta (US$) 20,127 5,170 25,297

Call options sold 

Amount (US$) 264,170 33,450 8,000 305,620

ZAR per US$ R7.82 R7.06 R6.94 R7.71

*Delta (US$) 141,676 27,644 7,297 176,617

AU Dollar (000) 

Forward contracts

Amount (US$) 39,161 43,748 29,427 112,336

US$ Per AU$ AU$0.65 AU$0.58 AU$0.59 AU$0.61

* The delta position indicated above reflects the nominal amount of the option multiplied by the mathematical probability of the option being exercised. This

is calculated using the Black and Scholes option formula with the ruling market prices, together with interest rates and volatilities as at 31 December 2000.

The mix of hedging instruments, the volume of production hedged and the tenor of the hedging book is continually reviewed in the light

of changes in operational forecasts, market conditions and the group’s hedging policy. 

Forward sales contracts require the future delivery of gold at a specified price. A number of these contracts are spot-deferred to be used by

the group for delivery against production in a future period. 

A put option gives the put buyer the right, but not the obligation, to sell gold to the put seller at a predetermined price on a

predetermined date. 
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

36 Risk management activities (continued)

A call option gives the call buyer the right, but not the obligation, to buy gold from the call seller at a predetermined price on a

predetermined date. 

Net cash receipts received under the option hedging strategies for the year were R327 million, $48 million (1999: R281 million, $46 million). 

Interest rate and liquidity risk

Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the value of short-term cash investments and financing activities, giving rise to interest rate risk. 

In the ordinary course of business, the group receives cash from the proceeds of its gold sales and is required to fund working capital

requirements. This cash is managed to ensure surplus funds are invested in a manner to achieve market related returns while minimising risks.

The group is able to actively source financing at competitive rates. 

The group has sufficient undrawn borrowing facilities available to fund any working capital requirements.

Investment maturity profile

Fixed rate Floating rate 

investment investment

Currency (borrowings) Effective (borrowings) Effective

Maturity date millions amount rate % amount rate %

Less than one year SA Rand – – 45 9.5

US$ 28 6.6 151 6.4

AU$ – – 17 4.5

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the risk that a counterpart may default or not meet its obligations timeously. The group minimises credit risk by

ensuring that credit risk is spread over a number of counterparts. These counterparts are financial and banking institutions of the highest

quality. Where possible, management tries to ensure that netting agreements are in place. 

Trade debtors comprise a small group of international companies. No provision for doubtful debts was made as the principal debtors continue

to be in a sound financial position. 

The group does not generally obtain collateral or other security to support financial instruments subject to credit risk, but monitors the

credit standing of counterparts. The group believes that no concentration of credit exists. 

Fair value

The estimated fair values of financial instruments are determined at discrete points in time based on relevant market information. These

estimates involve uncertainties and cannot be determined with precision. The estimated fair values of the group’s financial instruments as at

31 December are as follows: 

2000 1999

SA Rands Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Type of instrument amount value amount value

Trade and other receivables 1,737 1,737 1,372 1,372

Cash and cash equivalents 1,477 1,477 3,031 3,031

– Cash and deposits on call 1,276 1,276 1,258 1,258

– Money market instruments 201 201 1,773 1,773

Borrowings 8,642 8,642 4,983 4,983

Trade and other payables 2,389 2,389 2,111 2,111

Forward sale contracts – 1,451 – 1,204

Option contracts – 177 – 134

Foreign exchange contracts – (145) – (25)

Foreign exchange option contracts – (90) – (25)
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36 Risk management activities (continued)

2000 1999

US Dollars Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Type of instrument amount value amount value

Trade and other receivables 229 229 223 223

Cash and cash equivalents 195 195 493 493

– Cash and deposits on call 168 168 205 205

– Money market instruments 27 27 288 288

Borrowings 1,140 1,140 809 809

Trade and other payables 315 315 343 343

Forward sale contracts – 192 – 196

Option contracts – 23 – 22

Foreign exchange contracts – (19) – (4)

Foreign exchange option contracts – (12) – (4)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument: 

Trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables

The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short-term duration of these instruments.

Borrowings

The existing debt re-prices on a short-term floating rate basis, and accordingly the carrying amount is considered to approximate fair value. 

Derivative instruments

The fair values of forward sales contracts and derivative instruments are estimated based on the ruling market prices, volatilities and

interest rates at 31 December 2000.

37 Comparative figures 

Where appropriate, comparative figures have been restated to facilitate improved disclosure. 

Dividends to shareholders are now accounted for on the date of declaration as a result of the adoption of IAS10. As a result, the retained

earnings have been restated as disclosed in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. 

38 Events after balance sheet date 

AngloGold Limited has announced that it has reached agreement in principle on the sale of two of its South African gold mines, Elandsrand

and Deelkraal, to Harmony Gold Mining Company Limited for R1 billion ($132 million) in cash.

The transaction is subject to the fulfilment of the following suspensive conditions:

• obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals for the transfer of the mineral rights and the cession of the mining leases from the Minister

of Minerals and Energy;

• granting the necessary mining authorisations to Harmony;

• obtaining approval of the transaction by the shareholders of Harmony in general meeting;

• obtaining approval of the transaction from the Competitions Tribunal and the Minister of Trade and Industry in terms of the Competition

Act (Act 89 of 1998). 

The above will have a positive impact on the group’s earnings.
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Company income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

Revenue 1 11,404 12,075

Gold sales 1 11,021 11,055

Cost of sales 2 (8,849) (8,747)

Operating profit 2,172 2,308

Corporate administration and other expenses (178) (180)

Market development costs (82) (91)

Research and development costs (54) (43)

Royalties paid (220) (637)

Exploration costs (133) (211)

Profit from operations 1,505 1,146

Other net income 3 21 16

Investment income 4 165 781

Finance costs 5 (106) (85)

Profit before exceptional items 6 1,585 1,858

Profit on sale of associate – 543

Impairment of mining assets 10 (470) –

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,115 2,401

Taxation 8 (187) 70

Net profit 928 2,471

Notes 2000 1999

SA Rands
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Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2000

Figures in million

ASSETS 

Non-current assets

Mining assets 10 11,144 11,271

Investments in associates 11 148 80

Investments in subsidiaries 5,795 5,795

Other investments 12 22 11

AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust 13 279 220

Inter-group balances 2,021 –

Long-term loans 14 157 157

19,566 17,534

Current assets

Inventories 15 639 594

Trade and other receivables 16 694 810

Current portion of inter-group balances 223 50

Cash and cash equivalents 17 234 2,215

1,790 3,669

Total assets 21,356 21,203

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Share capital and premium 18 8,264 8,165

Non-distributable reserve (6) 141

Retained earnings 1,957 3,010

Shareholders’ equity 10,215 11,316

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 19 918 930

Debentures 20 120 115

Provisions 21 1,396 1,450

Inter-group balances 1,668 1,668

Deferred taxation 22 3,867 3,915

7,969 8,078

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 1,309 1,478 

Current portion of borrowings 19 1,651 4

Taxation 212 327

3,172 1,809

Total equity and liabilities 21,356 21,203

Notes 2000 1999

SA Rands
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Company cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash receipts from customers 11,322 11,577

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (9,288) (9,725)

Cash generated from operations 25 2,034 1,852

Interest receivable 138 321

Contributions to the AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust 13 (59) (29)

Dividends received from listed associate – 33

Dividends received from unlisted associate 11 12 –

Dividends received from other investments – 417

Finance costs (106) (85)

Mining and normal taxation paid (349) (271)

Dividends paid 9 (1,981) (1,664)

Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities (311) 574

Cash flows from investing activities 

Capital expenditure 10 (1 066) (930)

– to maintain operations (158) (221)

– to expand operations (908) (709)

Proceeds from sale of mining assets 8 24

Associate acquired 11 (55) –

Proceeds from sale of associate – 1,314

Other investments acquired 12 (11) (4)

Through acquisition of subsidiaries – (953)

Inter-group loans advanced (1,923) –

Repayment of loans advanced 5 8

Net cash outflow from investing activities (3,042) (541)

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of share capital 12 21

Share issue expenses 18 (18) (42)

Proceeds from borrowings 1,382 928

Repayment of borrowings (4) (16)

Net cash inflow from financing activities 1,372 891

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,981) 924

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,215 1,291

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 234 2,215

Notes 2000 1999

SA Rands
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Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
for the year ended 31 December 2000

Figures in million

Ordinary and

Ordinary and preference Non-

preference share distributable Retained

share capital premium reserve* earnings Total 

SA Rands

Balance at 31 December 1998 as previously reported 50 5,556 141 1,420 7,167 

Effect of change in treatment of dividends paid 783 783 

Restated balance at 31 December 1998 50 5,556 141 2,203 7,950 

Net profit 2,471 2,471 

Dividends (note 9) (1,664) (1,664)

Ordinary shares issued 4 2,597 2,601 

Share issue expenses written off (42) (42) 

Balance at 31 December 1999 54 8,111 141 3,010 11,316 

Net profit 928 928

Dividends (note 9) (1,981) (1,981) 

Ordinary shares issued 1 116 117

Share issue expenses written off (18) (18)

Revaluation adjustment (147) (147)

Balance at 31 December 2000 55 8,209 (6) 1,957 10,215

Note 18 18

* Non-distributable reserve comprises a surplus on disposal of company shares within the group (R141 million), revaluation of foreign denominated loans and inter-

group balances (R147 million).
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Notes to company financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

1 Revenue 

Revenue consists of the following principal categories: 

Sale of gold 11,021 11,055

Sale of uranium, silver and sulphuric acid 245 282

Interest receivable (note 4) 138 321

Dividends received from other investments (note 4) – 417

11,404 12,075

2 Cost of sales 

Cash operating costs 8,121 7,892

Other cash costs 34 58

Total cash costs 8,155 7,950

Retrenchment costs (note 7) 98 54

Rehabilitation and other non-cash costs (48) 57

Production costs 8,205 8,061

Amortisation of mining assets (note 10) 704 676

Total production costs 8,909 8,737

Inventory change (60) 10

8,849 8,747

3 Other net income 

Other net income consists of the following principal categories: 

Exchange gain on transactions other than sales 14 17

Profit on sale of assets 7 14

21 31

Unwinding of decommissioning obligation (note 21) – (15)

21 16

4 Investment income 

Investment income consists of the following principal categories: 

Interest receivable (note 1) 138 321

Income from associates before taxation 27 43

Dividends received from other investments (note 1) – 417

165 781

2000 1999

SA Rands
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5 Finance costs 
Interest paid on bank loans and overdrafts 90 68
Interest paid on debentures 16 17

106 85

6 Profit before exceptional items is arrived at after taking account of:

Auditors’ remuneration 4 2

Audit fees 3 2
Underprovision prior year 1 –
Other services – –

Grants for educational and community development 14 5
Operating lease charges 9 8

7 Employee benefits 
The average monthly number of employees, including contractors during the year 
was made up as follows: 79,124 82,645

Surface 16,130 17,022
Underground 62,994 65,623

Employee costs including executive directors 4,976 4,770

Salaries, wages and other benefits 4,496 4,269
Defined contribution pension plans expense 303 353
Post-retirement medical costs 36 48
Defined benefit expense
– current service cost 32 30
– interest cost 75 67
– expected return on plan assets (24) (189)
– actuarial (gain) loss (40) 108
– past service costs – 30
Retrenchment costs (note 2) 98 54

Actual return on plan assets
– defined benefit pension plan 24 189

Refer to directors’ report for details of directors’ emoluments.

2000 1999

SA Rands
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Notes to company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

8 Taxation 

Current taxation 235 363 

Mining taxation 44 33 

Non-mining taxation 187 331 

Under (over) provision prior years 3 (13) 

Share of associates’ taxation 1 12 

Deferred taxation (48) (433) 

Current (note 22) 148 27 

Impairment (note 22) (196) – 

Rate change (note 22) – (423) 

Share of associates’ taxation – rate change – (37) 

187 (70) 

2000 1999 

Non-mining Mining Non-mining Mining 

Tax reconciliation % % % % 

A reconciliation of the mining and non-mining tax rate compared with 

that charged in the income statement is set out in the following table: 

Marginal tax rate 38 46 38 46 

Adjusted for hedge revenue 27 (13) 32 (23) 

Disallowed expenditure 2 6 1 12 

Write back of amortisation and inventory change – 26 – 26 

Mining capital appropriation – (32) – (35) 

Mining tax formula adjustment – – – (12) 

Dividends received (31) – (26) –

Royalties – (25) – (25) 

Change in tax rate – – – (37) 

Other 5 (4) 3 14 

Effective tax rate 41 4 48 (34) 

The company has unredeemed capital expenditure estimated at R3,161 million (1999: R2,995 million) which is available for set-off against

future taxable income from the mining operations of Joel mine. 

2000 1999

SA Rands

9 Dividends

Ordinary shares 

No.87 of 1,100 SA cents per ordinary share declared on 9 February 2000 

and paid on 31 March 2000. 1,178 783

No.88 of 750 SA cents per ordinary share declared on 26 July 2000 

and paid on 22 September 2000. 803 881

1,981 1,664

Dividend No. 89 of 650 SA cents per ordinary share was declared on 30 January 2001. 

2000 1999

SA Rands
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Mineral
Mine Mine rights,

development infra- dumps and 
costs structure ore reserves Land Total

10 Mining assets 
SA Rands 
Cost 
Balance at 31 December 1998 12,530 4,314 367 35 17,246 
Additions 922 3 5 – 930 
Transfers and disposals 26 (2) – – 24 

Balance at 31 December 1999 13,478 4,315 372 35 18,200 
Additions 1,010 56 – – 1,066
Transfers and disposals – (19) – – (19)

Balance at 31 December 2000 14,488 4,352 372 35 19,247 

Accumulated amortisation 
Balance at 31 December 1998 3,953 2,260 15 – 6,228 
Amortisation charge for the year (note 2) 534 111 31 – 676 
Transfers and disposals 25 – – – 25 

Balance at 31 December 1999 4,512 2,371 46 – 6,929 
Amortisation charge for the year (note 2) 556 125 23 – 704
Impairments 470 – – – 470

Balance at 31 December 2000 5,538 2,496 69 – 8,103

Net book value at 31 December 1999 8,966 1,944 326 35 11,271 
Net book value at 31 December 2000 8,950 1,856 303 35 11,144

South Africa 
The South African operations consisting of several cash generating units, recognised an impairment loss of R470 million (before taxation) in
respect of mining assets. The impairment loss was made up as follows:

2000

SA Rands

Ergo and Matjhabeng based on the value in use and at the relevant discount rate. 173
Freddies Four Shaft being a discontinued project at the full remaining book value of the mining assets 23
Elandsrand and Deelkraal operations based on the net selling price per the agreement with Harmony 
Gold Mining Company Limited dated 31 January 2001. 274

470

The impairment loss in respect of the cash generating units arose from the declining values of the remaining ore reserves and the view that
the bullion price was unlikely to recover substantially from its low levels in the medium-term.

2000 1999

SA Rands

11 Investment in associates 
The company has the following associated undertakings:
– A 42.73% (1999: 42.73%) interest in Rand Refinery Limited, which is involved in the refining of bullion 

and by-products which are sourced inter alia from South African and foreign gold producing mining 
companies. The year end of Rand Refinery Limited is 30 September. 

– A 25% (1999:  Nil) interest in Oro Group (Proprietary) Limited which is involved in the manufacture 
and wholesale of jewellery. The year end of Oro Group (Proprietary) Limited is March. 
Equity accounting is based on the results for the six months ended 30 September 2000.

Carrying value of associates consists of: 
Unlisted shares at cost 9 9
Share of retained earnings 71 71
Profit after taxation 26 –
Acquisitions 55 –
Dividends (12) –
Disposals (1) –

Carrying value 148 80

Directors’ valuation of unlisted associates 148 80
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Notes to company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

11 Investment in associates (continued)

The company’s effective share of certain balance sheet items of its associates are as follows: 

Non-current assets 79 65

Current assets 94 62

Total assets 173 127

Non-current liabilities 34 6

Current liabilities 37 41

Total equity and liabilities 71 47

Net assets 102 80

Reconciliation of the carrying value of investments in associates with net assets
Net assets 102 80
Goodwill 46 –

Carrying value of investment in associates 148 80

12 Other investments 

Listed investments 

Balance at beginning of year – 1

Disposals – (1)

Balance at end of year – –

Market value of listed investments – –

Unlisted investments 

Balance at beginning of year 11 17

Additions 11 4

Disposals – (10)

Balance at end of year 22 11

Directors’ valuation of unlisted investments 22 11

Total other investments 22 11

Total valuation 22 11

13 AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust 

Balance at beginning of year 220 191

Contributions 59 29

Balance at end of year 279 220

Market value of investments held in the AngloGold Environmental Rehabilitation Trust 379 285

14 Long-term loans 

Unsecured

Loan to AngloGold Limited Employees’ Share and Debenture Trust on which interest is payable annually 

at the official interest rate per the seventh schedule of the South African Income Tax Act (note 20) 120 115

Other 37 42

157 157

2000 1999

SA Rands
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15 Inventories 

At cost 

Gold in process 317 277

Gold on hand 20 –

By-products 89 80

Total metal inventories 426 357

Consumable stores at average cost 213 237

639 594

16 Trade and other receivables 

Trade debtors 114 170

Prepayments and accrued income 3 39

South African Revenue Services – Value added taxation 111 121

Other debtors 466 480

694 810

17 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and deposits on call 76 1,715

Money market instruments 158 500

234 2,215

18 Share capital and premium 

Share capital

Authorised

200,000,000 ordinary shares of 50 cents each 100 100

2,000,000 A redeemable preference shares of 50 cents each 1 1

5,000,000 B redeemable preference shares of 1 cent each – –

101 101

Issued 

107,021,087 (1999: 106,614,678) ordinary shares of 50 cents each 

Balance at beginning of year 53 49

Issue of shares 1 4

Balance at end of year 54 53

2,000,000 A redeemable preference shares of 50 cents each 1 1

778,896 B redeemable preference shares of 1 cent each – –

Balance at end of year 1 1

Share premium 

Balance at beginning of year 8,111 5,556

Movement arising from issue of shares 116 2,597

Share issue expenses written off (18) (42)

Balance at end of year 8,209 8,111

Share capital and premium 8,264 8,165

2000 1999

SA Rands
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Notes to company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

19 Borrowings 
Unsecured loans
Dresdner Gold Loan 1,136 923
The loan has been swapped into dollars. Interest charged at libor plus 1% per annum.
Loan is repayable in March 2001. 

Credit Agricole 910 –
Interest charged at libor plus 0.75% per annum. Loan is repayable by July 2002. 

Economic Development Corporation 9 11
Interest charged at libor plus 0.6% per annum. Loan is repayable in half-yearly instalments 
terminating in December 2002. 

Local money market short-term borrowings 514 –

Total borrowings 2,569 934
Less: Current portion of borrowings included in current liabilities 1,651 4

Total long-term borrowings 918 930

Amounts falling due 
Within one year 1,651 4
Between one and two years 918 926
Between two and five years – 4

2,569 934

20 Debentures 
Balance at beginning of year 115 92
Allocations during the year 13 34
Exercised during the year (3) (11)
Repurchased during the year (5) –

Balance at end of year (note 14) 120 115

494,900 (1999: 487,500) unsecured variable rate compulsory convertible debentures issued in terms of 
the AngloGold Share Incentive Scheme. 

Interest on these debentures is payable annually at the official interest rate per the seventh schedule 
of the South African Income Tax Act. 

The terms and conditions of the debentures are detailed in the directors’ report. 

21 Provisions 
Post-retirement medical funding 746 746

The provision for post-retirement medical funding represents the provision for health care benefits 
for employees and retired employees and their registered dependants. 

The post-retirement benefit costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent 
professionally qualified actuaries. The actuarial method used is the projected unit credit funding method. 

The main assumptions used in calculating the costs were an annual discount rate of 13.5 per cent, health 
care inflation of 10.5 per cent, normal retirement age of 63 years, and fully eligible age of 55 years.
The last valuation was performed as at 31 December 2000. 

Environmental rehabilitation obligations
Provision for decommissioning 
Balance at beginning of year 312 297
Unwinding of decommissioning obligation (note 3) – 15

Balance at end of year 312 312

2000 1999

SA Rands
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21 Provisions (continued)
Provision for restoration
Balance at beginning of year 392 337
Charge to income statement (54) 55

Balance at end of year 338 392

Total provisions 1,396 1,450

22 Deferred taxation 
Deferred taxation relating to temporary differences is made up as follows: 
Deferred taxation liabilities 
Mining assets 4,294 4,460 
Inventories 142 121 
Other 4 10 

4,440 4,591 
Deferred taxation assets 
Provisions 573 676 

Net deferred taxation 3,867 3,915 

The movement on the deferred tax balance is as follows: 
Balance at beginning of year 3,915 4,311 
Income statement charge (note 8) 148 27 
Taxation on impairment (note 8) (196) – 
Taxation rate change (note 8) – (423) 

Balance at end of year 3,867 3,915 

23 Trade and other payables 
Trade creditors 437 324 
Accruals 326 691 
Other creditors 546 463 

1,309 1,478 

24 Retirement benefits 
Defined benefit pension fund 
Fair value of fund assets 687 647
Present value of fund obligation 669 587

Funded benefit plan asset 18 60

Market value of plan assets 687 647

The assumptions used in calculating the above amounts as at 31 December are: % %
Discount rate 12 12
Rate of compensation increase 9 9
Pension increase 8 8
Rate of return on assets 12 12

2000 1999

SA Rands



94

Notes to company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

24 Retirement benefits (continued)

The company has made provision for pension and provident schemes covering substantially all employees. Eligible employees are members of

either AngloGold’s defined benefit fund or one of the industry-based defined contribution funds. 

At the last statutory valuation of the fund as at 31 December 1999 the Pension Fund was certified by the reporting actuaries as being in a

sound financial position, subject to the continuation of the current contribution rates. In arriving at their conclusions, the actuaries took into

account reasonable long-term estimates of inflation, increases in wages, salaries and pension as well as returns on investments. The interim

valuation of the fund as at 31 December 2000 is reflected above.

Any deficits in the defined benefit scheme advised by the actuaries are funded either immediately or through increased contributions to ensure

the ongoing soundness of the scheme. Contributions to the various defined contribution retirement schemes are fully expensed during the year

in which they are funded and the cost of providing retirement benefits for the year amounted to R303 million (1999: R353 million).

All funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act of 1956. 

2000 1999

SA Rands

25 Cash generated from operations 
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,115 2,401
Adjusted for: 
Amortisation of mining assets (note 10) 704 676
Profit on sale of assets (note 3) (7) (14)
Non-cash movements (48) 57
Interest receivable (note 4) (138) (321)
Income from associates before taxation (note 4) (27) (43)
Dividends received from other investments – (417)
Unwinding of decommissioning obligation (note 3) – 15
Finance costs (note 5) 106 85
Profit on sale of associate – (543)
Impairment of mining assets (note 10) 470 –
Movements in working capital (141) (44)

2,034 1,852

Movements in working capital: 
(Increase) decrease in inventories (45) 83
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables 116 (76)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables (64) 190
Decrease in current portion of inter-group balances (148) (241)

(141) (44)

26 Related parties
Related party transactions are concluded on an arm’s length basis. Details of material transactions with those related parties not dealt with
elsewhere in the financial statements are summarised below: 

2000 1999
Purchases Amounts owed Purchases Amounts owed

from related to related from related to related
parties parties parties parties

With fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Anglo 

American plc group
Boart Longyear Limited – mining services 52 9 64 1
Haggie Limited – mining equipment 32 3 35 2
Mondi Limited – timber 153 – 138 –
Scaw Metals Limited – steel and engineering 55 – 50 –
Shaft Sinkers (Pty) Ltd – mining services 93 – 112 –

With associates
Rand Refinery Limited – gold refinery 27 – 25 –



95

27 Commitments and contingencies 
Mining assets 
Contracted for 356 331
Not contracted for 4,638 5,237

Authorised by the directors 4,994 5,568

Allocated for: 
Expansion of capacity 
– within one year 327 1,133
– thereafter 3,998 4,355

4,325 5,488

Maintenance of capacity 
– within one year 29 10
– thereafter 640 70

669 80

This expenditure will be financed from existing cash resources and future borrowings. 

The company has given collateral security to certain banks in respect of mortgage loans advanced to employees under its home ownership
scheme amounting to R3 million (1999: R8 million). 

There is a potential claim against the South African region in respect of contamination of the water supply amounting to R9 million. 

28 Risk management activities 
In the normal course of its operations, the company is exposed to gold price, currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risks. In order to
manage these risks, the company may enter into transactions which make use of both on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments. The
company does not acquire, hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes. The company has developed a comprehensive risk
management process to facilitate, control and to monitor these risks. The board has approved and monitors this risk management process,
inclusive of documented treasury policies, counterpart limits, controlling and reporting structures. 

Controlling risk in the company
The executive committee and the treasury committee are responsible for risk management activities within the company. The treasury
committee, chaired by an independent member of the AngloGold audit committee, comprising executive members and treasury executives,
reviews and recommends to the executive committee all treasury counterparts, limits, instruments and hedge strategies. The treasurer is
responsible for managing investment, gold price, currency and liquidity risk. Within the treasury function, there is an independent risk
function, which monitors adherence to treasury risk management policy, counterpart and dealer limits and provides regular and detailed
management reports. 

Gold price and currency risk
Gold price risk arises from the risk of an adverse effect on current or future earnings resulting from fluctuations in the price of gold. The
gold market is predominately priced in US dollars which exposes the company to the risk that fluctuations in the SA rand/US dollar exchange
rate may also have an adverse effect on current or future earnings. 

A number of products, including derivative instruments are used to manage well-defined gold price and foreign exchange risks, that arise out
of the company’s core business activities. Fixed and spot-deferred forward-sales contracts and call and put options are used by the company
to protect itself from downward fluctuations in the gold price. These instruments establish a minimum price for a portion of future
production while maintaining the ability to benefit from increases in the gold price for the majority of future gold production. 

Net delta open hedge position as at 31 December 2000
The company had the following net forward-pricing commitments outstanding against future production. A portion of these sales consists of
US dollar-priced contracts which have been converted to rand prices at average annual forward rand exchange rates/values based on a spot
rand/dollar rate of R7.57 available on 31 December 2000. 

2000 1999

SA Rands
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Notes to company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

28 Risk management activities (continued)

Table A: Summary: Net delta open hedge position as at 31 December 2000

12 Months ending Kilograms Forward price Forward price Ounces
31 December sold R/kg US$/oz sold (000)

2001 96,137 R74,841 $302 3,091
2002 65,167 R80,652 $309 2,095
2003 37,990 R88,854 $321 1,221
2004 27,270 R94,625 $321 877
2005 22,832 R112,842 $358 734

January 2006 – December 2010 39,079 R127,668 $351 1,257

288,475 R90,033 $319 9,275

Table B: Summary: All open contracts in the company’s gold hedge position as at 31 December 2000

Year 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006-2010 Total

Dollar/Gold
Forward contracts
Amount (kg) 39,564 15,707 14,308 10,420 8,242 18,818 107,059
US$/oz $306 $315 $326 $324 $336 $359 $323

Put options purchased
Amount (kg) 10,109 3,110 4,977 1,866 20,062 
US$/oz $313 $407 $362 $433 $351 
*Delta (kg) 5,858 3,020 3,799 1,643 14,320 

Call options purchased
Amount (kg) 1,555 1,555
US$/oz $350 $350
*Delta (kg) 75 75

Call options sold
Amount (kg) 16,485 10,731 8,864 1,866 1,244 622 39,812 
US$/oz $319 $375 $379 $347 $374 $385 $351 
*Delta (kg) 4,763 1,176 1,610 739 445 227 8,960 

Rand/Gold
Forward contracts
Amount (kg) 41,009 41,381 16,706 13,311 12,700 18,433 143,540 
R/kg R73,955 R78,433 R83,670 R89,500 R115,704 R127,526 R88,391 

Put options purchased
Amount (kg) 2,644 2,644 
R/kg R71,668 R71,668 
*Delta (kg) 1,457 1,457

Call options sold
Amount (kg) 18,214 14,357 4,519 1,875 3,119 1,874 43,958 
R/kg R78,116 R87,003 R93,766 R93,603 R125,774 R93,603 87,330 
*Delta (kg) 3,561 3,883 1,567 1,157 1,445 1,602 13,215 
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28 Risk management activities (continued)
Table B: Summary: All open contracts in the company’s gold hedge position as at 31 December 2000 (continued)

Year 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006-2010 Total

Rand/Dollar (000) 
Forward contracts 
Amount (US$) 150,172 20,000 170,172 
ZAR per US$ R7.32 R6.48 7.22 

Put options purchased 
Amount (US$) 190,000 190,000 
ZAR per US$ R7.33 R7.33 
*Delta (US$) 41,726 41,726 

Put options sold 
Amount (US$) 90,000 90,000 
ZAR per US$ R7.25 R7.25 
*Delta (US$) 17,341 17,341

Call options purchased 
Amount (US$) 30,470 5,450 35,920 
ZAR per US$ R7.30 R6.48 R7.17 
*Delta (US$) 20,127 5,170 25,297 

Call options sold 
Amount (US$) 264,170 33,450 8,000 305,620 
ZAR per US$ R7.82 R7.06 R6.94 R7.71 
*Delta (US$) 141,676 27,644 7,297 176,617 

* The delta position indicated above reflects the nominal amount of the option multiplied by the mathematical probability of the option being exercised. This is

calculated using the Black and Scholes option formula with the ruling market prices, together with interest rates and volatilities as at 31 December 2000.

The mix of hedging instruments, the volume of production hedged and the tenor of the hedging book is continually reviewed in the light of
changes in operational forecasts, market conditions and the company’s hedging policy. 

Forward sales contracts require the future delivery of gold at a specified price. A number of these contracts are spot-deferred to be used by
the company for delivery against production in a future period. 

A put option gives the put buyer the right, but not the obligation, to sell gold to the put seller at a predetermined price on a
predetermined date. 

A call option gives the call buyer the right, but not the obligation, to buy gold from the call seller at a predetermined price on a
predetermined date. 

Net cash receipts received under the option hedging strategies for the year were R262 million (1999: R246 million). 

Interest rate and liquidity risk
Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the value of short-term cash investments and financing activities, giving rise to interest rate risk. 

In the ordinary course of business, the company receives cash from the proceeds of its gold sales and is required to fund working capital
requirements. This cash is managed to ensure surplus funds are invested in a manner to achieve market related returns while minimising risks.
The company is able to actively source financing at competitive rates. 

The company has sufficient undrawn borrowing facilities available to fund any working capital requirements.
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Notes to company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2000
Figures in million

28 Risk management activities (continued)
Investment maturity profile

Fixed rate Floating rate 
investment investment

Currency (borrowings) Effective (borrowings) Effective
Maturity date millions amount rate % amount rate %

Less than one year US$ 28 6.6 3 5.1

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the risk that a counterpart may default or not meet its obligations timeously. The company minimises credit risk by
ensuring that credit risk is spread over a number of counterparts. These counterparts are financial and banking institutions of the highest
quality. Where possible, management tries to ensure that netting agreements are in place. 

No provision for doubtful debts was made as the principal debtors continue to be in a sound financial position. 

The company does not generally obtain collateral or other security to support financial instruments subject to credit risk, but monitors the
credit standing of counterparts. The company believes that no concentration of credit exists. 

Fair value
The estimated fair values of financial instruments are determined at discrete points in time based on relevant market information. These
estimates involve uncertainties and cannot be determined with precision. The estimated fair values of the company’s financial instruments as
at 31 December are as follows: 

2000 1999
SA Rand Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Type of instrument amount value amount value

Trade and other receivables 694 694 810 810
Cash and cash equivalents 234 234 2,215 2,215

– Cash and deposits on call 76 76 1,715 1,715
– Money market instruments 158 158 500 500

Borrowings 2,569 2,569 934 934
Trade and other payables 1,309 1,309 1,478 1,478
Forward sale contracts – 666 - 976 
Option contracts – 197 - 101 
Foreign exchange contracts – (83) - (25) 
Foreign exchange option contracts – (91) - (25) 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument: 

Trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables
The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short-term duration of these instruments.

Borrowings
The existing debt re-prices on a short-term floating rate basis, and accordingly the carrying amount is considered to approximate fair value. 

Derivative instruments
The fair values of forward sales contracts and derivative instruments are estimated based on the ruling market prices, volatilities and
interest rates at 31 December 2000.

29 Comparative figures 
Where appropriate, comparative figures have been restated to facilitate improved disclosure. 

Dividends to shareholders are now accounted for on the date of declaration as a result of the adoption of IAS10. As a result, the retained
earnings have been restated as disclosed in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.
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Investment in principal subsidiaries and 
joint venture interests

Nature of Percentage Net loan
business Shares held held Book value account

2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999
% % R R R R

Direct investments
Advanced Mining Software Limited C 40,000 40,000 100 100 2 2 (4) 2
AngloGold American Investments Limited 1 B 1 1 100 100 928 928 97 (61)
AngloGold Health Service (Pty) Limited G 8 8 100 100 – – 93 100
AngloGold Offshore Investments Limited 1 B 5,000,000 5,000,000 100 100 1,180 1,180 (1,064) (1,064)
AngloGold Ventures (Pty) Limited F 1 – 100 – – – –
AngloGold Australasia Limited 8 B 257,462,077 256,622,077 100 100 2,724 2,724 12 12
Eastvaal Gold Holdings Limited B 454,464,000 454,464,000 100 100 917 917 (604) (604)
Igolide Health Networks (Pty) Limited G 100 – 100 – – – – –
Masakhisane Investment Limited B 100 100 100 100 – – 4 –
Nuclear Fuels Corporation of SA (Pty) Limited E 1,450,000 1,450,000 100 100 7 7 104 77 
Nufcor International Limited 9 E 3,000,000 3,000,000 50 50 18 18 – –
Southvaal Holdings Limited B 26,000,000 26,000,000 100 100 3 3 (83) (77)
Stone and Allied Industries (O.F.S.) Limited D 400,000 400,000 92.85 92.85 16 16 – (3)

Indirect investments
AngloGold (Colorado) Corporation 5 B 10,000 10,000 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold (Jerritt Canyon) Corporation 5 B 1,000 1,000 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Argentina Limited 1 B 1 1 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Argentina S.A. 6 B 1,331,093 1,331,093 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Australia Investment Holdings Limited 1 B 1,000 1,000 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Brasil Ltda 7 B 8,827,437,875 8,827,437,875 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Brazil Limited 1 B 1 1 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Finance Australia Holdings Limited 10 B 2 – 100 – – – – –
AngloGold Finance Australia Limited 10 B 2 – 100 – – – – –
AngloGold Geita Holdings Limited 1 B 1,000 – 100 – – – 750 –
AngloGold Investments Australasia Limited 1 B 1,000 1,000 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Investments Australia Pty Ltd 8 B 1 1 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Investments (Sadex) Limited 1 B 1,000 ‘A’ 1,000 ‘A’ 100 100 – – 202 –
AngloGold Mining (West Africa) Limited 2 B 5,000 5,000 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold Morila Holdings Limited 1 B 1,000 – 100 – – – – –
AngloGold Namibia (Proprietary) Ltd 3 B 10,000 10,000 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold North America Inc. 5 B 7,902 7,902 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold North American Holdings Limited 1 B 1 1 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold South America Limited 1 B 485,005 485,005 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold South American Holdings Limited 1 B 1 1 100 100 – – – –
AngloGold USA Incorporated 5 B 100 100 100 100 – – – –
Chellaston Limited 1 B 2 2 100 100 – – – –
Cluff Resources plc 9 B 46,819,281 – 50 – – – – –
Dysart International Limited 1 B 2 2 100 100 – – – –
Erongo Holdings Limited 1 B 13,334 ‘A’ 13,334 ‘A’ 100 100 – – – –
Mineraça~o Morro Velho Ltda 7 A 4,585,851,748 4,585,851,748 100 100 – – – –
Mineraça~o Serra Grande S.A. 7 A 499,999,997 499,999,997 50 50 – – – –
Quorum International Limited 1 B 2 2 100 100 – – – –
Sadiola Exploration Limited 1 B 5,000 ‘A’ 5,000 ‘A’ 50 50 – – – –

Joint ventures
Cerro Vanguardia S.A. 6 A 13,050,000 13,050,000 46.25 46.25 – – – –
Ashanti Goldfields Tanzania Limited 11 A 1 – 50 – – – – –
Société des Mines de Morila S.A. 4 A 6,400 – 40 – – – 1,069 –
Société d’Exploitation des Mines d’Or de Sadiola S.A. 4 A 38,000 38,000 38 38 – – – –

Société d’Exploitation des Mines d’Or de Yatela S.A. 4 A 5,805 – 40 – – – – –

5,795 5,795 576 (1,618)

Nature of business

A – Mining

B – Investment holding

C – Software development

D – Stone crusher

E – Market agent

F – Marketing intermediary

G – Health care

All companies are incorporated in the Republic of South Africa except where otherwise indicated

1 Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands 7 Incorporated in Brazil

2 Incorporated in the Isle of Man 8 Incorporated in Australia

3 Incorporated in Namibia 9 Incorporated in the United Kingdom

4 Incorporated in Mali 10 Incorporated in Malta

5 Incorporated in the United States of America 11 Incorporated in Tanzania

6 Incorporated in Argentina
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Shareholders’ information

Share statistics

Analysis of ordinary shareholdings as at 12 February 2001

Number of % of total Number of % of shares

shareholders shareholders shares issued

Shareholder profile

Individuals 25,058 92.62 2,574,536 2.41

Insurance companies 9 0.03 123,699 0.12

Pension and provident funds 7 0.03 15,739 0.01

Banks and nominee companies 556 2.06 38,265,458 35.76

Other corporate holders 1,425 5.27 66,041,655 61.71

Total 27,055 100.00 107,021,087 100.00

Size of holding

1 – 100 22,345 82.59 478,384 0.45

101 – 500 3,786 13.99 796,259 0.74

501 – 1,000 473 1.75 336,669 0.31

1,001 – 5,000 328 1.21 645,172 0.60

5,001 – 10,000 40 0.15 277,374 0.26

10,001 – 100,000 53 0.20 1,348,099 1.26

Over 100,000 30 0.11 103,139,130 96.37

Total 27,055 100.00 107,021,087 100.00

Stock exchange listings

The primary listing of the company’s ordinary shares is on the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa (JSE). Its ordinary shares are also listed on the

stock exchanges in London and Paris, as well as being quoted in Brussels in the form of International Depositary Receipts (IDRs) and in New York

in the form of American Depositary Shares (ADSs). A total of 6,558,737 ordinary shares are quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange in the form of

Clearing House Electronic Subregister System Units of Foreign Securities (CUFS).

Stock exchange information

2000 1999 1998 

JSE

Rands per share:

Market price - high 385.00 428.00 361.60

- low 186.00 225.00 167.40

- year-end 221.00 316.60 229.20

Shares traded - 000 24,902 31,787 18,251

London Stock Exchange

Pounds per share:

Market price - high 35.51 41.72 35.35

- low 17.14 22.86 20.09

- year-end 19.45 32.01 23.42

Shares traded - 000 2.5 3.2 12,206

Paris Bourse

Euros per share (1998: French francs per share)

Market price - high 57.80 68.60 338.80

- low 28.20 33.23 189.90

- year-end 31.85 50.90 221.10

Shares traded - 000 947 1,412 1,437
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2000 1999 1998 

Brussels Bourse
Euros per share (1998: Belgian francs per share):
Market price - high 49.95 68.20 2,060

- low 28.55 33.50 1,150
- year-end 31.85 50.85 1,398

IDRs traded - 000 1,002 2,635 2,273

New York Stock Exchange
(listing commenced 5 August 1998)
US dollars per ADS:
Market price - high 28.69 37.00 31.00

- low 12.25 18.31 16.00
- year-end 14.94 25.69 19.56

ADSs traded - 000 46,940 41,355 14,213
Each ADS represents one-half of an ordinary share in the company

Australian Stock Exchange 
(listing commenced 15 November 1999)
Australian dollars per share:
Market price - high 86.80 89.00 -

- low 47.50 71.00 -
- year-end 54.79 76.50 -

Shares traded - 000 1,783 487 -

Twenty largest ordinary shareholders as at 12 February 2001
According to the register of members, the following are the 20 largest holders of the ordinary share capital of the company:

Ordinary shares held
Shareholding Percentage

Anglo American plc and its subsidiaries 57,234,459 53.48
Standard Bank Nominees (Transvaal) (Pty) Ltd 24,076,920 22.50
First National Nominees (Pty) Ltd 5,110,116 4.76
De Beers Holdings (Pty) Ltd 3,551,285 3.32
ANZ Nominees Ltd 3,190,479 2.98
Nedcor Bank Nominees Ltd 2,022,056 1.89
Société Generale Nominees (Pty) Ltd 1,939,398 1.81
Mercantile Custodial Nominees (Pty) Ltd 1,237,246 1.16
National Nominees (Pty) Ltd 857,123 0.80
C M B Nominees (Pty) Ltd 726,184 0.68
Société Interprofessionnell Pour La Compensation Des Valeurs Mobilieres a/c Sicovam 685,789 0.64
SE Nominees (Pty) Ltd 653,280 0.61
ABSA Nominees (Pty) Ltd 574,912 0.54
Westpac Custodian Nominees 142,440 0.13
AMP Life Ltd 60,914 0.06
Citicorp Nominees PTY Ltd 27,949 0.03
Anglo Irish Nominees 20,000 0.02
Brewin Nominees 20,000 0.02
Cheviot Capital Nominees Ltd 15,000 0.01
Chase Nominees Services 11,254 0.01

Total 102,156,804 95.45

Shareholder spread as at 12 February 2001
Pursuant to the Listings Requirements of the JSE, with the best knowledge of the directors and after reasonable enquiry, the spread of
shareholders was as follows:

Number of 
Class holders %

Ordinary shares 
Non-public shareholders:

Directors 3 0.00 
Shares held by Anglo American plc and its subsidiaries 3 53.48 

Public shareholders 27,049 46.52 

27,055 100.00

A redeemable preference shares
B redeemable preference shares } All shares are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary company
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Shareholders’ information (continued)

Major shareholders as at 12 February 2001

According to information available to the directors, the following are the only shareholders beneficially holding, directly or indirectly, in excess

of 5 per cent of the ordinary share capital of the company:

Ordinary shares held

12 February 2001 31 December 2000 31 December 1999

Number % Number % Number %

Anglo American plc and its subsidiaries 57,234,459 53.48 57,234,459 53.48 53,677,127 50.35

The Bank of New York* 17,515,574 16.37 16,512,360 15.43 13,216,238 12.40

* Shares held through various custodians in respect of ADSs issued by the Bank

Voting rights

The Articles of Association provide that every member present at a meeting in person or, in the case of a body corporate, represented, is entitled

to one vote only on a show of hands.  Upon a poll members present or any duly appointed proxy shall have one vote for every share held.  There

are no limitations on the right of non-South African shareholders to hold or exercise voting rights attaching to any shares in the company.  CUFS

holders are not entitled to vote in person at meetings, but may vote by way of proxy.  

Debentures and options do not carry a right to vote until the debenture has been converted or the option exercised and ordinary shares allotted.

Diary

Financial year-end 31 December

Annual financial statements Issued 13 March 2001

Annual general meeting 13:00 25 April 2001

Quarterly reports Issued 30 April 2001

31 July 2001

31 October 2001

31 January 2002

Dividends

Payable to Payable to

Declared registered shareholders on ADS holders on*

Final – No. 89 30 January 2001 30 March 2001 9 April 2001

Interim – No. 90 30 July 2001 28 September 2001 9 October 2001

Final – No. 91 30 January 2002 29 March 2002 8 April 2002

* Approximate dates

Currency conversion guide
At 31 December one rand was equal to:

2000 1999 

Australian dollar 0.24 0.25 

Belgian franc 5.64 6.51 

Euro 0.14 0.16 

French franc 0.92 1.01 

German mark 0.27 0.32 

Japanese yen 15.07 18.66 

Swiss franc 0.21 0.26 

UK pound 0.09 0.10 

US dollar 0.13 0.16 
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Directorate and administration

Directors

Executive 

R M Godsell (Chairman and 

chief executive officer)

J G Best

K H Williams

Non-executive 

R P Edey (British) (Deputy chairman)

F B Arisman (American)

Mrs E le R Bradley

C B Brayshaw

Dr J W Campbell

Dr V K Fung (American)

M W King (Alternate: R P Garnett)

T J Motlatsi

D M J Ncube

N F Oppenheimer 

J Ogilvie Thompson

A J Trahar (Alternate: W A Nairn)

Offices
Registered and corporate 

Managing secretary

Ms Y Z Simelane

Company secretary

C R Bull

11 Diagonal Street

Johannesburg 2001

(PO Box 62117, Marshalltown 2107)

South Africa

Telephone: +27 11 637 6000

Fax: +27 11 637 6108

Australia

Level 13 & 14

St Martins Tower

44 St Georges Terrace

Perth, WA 6000

(PO Box Z5046 Perth, WA 6831)

Australia

Telephone: +61 8 9425 4600

Fax: +61 8 9425 4650

United Kingdom Secretaries

St James’s Corporate Services Limited

6 St James’s Place

London SW1A 1NP

England

Telephone: +44 20 7499 3916

Fax: +44 20 7491 1989

Share registrars

South Africa

Computershare Services Limited

2nd Floor, Edura, 41 Fox Street

Johannesburg 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107)

South Africa

Telephone: +27 11 370 7700

Fax: +27 11 836 0792

United Kingdom

Computershare Services PLC

PO Box 82

The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

England

Telephone: +44 870 702 0001

Fax: +44 870 703 6119

Australia

Computershare Registry Services Pty Limited

Level 12, 565 Bourke Street

Melbourne, Victoria 3000

(GPO Box 2975EE

Melbourne, Victoria 3001)

Australia

Telephone: +61 3 9611 5711

Fax: +61 3 9611 5710

ADR Depositary

The Bank of New York

101 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286

United States of America

Telephone: +1 212 815 2711

Fax: +1 212 571 3050

Authorised representative
United States of America

Puglisi & Associates

850 Library Avenue, Suite 204

PO Box 885

Newark, Delaware 19715

United States of America

Telephone: +1 302 738 6680

Fax: +1 302 738 7210
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Glossary of terms

By-products Any products that emanate from the core process of producing gold, including silver, uranium
and sulphuric acid.

Capital employed Shareholders’ equity including outside shareholders’ interests in subsidiaries, interest bearing
debt, deferred taxation less long-term loans and current portion of long-term loans, adjusted
for the timing of acquisitions and disposals. Where average capital employed is referred to, this
is the average of the figures at the beginning and the end of the financial year.

Capital expenditure Total capital expenditure on mining assets to maintain and expand operations.

Dividend cover Earnings per ordinary share divided by dividends per ordinary share.

Debt Borrowings including short-term portion, plus debentures.

Effective tax rate Current and deferred taxation as a percentage of net profit before taxation.

Equity Shareholders’ equity and deferred taxation, adjusted for the timing of acquisitions and
disposals. Where average equity is referred to, this is calculated by averaging the figures at the
beginning and end of the financial year.

Interest cover Profit before exceptional items, net interest and amortisation of mining assets divided by
interest paid.

Life-of-mine Number of years that the operation is planning to mine and treat ore, and is taken from the
current mine plan.

Market capitalisation Number of ordinary shares in issue at close of business on 31 December multiplied by the
closing share price as quoted on the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa.

Mineral resource A mineral resource is a concentration or occurrence of material of economic interest in or on
the earth’s crust in such form, quality and quantity that there are reasonable and realistic
prospects for eventual economic extraction. The location, quantity, grade, continuity and other
geological characteristics of a mineral resource are known, estimated from specific geological
evidence and knowledge, or interpreted from a well-constrained and portrayed geological
model. Mineral resources are subdivided, in order of increasing geological confidence, into
inferred, indicated and measured categories. The mineral resources are inclusive of those
resources which have been modified to produce ore reserves. 

Net operating assets Mining assets, inventories, trade and other receivables (excluding Value Added Taxation), less
trade and other payables.

Ore reserves An ore reserve is the economically mineable material derived from a measured and/or indicated
mineral resource. It is inclusive of diluting materials and allows for losses that may occur when
the material is mined. Appropriate assessments have been carried out, including consideration
of, and modification by, realistically assumed mining, metallurgical, economic, marketing, legal,
environmental, social and governmental factors. These assessments demonstrate at the time of
reporting that extraction is reasonably justified. Ore reserves are sub-divided in order of
increasing confidence into probable ore reserves and proved ore reserves.

Ounces Used in imperial statistics. A kilogram is equal to 32.1507 ounces.

Region Defines the operational management divisions within AngloGold and these are Africa (the
continent excluding South Africa), Australasia, North America, South Africa and South America.

Return on capital employed Profit before interest paid, expressed as a percentage of average capital employed.

Return on shareholders’ equity Profit expressed as a percentage of the average equity.

Total cash costs Total cash costs include site costs for all mining processing and administration, as well as
contributions from by-products but are exclusive of royalties, production taxes, amortisation,
rehabilitation, corporate administration costs, capital costs and exploration.

Total production costs Total cash costs including production taxes, amortisation, rehabilitation and
retrenchment costs.

Weighted average number of The number of ordinary shares in issue at the beginning of the year, increased by shares issued
ordinary shares in issue during the year, weighted on a time basis for the period during which they have participated in

the income of the group. 



Map 

N1
Pretoria

N12

N1

M1
N3

R24

M2

N1
Bloemfontein

Sandton

CBD

MELVILLE

to SANDTON

Jan Sm
uts

RICHMOND

AUCKLAND
PARK

COTTESLOE

PARKTOWN
The Country

Club
Johannesburg St Andrews

to JOHANNESBURG
CBD

Empire

Empire

Stanley

Park

Ce
da

r

Empire

Holiday Inn
Garden Court

Milpark’s
Galleries

Owl

Annet

He
nl

ey

Co
ok

ha
m

Lo
th

bu
ry

Kingsway

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y

M
ai

n 
Ro

ad

SABC

M
enton

M
enton

Napier

Napier

Barry H
ertzog

Annet

W
ab

or
d

M1

M1



go
ld

 is

A n g l o G o l d  L i m i t e d  

N o t i c e  o f  A n n u a l  G e n e r a l  M e e t i n g  2 0 0 1



Letter from the Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer

Dear shareholder

I extend a warm invitation to you to attend the 57th annual general
meeting (AGM) of AngloGold Limited to be held at The Johannesburg Country
Club, Napier Road, Auckland Park, Johannesburg, at 13:00 on Wednesday,
25 April 2001, as well as a gold jewellery exhibition and a light lunch which
will commence at 12:00.

Included in this document are the following:

The notice of meeting setting out the resolutions to be proposed,
together with explanatory notes. There are also guidance notes if you
wish to attend the meeting (for which purpose an AGM location map is
included) or to vote by proxy.
Voting form (proxy).

A copy of the annual report, incorporating the annual financial statements
for the financial year 2000, is enclosed.

If you are unable to attend, you will be able to exercise your right as a
shareholder to take part in the AGM by completing, signing and returning
the enclosed voting form in good time before the meeting.

Yours sincerely

Bobby Godsell
Chairman and chief executive officer

Johannesburg
13 March 2001

AngloGold Limited

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)

Registration number 1944/017354/06

This document is important
and requires your

immediate attention

IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT ABOUT WHAT

ACTION YOU SHOULD TAKE, CONSULT YOUR 

STOCKBROKER, ATTORNEY, BANKER, FINANCIAL

ADVISER, ACCOUNTANT OR OTHER

PROFESSIONAL ADVISER IMMEDIATELY

IF YOU HAVE DISPOSED OF ALL YOUR

SHARES IN ANGLOGOLD LIMITED 

YOU SHOULD PASS THIS DOCUMENT

AND THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM 

TO THE PURCHASER OF SUCH SHARES OR 

THE STOCKBROKER, BANKER OR OTHER AGENT 

THROUGH WHOM THE DISPOSAL WAS EFFECTED

FOR TRANSMISSION TO THE PURCHASER
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Notice of annual general meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 57th annual

general meeting of members of AngloGold

Limited will be held at The Johannesburg

Country Club, Napier Road, Auckland Park,

Johannesburg, on Wednesday, 25 April 2001,

at 13:00 for the following purposes:

Ordinary business

1. To receive and consider the annual

financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2000.

2. To re-elect the following directors

of the company in accordance with the

provisions of the Articles of Association:

Dr V K Fung

Mr M W King

Mr T J Motlatsi

Mr D M J Ncube

Mr J Ogilvie Thompson

Mr N F Oppenheimer

Mr A J Trahar

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass,

with or without modification, the

following resolution as ordinary

resolution 1:

“That subject to the provisions of the

Companies Act, 1973, as amended, and the

Listings Requirements of the JSE

Securities Exchange South Africa, the

directors are hereby authorised to allot

and issue in their discretion all the

remaining authorised but unissued

ordinary shares of 50 cents each in the

capital of the company for such purposes

as they may determine, after setting

aside so many shares as may be required

to be allotted and issued by the company

pursuant to the Share Incentive Scheme.”

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass,

with or without modification, the

following resolution as ordinary

resolution 2:

“That in terms of the Listings

Requirements of the JSE Securities

Exchange South Africa (JSE), the

directors are hereby authorised to issue

the unissued ordinary shares of 50 cents

each in the capital of the company

(after setting aside so many shares as

may be required to be allotted and

issued by the company pursuant to the

Share Incentive Scheme) for cash,

without restrictions as to whom the

shares will be issued, as and when

suitable opportunities arise, subject

to the following conditions:

(a) that this authority shall only

be valid until the next annual

general meeting but shall not

extend beyond 15 months from

the date set down for the 57th

annual general meeting;

(b) that a paid press announcement

giving full details, including the

impact on net asset value and

earnings per share, will be

published at the time of any issue

representing, on a cumulative

basis within one year, 5 per cent

or more of the number of shares

in issue prior to the issue(s);

(c) that the issues in the aggregate

in any one year shall not exceed

15 per cent of the number of

shares of the company’s issued

ordinary share capital; and 

(d) that, in determining the price at

which an issue of shares will be

made in terms of this authority,

the maximum discount permitted

shall be 10 per cent of the

average closing price on the JSE

of the ordinary shares, adjusted

for any dividend declared but not

yet paid or for any capitalisation

award made to shareholders, as

determined over the 30 days prior

to either the date of the paid

press announcement or, where

no announcement is required and

none has been made, the date of

issue of the shares.”

The approval of a 75 per cent majority of

the votes cast by shareholders present or

represented by proxy at the meeting is

required for this ordinary resolution to

become effective.

Special business

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass,

with or without modification, the

following resolution as ordinary

resolution 3: 

”That pursuant to the provisions of

Article 70 of the company’s Articles

of Association, with effect from

1 January 2001, the annual remuneration

of directors be R50,000 for each

director, other than the chairman and

deputy chairman, and R80,000 for each

of the chairman and the deputy

chairman.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to

pass, with or without modification,

the following resolution as ordinary

resolution 4:

”That the rules of the AngloGold Limited

Share Incentive Scheme, approved at the

general meeting of members held on

4 June 1998, be amended as follows:

1. Renumber existing clause

1.1.21.2 as 1.1.21.3

2. Insertion of a new clause

1.1.21.2 to read as follows:

‘In respect of a Participant who

has accepted a Debenture Offer

and who, with the approval of

the Directors, has relinquished

his rights to his Debentures

subject to his being granted an

option to purchase Shares in

terms of the Scheme, an amount

per Share equal to the Debenture

Price of the Debentures in

respect of which his rights have

been relinquished.’
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Notice of annual general meeting

3. Amendment of clause 5.2.2 by

the insertion of a semi-colon

at the end of the first sentence

and the addition thereafter

of the following proviso:

‘provided that where an Option has

been granted to a Grantee who has

accepted a Debenture Offer and

who, with the approval of the

Directors, has relinquished his

rights to his Debentures subject to

his being granted an Option, the

period shall be calculated from the

date of acceptance of the

Debenture Offer.’

4. Amendment of clause 5.6 by

the insertion after the words

“acceptance date” of the

following:

‘(or in the case of an Offeree who

has accepted a Debenture Offer

and who, with the approval of

the Directors, has relinquished

his rights to his Debentures

subject to his being granted an

Option to purchase Shares in

terms of the Scheme, after 10

years from date of acceptance

of the Debenture Offer).’ ”

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass,

with or without modification, the

following resolution as a special

resolution:

“That the Articles of Association of the

company (the Articles) are hereby

amended in the following respects:

1. “That the current Article 34,

relating to Reduction of Capital,

be deleted and replaced by the

following new Article 34:

‘34 The Company may from

time to time, subject to

such requirements as may

be imposed by the Act

and/or any other Statutes

and subject to the rules

and requirements of the

JSE Securities Exchange

South Africa (JSE) and any

other Stock Exchange on

which the shares of the

Company are or may be

listed, by ordinary

resolution authorise the

Directors to reduce,

dispose of, distribute or

otherwise deal with in any

manner whatsoever, the

Company’s share capital,

stated capital, share

premium account or any

capital redemption reserve

fund of the Company.’ ”

2. “That the following new sub-

article be inserted under Article

36 (Alterations of Capital):

'(i) acquire any of its issued

shares or acquire any

issued shares in its holding

company in accordance

with the provisions of the

Act and/or other Statutes

and the rules and

requirements of the JSE

and any other Stock

Exchange on which the

shares of the Company are

or may be listed. ' "

3. ”That the words ”AND PAYMENTS

TO MEMBERS” be added to the

heading after the word

"DIVIDENDS" where it appears

between Articles 104 and 105

and in the index.”

4. “That Article 110 be amended by

the deletion of the words and

figures ‘twelve (12)’ and the

substitution therefor of the

words and figures ‘three (3)’.”

5. “That the following new Article

115A be inserted in the Articles:

‘115A The Company shall be

entitled to make payments

to its shareholders in

accordance with the

provisions of the Act

and/or any other Statutes

and the rules and

requirements of the JSE

and any other Stock

Exchange on which the

shares of the Company are

or may be listed.’ ”

6. “That the following new Article

143 be inserted in the Articles:

’143 Notwithstanding anything

to the contrary contained

in these Articles, but

subject to the Act and/or

any other Statutes and the

rules and requirements of

the JSE and any other

Stock Exchange on which

the shares of the Company

are or may be listed, all

share transactions may be

settled totally

electronically.' "

The reasons for and the effects of the special

resolution are set out in the explanatory

notes which form part of this notice.

By order of the board

Ms Y Z Simelane 

Managing secretary

Johannesburg

13 March 2001

Registered and corporate office 

11 Diagonal Street

Johannesburg

2001 

South Africa
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Proxies

A member entitled to attend and vote at the

meeting may appoint one or more proxies to

attend, speak and, on a poll, vote in his/her

stead. A proxy need not be a member of the

company. A form of proxy accompanies this

notice. Proxy forms should be forwarded to

reach the company’s share registrars in South

Africa, the United Kingdom or Australia by

not later than 13:00 local time, in the

country concerned, on 23 April 2001.

The attention of shareholders is directed to

the additional notes contained in the form

of proxy, relating to the completion and

timeous submission of proxy forms.

Explanatory notes to resolutions

Consideration of annual financial

statements 

The directors must present to shareholders

at the annual general meeting the annual

financial statements, incorporating the

report of the directors, for the year ended

31 December 2000, together with the report

of the auditors. These are contained within

the annual report.

Re-election of directors

Under the Articles of Association, one third

of the directors are required to retire at

each annual general meeting and may offer

themselves for re-election. In addition, any

person appointed to fill a casual vacancy on

the board of directors, or as an addition

thereto, is similarly required to retire and

is eligible for re-election at the next annual

general meeting. Biographical details of the

directors who are offering themselves for

re-election are set out in Appendix 1 to

this notice.

Ordinary resolution 1

Directors’ control of the balance of the

unissued ordinary shares

and

Ordinary resolution 2

Entitlement of directors to issue the

balance of the unissued shares for cash

The existing authorities relating to ordinary

resolutions 1 and 2 are due to expire at the

forthcoming annual general meeting, unless

renewed. The directors consider it

advantageous to renew these authorities to

enable the company to take advantage of

any business opportunity which might arise

in the future.

Ordinary resolution 3

At the time of the appointment on

11 December 2000 of Mr R M Godsell as

chairman of the board of directors in place

of Mr N F Oppenheimer, Mr R P Edey was

appointed deputy chairman. The annual

remuneration payable to directors in

accordance with Article 70 of the company’s

Articles of Association, as approved at the

general meeting of members held on 4 June

1998, provides for each director, other than

the chairman, to receive R50,000 and for the

chairman to receive R80,000. With the

appointment of a deputy chairman it is

considered appropriate to provide for the

incumbent of that position to receive

R80,000 per annum and fees payable to the

chairman will remain unchanged at

R80,000 per annum.

Prior to the resolution being approved,

directors’ fees in respect of 15 directors

totalling R780,000 per annum was payable.

The effect of the resolution being approved

will increase the amount payable for

directors’ fees in respect of 15 directors by

R30,000 per annum, to R810,000 per annum.

The company will disregard any votes cast

by:

– The chairman, deputy chairman, non-

executive directors and executive

directors;

– An associate of that person or group of

persons stated above.

However, the company will not disregard a

vote if:

– It is cast by a person as proxy for a person

who is entitled to vote, in accordance

with the directions on a proxy form; or

– It is cast by the person chairing the

meeting as proxy of a person who is

entitled to vote, in accordance with a

direction on the proxy form to vote as the

proxy decides.

Executive directors have elected not to

receive payment of directors’ fees.

Ordinary resolution 4

At the general meeting of members held

on 4 June 1998, members approved the

introduction of the AngloGold Limited Share

Incentive Scheme. The purpose of the Scheme

is to provide an incentive to executive

directors and senior employees of the

company and its subsidiaries to identify

themselves more closely with the fortunes

of the group and its continued growth. In

addition, the intention of the Scheme is to

promote the retention of such employees by

giving them an opportunity to acquire shares

in the company.

Employees participate in the Scheme to the

extent that they are granted options or are

offered automatically convertible unsecured

debentures.

The first issue of automatically convertible

unsecured debentures was made on 31 August

1998. After receiving legal advice as to the

tax status of the Scheme, a decision was

taken to suspend the use of debentures, and

if approved by members, to replace those

debentures in issue with share options. To

this end, instructions were given not to

convert those debentures which were

convertible into AngloGold shares on due

date, except in those instances where the

Scheme participant requested conversion.

The effect of the amendment to the Scheme

will be to permit the company to grant

options to those participants in the Scheme

who have been issued debentures at the

price at which the debentures were issued to

them, against their relinquishing their rights

to the debentures, and to make certain

consequential changes. They are thus placed

in the position in which they would have

been had they been granted options to

acquire shares in the company rather than to

subscribe for debentures which are

automatically convertible into shares.
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The proposed amendments to the rules of the

Scheme have been approved in principle, by

the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa

(JSE), subject to approval being obtained

from members.

Special resolution 

The following are the reasons for and the

effects of the special resolution:

The reason for replacing Article 34 is to allow

the company, pursuant to the 1999 amendment

to the Companies Act, 1973, to deal with the

share capital, stated capital, share premium

account or any capital redemption reserve

fund of the company in a manner not

otherwise governed by the Companies Act,

1973, and/or any other Statutes and the rules

and requirements of the JSE and any other

Stock Exchange on which the shares of the

company are or may be listed.

The effect of the amendment is to permit

the company to so deal.

The reason for amending Article 36 is to

enable the company to acquire its own

shares and to acquire shares in any holding

company of the company.

The effect of the amendment will be that the

company will be entitled to acquire its own

shares and to acquire shares in any holding

company of the company, in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act, 1973,

and/or any other Statutes, and the rules and

requirements of the JSE and any other Stock

Exchange on which the shares of the company

are or may be listed.

The reason for amending the heading

between Articles 104 and 105 and the index

is to bring the heading and the index into

conformity with the contents of the Articles.

The effect is self-evident from the text.

The reason for amending Article 110 is to

bring the Article into line with South African

law and the latest requirements of the JSE.

The effect of the amendment is that

dividends unclaimed for a period of not less

than 3 years from the date on which such

dividends became payable, may be forfeited

by the directors for the benefit of the

company.

The reason for adopting the new Article 115A

is to enable the company to make payments

to its shareholders in accordance with the

1999 amendment to the Companies Act, 1973.

The effect of the amendment will be that the

company will be authorised to make

payments to its shareholders, subject to the

provisions of the Companies Act, 1973,

and/or any other Statutes and the rules and

requirements of the JSE and any other Stock

Exchange on which the shares of the company

are or may be listed.

The reason for adopting the new Article 143

is to enable the company to give effect to

the implementation of STRATE (Share

Transactions Totally Electronic), as required

by the JSE, which implementation is expected

to take place on about 3 September 2001.

The effect of the amendment will be that the

company will have the authority, subject to

the Companies Act, 1973, and/or any other

Statutes and the rules and requirements of

the JSE and any other Stock Exchange on

which the shares of the company are or may

be listed, to convert to STRATE, as required

by the JSE.

4
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Appendix 1

Appendix 2

Short biographies of directors
seeking re-election

Dr Victor Fung (55)

PhD (Business Economics), MSc

(Electrical Engineering)

He is currently chairman of Prudential Asia

Investments, of Li & Fung Limited, Hong

Kong, and of the Hong Kong Airport

Authority. He joined the AngloGold board

in 1998, and is chairman of the Market

Development Committee.

Mike King (63)

CA(SA), FCA

He is an executive vice chairman of Anglo

American. He was appointed to the AngloGold

board in 1998.

James Motlatsi (49)

He is chief executive officer of TEBA Limited.

He was appointed a director of AngloGold in

1998, and is chairman of the Employment

Equity Committee.

Donald Ncube (53)

BA (Economics, Political Science), MSc

(Manpower Studies)

He is currently executive chairman of Real

Africa Holdings, an investment holding

company. He was appointed to the AngloGold

board in 1998, and is chairman of the Safety,

Health and Environment Committee.

Julian Ogilvie Thompson (67)

BA (Politics, Philosophy and Economics)

He is currently chairman of Anglo American

and deputy chairman of De Beers

Consolidated Mines. He joined the AngloGold

board in 1998.

Nicky Oppenheimer (55)

BA (Politics, Philosophy and Economics)

He is chairman of De Beers Consolidated

Mines and a non-executive deputy chairman

of Anglo American. He resigned as chairman

of AngloGold in December 2000 but remains a

director, having been appointed to the

AngloGold board in 1998.

Tony Trahar (51)

BCom, CA(SA)

He joined the Anglo American Group in 1974

and was appointed chief executive officer of

Anglo American in July 2000. He joined the

AngloGold board in October 2000.

Important notes about the annual
general meeting (AGM)

Date

Wednesday, 25 April 2001 at 13:00.

Venue

The Ballroom of The Johannesburg Country

Club, Napier Road, Auckland Park,

Johannesburg.

Timing 

The AGM will start promptly at 13:00. The

AGM will be preceded by a display of gold

jewellery in the Terrace Room at the same

venue at 12:00. Many of the items on display

will be available for purchase. Refreshments

will be served between 12:00 and 13:00.

Travel information 

The outline map on the outside cover of

this notice indicates the location of The

Johannesburg Country Club.

Admission

Shareholders and others attending the AGM

are asked to register at the registration desk

in the Ballroom reception area at the venue.

Shareholders and proxies may be required to

provide proof of identity. 

Security

Secured parking is provided at the venue.

Mobile telephones should be switched off

during the AGM.

Enquiries and questions

Shareholders who intend to ask a question

related to the business of the AGM or on

related matters are asked to register their

name, address and question at the question

registration desk. Personnel will be on hand

to provide any advice and assistance

required.

Queries about annual general meeting

If you have any queries about the AGM

please telephone any of the contact names

listed in the inside back cover of the

accompanying annual report. 



Proxy form
For completion by members unable to attend the annual general meeting to be held at The Johannesburg Country Club, Napier Road, Auckland Park,
Johannesburg, at 13:00 on Wednesday, 25 April 2001.

I/We  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (Name in BLOCK LETTERS)

of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (Address in BLOCK LETTERS)
being a member(s) of the above company:

hereby appoint. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . of. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

or, failing him/her, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . of. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

or, failing him/her, the chairman of the meeting, as my/our proxy to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote on my/our behalf at the annual general
meeting of members to be held at 13:00 on Wednesday, 25 April 2001 and at any adjournment thereof, and to vote or abstain from voting as
follows on the ordinary and special resolutions to be proposed at such meeting:

For Against Abstain

Ordinary business
1. Adoption of 2000 audited annual financial statements

2. Re-election of directors 

Dr V K Fung

Mr M W King

Mr T J Motlatsi

Mr D M J Ncube

Mr J Ogilvie Thompson

Mr N F Oppenheimer

Mr A J Trahar

3. Ordinary resolution 1
Directors’ control of the balance of the unissued 
ordinary shares 

4. Ordinary resolution 2
Entitlement of directors to issue the balance of the unissued 
ordinary shares for cash

Special business
5. Ordinary resolution 3

Increase in directors’ remuneration

6. Ordinary resolution 4
Amendments to the Share Incentive Scheme

7. Special resolution
Amendments to Articles of Association

A member entitled to attend and vote at the abovementioned meeting may appoint a proxy or proxies to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote in
his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the company.

Every person present and entitled to vote at the annual general meeting as a member or as a representative of a body corporate shall on a show
of hands have one vote only, irrespective of the number of shares such person holds or represents, but in the event of a poll, every share shall
have one vote.

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces above how you wish your votes to be cast. 

Signed at . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . on . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2001

Signature . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Please read the notes on the reverse side hereof.

This proxy form is not for use by holders of American Depositary Shares issued by The Bank of New York

AngloGold Limited

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)

(Registration number 1944/017354/06)

(”the company”)



Notes

1. A signatory/ies to the proxy form may insert the name of a proxy or the name of an alternative proxy of the signatory's/ies' choice in the

blank spaces provided with or without deleting "the chairman of the meeting", but any such deletion must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

Any insertion or deletion not complying with the aforegoing will be deemed not to have been validly effected. The person present at the

meeting whose name appears first on the list of names overleaf, shall be the validly appointed proxy for the member at the meeting.

2. A member's instructions to the proxy must be indicated in the appropriate spaces provided. A member or the proxy is not obliged to use all

the votes exercisable by the member or by the proxy or to cast all those votes in the same way, but the total of votes cast, and in respect

whereof abstention is directed, may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the member or the proxy. Failure to comply with the

above or to provide voting instructions or the giving of contradictory instructions will be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or abstain

from voting at the meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the member’s votes exercisable at that meeting.

3. Any alteration or correction made to this proxy form must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

4. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this proxy form in a representative capacity must be attached to this

proxy form unless previously recorded by the Share Registrars in South Africa or the United Kingdom or Australia.

5. When there are joint holders of shares, any one holder may sign the proxy form.

6. The completion and lodging of this proxy form will not preclude the member who grants the proxy from attending the meeting and speaking

and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof should such member wish to do so.

7. Completed proxy forms should be returned to one of the undermentioned addresses by no later than 13:00 local time (in the country

concerned) on Monday, 23 April 2001. Proxy forms may also be handed to the chairman of the meeting up to not later than ten minutes before

the commencement of the meeting.

Computershare Services PLC

PO Box 82

The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

England

Computershare Registry Services Pty

Limited

Level 12, 565 Bourke Street

Melbourne, Victoria 3000

(GPO Box 2975EE

Melbourne, Victoria 3001)

Australia

Computershare Services Limited 

2nd Floor, Edura, 41 Fox Street

Johannesburg 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107)

South Africa


